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December 13, 2016 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of City Council and Citizens of the City ofNorth Las Vegas: 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of North Las Vegas (the "City'') for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2016, is hereby submitted. The State of Nevada (the "State") law requires that a local government obtain 
an annual audit by independent certified public accountants of its fmancial statements in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States. 

Except for the independent auditors' reports included herein, this report consists of management's representations 
concerniog the fmances of the City. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and 
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these 
representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both 
to protect the City's assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of 
the City's fmancial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP). 
Because the cost of interoal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive framework of internal 
controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free 
from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report 
is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

The City's financial statements have been audited by Piercy Bowler Taylor & Kern, Certified Public Accountants and 
Business Advisors. The goal of an independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the basic financial statements 
of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, are free of material misstatement. An independent audit involves 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. The independent auditors concluded, based on their audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an 
unmodified ("clean'') report on the City's basic financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The 
independent auditors' report on the basic fmancial statements is presented as the first component of the Financial Section 
of this report. 



The independent audit of the basic financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally-mandated "Single 
Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements 
require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the basic financial statements, but also on the 
City's compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and internal controls over both 
financial reporting and compliance. 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic fmancial 
statements in the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to 
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately 
following the report of the independent auditors on the basic financial statements. 

Profile of the City of North Las Vegas 

The City of North Las Vegas is located in Clark County, Nevada. With a population of approximately 235,395 as of July 
I, 2015, the City ranks as the fourth largest city in the State of Nevada. The City was incorporated May 16, 1946, and 
currently occupies I 00.4 square miles and is approximately 43% built-out, with a majority ofland remaining undeveloped. 
The City is empowered by State Statutes to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which it has done from time to time. 
The City boasts a cosmopolitan cultural diversity, living up to its motto of being ''Your Community of Choice." 

The City is empowered by State Statutes to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located within its 
boundaries. The City's property tax rate is $1.1637 per $100 in assessed valuation. 

The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government, with elected offices consisting of the Mayor, four City 
Council members and two municipal judges. The Mayor and municipal judges are elected at-large, while Council 
members must live within and are elected by the constituents of their respective ward; all are elected on a non-partisan 
basis. Terms of office for the Mayor and City Council are four years and are staggered so that City-wide elections are held 
every two years for two or three of the five offices; terms of office for the municipal judges are six years. 

The City provides a full range of services, including a municipal court, public safety (police, fire, and building safety), 
water and wastewater, highways and streets, planning and zoning, parks and recreational facilities, community 
development and general administrative services. In addition to general governmental activities, the City Council 
exercises oversight responsibility for the North Las Vegas Library District and the North Las Vegas Redevelopment 
Agency; consequently, these activities have been included in this financial report as blended component units. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's financial planning and control. Prior to April 15, the City 
Manager and City Finance Director submit a tentative budget for the ensuing fiscal year to the City Council, the Nevada 
Department of Taxation and the citizens through public hearings. Public hearings are conducted on the third Tuesday in 
May where all adjustments to the tentative budget are indicated. The City Council adopts the budget prior to June 1 and 
submits it to the Nevada Department of Taxation for final approval. 

Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service fund, capital projects funds, enterprise funds and internal 
service funds are included in the annual budget. The level of budgetary control is statutorily required to be exercised at the 
function level. Encumbered amounts lapse at year-end. 

Local Economy 

The tourism industry, which is based on legalized gambling and related forms of entertainment, continues to be the largest 
component of Southern Nevada's economic base. Since the Great Recession, local tourism has experienced a slow but 
steady increase back to normalcy. Having recovered 97.1% of its loss according to the Clark County Tourism Index, 
tourism is anticipated to meet and surpass previous visitor highs in the not too distant future. With positive airport traffic 
and tourism growth, it is anticipated that gaming revenues will continue to rise in the near future. 
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The employment picture has been experiencing steady improvement over the prior twelve months. Per the Las Vegas 
Review Journal, in March, the state's unemployment rate dipped to 5.9% down from 6.8% in March of 2015. Nevada's 
initial claims for unemployment insurance fell to a pre-recession low of 12,343 claims. Construction has been the leading 
industry for growth adding 11.9% to the work force. Additional well diversified employment gains have been realized in 
a variety of industries including education, health services, professional business services and retail. Consumer spending 
is vital to economic health, and it does not occur at the level necessary to maintain a healthy economy when large portions 
of the population are unemployed, underemployed or fearful that they may become unemployed. Under these conditions, 
individuals tend to spend less, and to save, to the extent possible, for the "rainy day'' that they perceive to be coming. 
Strong employment or perceived employment options, improves consumer confidence and leads to more spending: the 
fuel which drives the economic engine. 

The Las Vegas real estate market is also doing quite well due to improving employment, rising incomes and a steady 
population growth. Per the Greater Las Vegas Association of Realtors, distressed properties have seen a dramatic 
reduction from about 135,000 during the peak of the recession to approximately 35,000. With less than a three month 
supply of homes available for sale in April, greater than 70% of all existing homes for sale are sold within 60 days of 
being placed on the market. This continues a positive trend in the long term recovery of the housing market. 

Long-Term Financial Planning 

In 2006, for budgetary and fmancial plarming purposes, the City Council mandated that an 18% ratio of fund balance, 
compared to the combined total of encumbrances and operating expenditures after transfers out, be maintained in the 
General Fund. For several reasons, the most prominent being declining revenues, the City Council modified the 
aforementioned fund balance policy by enacting Resolution No. 2471 which required that the City produce a budget which 
would result in a General Fund ending fund balance of no less than 8%. The change in General Fund balance during fiscal 
year 2016 was an increase in ending fund balance after transfers out from 9.8% to 10.4% at the end of fiscal years 2015 
and 2016, respectfully. The long-term goal of the City Council is to return to the 18% fund balance minimum by striving 
to rebuild the general fund balance over time. 

The City saw improved ratings from all three rating agencies. Moody's Investors Service improved from "Ba2" to "Bal" 
Standard & Poors improved from "BB-" to "BB+" and Fitch's rating improved from "B" to "B+". The City's ratings are 
based on a number of key items as cited by the rating agencies, including the Great Recession and the effects on the 
housing market and assessed valuations. Also, cited is the 30% decline in consolidated taxes, the largest single revenue 
source of the City's General Fund. Consolidated taxes decreased from an all-time high in fiscal year 2006 to an all-time 
low in fiscal year 2010; however, consolidated taxes have increased by nearly 46% since fiscal year 2010 and are 
projected to increase by approximately another 4% in fiscal year 2017. The City's contractual recurring expenditures 
were in excess of its contractual recurring revenues. However, this shortfall continues to be covered by the Payment in 
Lieu of Taxes transfers in from the utility funds and anticipated ending General Fund balances from prior year operational 
savings. 

Maintaining adequate levels of service remains a critical challenge to be addressed as the City's population continues to 
grow in this challenging economic environment. The City maintains a seven-year financial forecast for all of its funds, 
which serves as the cornerstone for the financial action plan and operating budget strategies. The forecast provides an 
understanding of how the total financial program will be affected by certain economic factors and assumptions, and 
enables the City to estimate the resources that will be necessary to meet the requirements of existing programs and to make 
adjustments accordingly. 

Since 2007, the City has been implementing cost-saving actions in order to continue its prudent fiscal management. Such 
actions have included across-the-board budget reductions, the elimination of non-critical and vacant positions, major 
reductions in discretionary spending, implementation of efficiency savings in all departments, the investigation of shared 
services with other local jurisdictions and the implementation of private sector partnership solutions and best practices. In 
addition, a number of capital improvement projects have been delayed, cancelled, or were reduced in scope. 

Looking to the future, the City has taken action to balance the fiscal year 2017 budget with a projected General Fund 
ending balance of at least 8.6%. Most notably the City is striving to accomplish this through encouraged business growth, 
licensing revenues and professional service partnerships where increased services and reduced costs can reasonably be 
achieved. Mutually beneficial agreements with the City's labor organizations and representatives have helped to stabilize 
personnel and benefit costs. 
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The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a multi-year planning document that is updated and adopted on an annual basis. 
The CIP prioritizes major capital projects and identifies revenue sources available to fmance the improvements. The City 
Council adopted a FY 2017-21 CIP in excess of$431.4 million, though it continually evaluates the financial condition of 
the City in order to ensure that the timing and scope of all projects are fiscally prudent. 

Major Initiatives 

The North 5th Street Super-Arterial continues as a major roadway improvement project which includes four separate 
phases of street improvements along the North 5th Street corridor. Portions of the project already completed include the 
widening and improving of the roadway from Owens Avenue to Carey Avenue, the construction of the overpass crossing 
Interstate 15, the recently completed bridge over Losee Road and improvements to North 5th Street that extend to 
Cheyenne Avenue. 

Other notable Public Works projects include the roadway and flood control improvements to Simmons Street from 
Cheyenne Avenue to Lone Mountain Road and the Colton and Brooks flood control projects which included flood 
improvements under the UPRR tracks, Colton Avenue, and Losee Road. In addition, these projects included various 
roadway improvements and utility system upgrades. 

Under the Fuel Revenue Indexing Program, the Losee Road Phase 2B project expanded Losee Road from one/two lane 
each-way to three lanes-each way from approximately Craig Road to Centennial Parkway. The Fuel Revenue Indexing 
Program also included improved flood control along the alignment and added a new traffic signal at Tropical Parkway. 

A major milestone for North Las Vegas historic preservation was accomplished with the completion of the Kiel Ranch 
Park (Phase 1) improvements and historic building preservation. There are two additional phases planned for the North 
Las Vegas owned park area. 

The interiors of several Fire Stations were renovated with a variety of new flooring, plumbing upgrades, new counter tops 
and fresh paint. 

As a result of the resurgence in the regional housing market there has been a renewed interest in the development of the 
Park Highlands master planned community located on the northern edge of the City. Originally approved under a 
development agreement in 2006, the 2,675 acre master planned community was split into two separate but similar 
development agreements. The western portion, approximately 600 acres is still known as the Park Highlands development 
and is proposed to be developed under the original agreement and design standards. The eastern portion, approximately 
2,000 acres is now known as The Villages at Tule Springs. A new development agreement and land plan has been 
approved by the City. In anticipation of this renewed development activity, the City recently entered into an agreement to 
upsize certain sewer mains serving the future Park Highland master planned area. As currently proposed, this master 
planned community would include approximately 12,800 housing units, mixed use commercial areas, parks, trails, schools 
and public facilities to provide for an estimated population, at build out, of approximately 40,000 people. 

Awards and Acknowledgements 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. This 
was the 35th consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement, the City must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR that satisfies both GAAP and 
applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current CAFR continues to meet 
the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and as such will be submitted to the GFOA to determine its 
eligibility for recognition. 
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Preparation of this report would not have been possible without the dedicated services of the Finance Department and our 
independent auditors, Piercy Bowler Taylor & Kern, Certified Public Accountants and Business Advisors. We would like 
to express our appreciation to all who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. Credit is also given to the 
Mayor and members of the City Council for their interest and support in planning and conducting the operations of the 
City in a responsible and progressive manner. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Dr. Qiong X. Liu P .E., PTOE, City Manager 

~ 
\. '\ 
~'\. - - -:.__ 

~""----....,,_ 

Darren Adair, Director 

s 
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PBTK 
PIERCY BOWLER 
TAYLOR & KERN 
Certified Public Accountants 

Business Advisors 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Members of the City Council 
City of North Las Vegas, Nevada 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Las Vegas (the 
City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

An audit performed in accordance with applicable professional standards is a process designed to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the City's basic financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
This process involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
basic financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the basic financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair 
presentation of the basic fmancial statements to enable the design of audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the pwpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as the overall presentation of the basic financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements. Management is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the basic financial statements based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic fmancial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion. In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in fmancial 
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis, postemployment benefits other than pensions, schedule of funding 
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progress, proportionate share of the collective net pension liability information, proportionate share of 
statutorily required pension contribution information, budgetary comparison information on pages 11-25 and 
77-86 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Govermnental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic fmancial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming our opinion on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The introductory section, other 
supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, statistical section and schedule of business license 
fees are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The other supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary 
information as listed in the table of contents is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory section, statistical section and schedule of business license fees have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fmancial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards. In accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 13, 2016, on our consideration of the City's internal 
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over fmancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Las Vegas, Nevada 
December 13, 2016 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Al; management of the City of North Las Vegas (the "City"), we offer readers of the City's financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. We 
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have 
furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found beginning on page I of this report. 

Financial Highlights 

The following summarizes are selected information related to the City's financial positions and changes thereto during the 
year: 

Summary of Selected Statement of Net Position Information 

Total Primarv Government 
2016 2015 C!!ge 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments, unrestricted $ 226,795,864 $ 168,752,884 $ 58,042,980 34.40 % 
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, restricted 9,617,819 9,392,483 225,336 2.40% 
Due from other governments 13,553,692 26,930,918 (13,377,226) (49.67)% 
Capital assets, net 1,773,167,564 1,794,717,092 (21,549,528) (1.20)% 

Deferred outflows of resources 45,018,658 44,240,225 778,433 1.76 % 

Bonds and notes payable, net of unamortized premiums and discounts 431,875,386 445,793,282 (13,917,896) (3.12)% 
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 15,305,563 13,016,187 2,289,376 17.59 % 
Net pension liability 207,807,802 201,188,893 6,618,909 3.29% 

Deferred inflows of resources 39,884,588 51,885,902 (12,001,314) (23.13)% 

Total net position 1,345,569,263 1,307,848,684 37,720,579 2.88 % 

Approximately 50% of the increase in cash, cash equivalents and investments is related to the timing of collecting 
receivables and the payment of amounts owed primarily from public works projects and utilities. In addition, the the 
increase includes the sale of a parcel ofland for $4.5 million 

The decrease in due from other governments resulted from a slow-down in construction activity, most notably related to 
the North 5th Street project, originally planned to be an eight-lane super arterial from downtown North Las Vegas to the 
northern City boundary. The Regional Transportation Commission has delayed funding of the remaining phases. The 
City's expenditures related to this project were $9.5 million less than the prior year. 

The decrease in capital assets mostly occurred in the City's business-type activities. In order to raise funds for the 
construction of infrastructure, the wastewater utility fund sold a 20.5-acre vacant parcel for $4.5 million and incurred an 
$8.2 million loss on the transaction. 

The City did not incur any new debt during the fiscal year and continues its efforts to reduce its outstanding bonds and 
notes payable through the payment of regularly scheduled principal payments. 

Pensions, postemployment benefits other than pensions, and all deferred inflows and $32 million of deferred outflows 
(both related to pensions) are based on actuarial valuations. The pension amounts represent the City's proportionate share 
the Nevada Public Employees Retirement System's unfunded liability and is recorded in accordance with accounting 
stardards but the City is not yet obligated to fund for such amounts according to Nevada Revised Statutes. 

(Continued) 
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Charges for services 
Property taxes 
Intergovernmental consolidated taxes 

Total expenses 

Change in net position 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Summary of Selected Statement of Activities Information 

Total Primary Government 
2016 2015 Change 

$ 179,563,917 $ 162,400,233 $ 17,163,684 
53,201,608 50,350,577 2,851,031 
49,903,290 47,685,565 2,217,725 

347,399,389 334,752,110 12,647,279 

39,206,194 58,626,913 (19,420,719) 

10.57 % 
5.66% 
4.65 % 

3.78 % 

(33.13)% 

The above revenues are a solid indication of the continual growth and development in the business and residential sectors 
of the City. Charges for services have seen a year-over-year increase in both water and wastewater connection fees 
associated with the increase in new development of single family housing and the construction of commercial and 
industrial facilities. Likewise, there were similar increases in permitting, licensing and engineering fee revenue due to 
overall economic growth. Property taxes experienced similar gains due to new construction and increases in assessed 
valuations, despite annual limits on existing property (3.0% on residential and upto 3.2% on commercial). For fiscal year 
2016-2017, the tax cap rate for all properties will be 0.2%. 

For similar reasons, intergovernmental consolidated taxes increased for the fourth consecutive year. This revenue source 
primarily consists of sales tax, and as such, reflects increases in consumer spending. 

$8.2 million of the increase in total expenses relates to a loss on the sale ofa parcel of vacant land. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic fmancial statements. The City's 
basic financial statements include three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial 
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the 
basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's fmances, in 
a manner similar to a private sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, as well as deferred inflows and 
outflows of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in 
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net position changed during the most recent fiscal 
year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless 
of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will 
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation and sick leave 
benefits). 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all, or a 
significant portion, of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of 
the City include a municipal court, public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, planning and zoning, parks and 
recreational facilities, libraries, community development and general government. The business-type activities include a 
water delivery system, a wastewater collection operation and municipal golf courses. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the priniary government), but also a 
legally separate redevelopment agency and a legally separate library district for which the City is fmancially accountable. 
Financial information for these component units is blended with the financial information presented for the primary 
government itself. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found beginning on page 27 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for 
specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three 
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 

The governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements; however, unlike the government-wide fmancial statements, governmental fund 
financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable 
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near term 
financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to 
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities 
in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long term impact of the 
government's near term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison 
between government funds and governmental activities. 

The City maintains 18 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund 
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the 
general fund and the public safety tax fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining 16 
governmental funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining schedules and individual fund schedules, which can be found 
beginning on page 89 of this report. 

The City adopts annual appropriations budgets for its general and public safety tax funds. Budgetary comparison 
statements have been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with the adopted budgets. 

The governmental fund financial statements can be found beginning on page 31 of this report. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions 
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to 
account for its water supply and distribution system, wastewater collection and trea1ment operations and two golf courses. 
Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various 
functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles and for its self-insursnce program, which 
is also where the City accounts for postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). Because these services 
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, 
only in more detail. The City maintains five individual proprietary funds. The proprietary fund financial statements 
provide separate information for the water system and the wastewater operation, both of which are considered to be major 
funds of the City. The City also presents a non-major proprietary fund for the operations of its two golf courses. Both 
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. 

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found beginning on page 36 this report. 

The fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary 
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available 
to support the City's own operations and programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for 
proprietary funds. 

The fiduciary fund financial statement can be found beginning on page 41 of this report. 

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund fmancial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found 
beginning on page 43 of this report. 

In addition to the basic fmancial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain supplementary 
information. A schedule of funding progress for the City's postemployment benefit plans is presented as required 
supplementary information and information concerning the City's business license fees is presented as other supplementary 
information. The required and other supplementary information can be found beginning on page 77 of this report. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

The following summarized comparative statements of net position, changes during the year, and discussion of selected 
matteis are piesented to help the readei bettei undeistand the City's fmancial position: 

Summary Statement of Net Positiion 

Governmental Activities Business-!ll?!: Activities Total Primarv Government 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Assets 
Current, restricted and other $ 192,083,311 $ 170,628,279 $ 119,309,368 $ 103,935,536 $ 311,392,679 $ 274,563,815 
Capital 1,298,466,883 1,'193,774,902 474,700,681 500,942,190 1,773,167,564 1,794,717,092 

Total assets 1,490,550,194 1,464,403,181 594,010,049 604,877,726 2,084,560,243 2,069,'180,907 

Deferred outflows of resources 42,272,885 41,728,673 2,745,773 2,511,552 45,018,658 44~0,225 

Liabilities 
Current 31,745,115 37,552,063 14,954,162 13,160,678 46,699,277 50,712,741 
Long-term 399,032,984 396,961,807 298,392, 789 306,111,998 697,425,773 703,073,805 

Total liabilities 430,778,099 434,513,870 313 ,346,951 319,272,676 744,125,050 753, 786,546 

Deferred inflows of resources 36,501,422 47,676,351 3,383,166 4,209,551 39,884,588 51,885,902 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 1,156,185,282 1,147,394,961 197,755,281 214,812,299 1,353,940,563 1,362,207,260 
Restricted 91,020,657 79,291,604 7,113,754 98,134,411 79,291,604 
Unrestricted !181,662,381) !202, 744,932) 75,156,670 69,094,752 !106,505,711) !133,650,180) 

Total net position $ 1,065,543,558 $ 1,023,941,633 $ 280,Q25, 705 $ 283,907,051 $ 1,345,569,263 $ 1,307,848,684 

Summary Statement of Net Positiion 

Governmental Activities Business-!ll?!: Activities Total Primarv Government 
C!!ge Cban~ C!!ge 

Assets 
Current, restricted and other $ 21,455,032 12.57 % $ 15,373,832 14.79 % $ 36,828,864 13.41 % 
Capital 4 691 981 0.36% (26~1,509) (5.24)% (21,549,528) (1.20)% 

Total assets 26,147,013 1.79 % (10,867 ,677) (1.80)% 15,279,336 0.74% 

Deferred outflows of resources 544 212 1.30 % 234,221 9.33 % 778 433 1.76 % 

Liabilities 
Current (5,806,948) (15.46)% 1,793,484 13.63 % (4,013,464) (7.91)% 
Long-term 2 071177 0.52% (7,719,209) (2.52)% !5,648,032) !0.80)% 

Total liabilities (3,735,771) (0.8~% (5,925,725) (1.86)% (9,661,49[) (1.28)% 

Deferred inflows of resources !J 1,174,929) !23.44)% !826,385) !19.63)% !12,001,314) !23.13)% 

Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 8,790,321 0.77% (17,057,018) (7.94)% (8,266,697) (0.61)% 
Restricted 11,729,053 14.79 % 7,113,754 % 18,842,807 23.76 % 
Unrestricted 21,082,551 {10.40)% 6,061,918 8.77 % 27,144,469 {20.31)% 

Total net position $ 41,601,925 4.06 %$ (3,881,346) (1.37)% $ 37,720,579 2.88 % 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Governmental Activities 

Overall current, unrestricted and othei assets increased due mostly to a large increase in cash offset by a decrease in due to 
othei governments. Capital assets increased due to the purchase of equipment and the construction of infrastructure. 
Theie was a decline in current liabilities due to timing and a reduction in accounts payable and othei accrued expenses, 
while long-teim liabilities increased due to an increase in the postemployment benefits othei than pensions. Restrictions of 
net position increased by $3.2 million for debt seivice, $6.6 million for public safety projects and $2.4 million for claims 
and judgments. 

Business-tvne Activities 

Capital assets decreased $12.5 million due to the sale of a parcel ofland and $19.9 million in depreciation, offset by a $5.9 
million increase in othei assets. 

Liabilities decreased primarily as a result of making scheduled bond payments and, to a lessei extent, the recording of an 
increase in estimated net pension liabilities. 

In order to enhance this analysis and provide a means for evaluating the City's operating activities, summarized 
comparative statements of changes in net position, related changes between years, and discussion of selected matters 
follow: 

Summary Statement of Changes in Net Positiion 

Governmental Activities Business-!l'..l!: Activities Total Primary Government 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Revenues 
Program revenues 

Charges for services $ 74,756,754 $ 63,497,320 $ 104,807,163 $ 98,902,913 $ 179,563,917 $ 162,400,233 
Operating grants and contnDutions 24,516,475 27,229,507 3,034,877 3,019,938 27,551,352 30,249,445 
Capital grants and contributions 43,854,707 70,196,112 3,930,962 4,344,083 47,785,669 74,540,195 

General revenues 
Property taxes 53,201,608 50,350,577 53,201,608 50,350,577 
Residential construction taxes 426,603 313,837 426,603 313,837 
Room taxes 564,601 486,389 564,601 486,389 
Franchise fees, based on gross 

receipts 21,307,694 21,322,332 21,307,694 21,322,332 
Intergovernmental consolidated taxes 49,903,290 47,685,565 49,903,290 47,685,565 
Other local government shared 

revenues 2,110,967 2,096,928 2,110,967 2,096,928 
Unrestricted investment income 1,796,240 1,321,011 7,702 15,803 1,803,942 1,336,814 
Gain on disposal of capital assets 183,390 429,109 6,517 21,612 189,907 450,721 
Miscellaneous 1,984,280 1,929,753 211 753 216,234 2,196,033 2,145,987 

Total revenues 274,606,609 286,858,440 111,998,974 106,520,583 386,605,583 393,379,023 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Summary Statement of Chang;es in Net Positiion 

Governmental Activities Business-~ Activities Total Primarv Government 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Expenses 
General government $ 61,473,941 $ 53,664,007 $ $ $ 61,473,941 $ 53,664,007 
Judicial 5,378,903 9,060,508 5,378,903 9,060,508 
Public safety 141,730,894 141,315,863 141,730,894 141,315,863 
Public works 14,894,436 14,375,110 14,894,436 14,375,110 
Culture and recreation 17,811,729 17,359,534 17,811,729 17,359,534 
Community support 6,855,958 7,142,087 6,855,958 7,142,087 
futerest expense and fiscal charges 7,769,871 6,640,779 7,769,871 6,640,779 
Wastewater 52,437,713 45,235,699 52,437,713 45,235,699 
w- 36,490,347 37,550,621 36,490,347 37,550,621 
Municipal golf courses 2,555,597 2,407,902 2,555,597 2,407,902 

Total expenses 255,915,732 249,557,888 91,483,657 85,194,222 347,399,389 334,752,110 

Change in net position before transfers 18,690,877 37,300,552 20,515,317 21,326,361 39,206,194 58,626,913 

Transfers 22,911,048 22,548,597 (22,911,048) (22,548,597) 

Change in net position 41,601,925 59,849,149 (2,395,731) (1,222,236) 39,206,194 58,626,913 

Net position, beginning of year 1,023,941,633 964,112,459 282,421,436 283,643,672 1,306,363,069 1~7,756,131 

Net position, end of year $ 1,065,543,558 $ 1,023,941,633 $ 280,025, 705 $ 282,421,436 $ 1,345,569,263 $ 1,306,363,069 

Summary Statement of Chatu?es in Net Positiion 

Governmental Activities Business-!ll?!: Activities Total Primarv Government 

Chans;e Chanoe Chans;e 

Revenues 
Program revenues 

Charges for services $ 11,259,434 17.73 % $ 5,904,250 5.97 % $ 17,163,684 10.57 % 
Operating grants and contnl>utions (2,713,032) (9.96)% 14,939 0.49 % (2,698,093) (8.92)% 
Capital grants and contributions (26,341,405) (37.53)% (413,121) (9.51)% (26,754,526) (35.89)% 

General revenues 
Property taxes 2,851,031 5.66% % 2,851,031 5.66% 
Residential construction taxes 112,766 35.93 % % 112,766 35.93 % 
Room.taxes 78,212 16.08 % % 78,212 16.08 % 
Franchise fees, based on gross 

receipts (14,638) (0.07)% % (14,638) (0.07)% 
Intergovernmental consolidated taxes 2,217,725 4.65 % % 2,217,725 4.65 % 
Other local government shared 

revenues 14,039 0.67% % 14,039 0.67% 
Unrestricted investment income 475,229 35.97 % (8,101) (51.26)% 467,128 34.94 % 
Gain on disposal of capital assets (245,719) (57.26)% (15,095) (69.85)% (260,814) (57.87)% 
Miscellaneous 54 527 2.83 % (4,481) (2.07)% 50046 2.33 % 

Total revenues (12,251,831) !4.21)% 5,478,391 5.14 % (6,773,440) !1.72)% 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Summary Statement of Chang;es in Net Positiion 

Governmental Activities Business-~ Activities Total Primarv Government 

Chang;e Cbanl?i!: Chang;e 

Expenses 
General government $ 7,809,934 14.55 % $ %$ 7,809,934 14.55 % 
Judicial (3,681,605) (40.63)% % (3,681,605) (40.63)% 
Public safety 415,031 0.29% % 415,031 0.29% 
Public works 519,326 3.61 % % 519,326 3.61 % 
Culture and recreation 452,195 2.60% % 452,195 2.60% 
Community support (286,129) (4.01)% % (286,129) (4.01)% 
futerest expense and fiscal charges 1,129,092 17.00 % % 1,129,092 17.00 % 
Wastewater % 7,202,014 15.92 % 7,202,014 15.92 % 
w- % (1,060,274) (2.82)% (1,060,274) (2.82)% 
Municipal golf courses % 147 695 6.13 % 147 695 6.13 % 

Total expenses 6 357 844 2.55 % 6,289,435 7.38 % 12,647,279 3.78 % 

Change in net position before transfers (18,609,675) (49.89)% (8ll,044) (3.80)% (19,420,719) (33.13)% 

Transfers 362 451 1.61 % (362,451) 1.61 % % 

Change in net position (18,247,224) (30.49)% (1,173,495) 96.01 % (19,420,719) (33.13)% 

Net position, beginning of year 59,829,174 6.21 % (1,222,236) (0.43)% 58,606,938 4.70% 

Net position, end of year $ 41,601,925 4.06 %$ (2,395,731) (0.85)% $ 39,206,194 3.00% 

Governmental Activities 

Capital grants and contributions are largely dependent upon the timing of construction projects. Construction projects can 
be delayed or cancelled all together, thus reducing grant funding. Capital grants and contributions decreased primarily due 
to the Regional Transportation Commission delaying funding of the remaining phases of the North 5th Street Project and 
the completion of other projects, including Losee Road improvements ($13.0 million), Valley Drive sawtooth infill ($3.8 
million), and Centennial Parkway improvements ($6.3 million). 

However, the biggest increase in charges for services relates to the City's internal service funds. The City maintains 
reserves in its motor equipment fund for the purchase of vehicles and equipment that are funded through charges to other 
funds and their user departments. During the year, the City increased its reserves to match the needs of its aging fleet by 
increasing user fees (approximately $5.0 million). In addition, the City is self-insured and maintains a workers' 
compensation internal service fund. Due to significant increases in workers' compensation claims over the last few years, 
the reserves in this fund had declined so the City increased related charges for services (approximately $5.5 million) 
during the year. 

Business-tvoe Activities 

The change in revenues is primarily due to a 3% rate increase in both utility funds and, to a lesser extent, an increase of 
customers. The increase in expenses resulted from an $8.4 million non-cash loss on the sale of land in the wastewater 
utility fund, offset primarily by reductions in staffing. Some of the savings were offset by increases in equipment and the 
utility system maintenance, which is intended to avoid more costly major repairs. 

(Continued) 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 
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General go\·eniment 

FOR. THE YEAR. ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Program Revenues and Expenses 
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CITY OF NORm LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR. THE YEAR. ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

The following graphs provide expense and program revenue information with regard to the various functions of the CitYs 
business type activities and revenues souroes: 

Program Revenues and Expenses 
Business-type Acmities 

D -Program Re\·enues E.~penses 
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

• 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal 
requirements. 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Governmental Funds 

The following tables summarized selected information about the City's governmental funds and changes during the yeai: 

General Fund 
Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Aggregate Other Governmental Funds 

General Fund 
Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Aggregate Other Governmental Funds 

General Fund 
Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Aggregate Other Governmental Funds 

General Fund 
Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Aggregate Other Governmental Funds 

General Fund 
Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Aggregate Other Governmental Funds 

General Fund 
Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Aggregate Other Governmental Funds 

Total Assets - Governmental Funds 

2016 2015 

$ 20,767,101 $ 19,187,498 $ 
11,730,763 7,014,733 
96,120,429 98,149,139 

Total Liabilities - Governmental Funds 

2016 2015 

$ 6,814,300 $ 6,536,025 $ 
393,162 1,339,410 

8,536,541 15,604,179 

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds 

2016 2015 

$ 13,896,274 $ 12,596,352 $ 
11,126,972 5,472,314 
87,463,382 82,578,411 

Total Revenues - Governmental Funds 

2016 2015 

$ 112,178,554 $ 108,872,638 $ 
30,346,998 28,966,471 
85,315,281 111,277,147 

Total Exoenditures - Governmental Funds 

2016 2015 

$ 123,504,882 $ 116,298,997 $ 
23,920,214 26,601,267 
90,654,343 117,259,800 

Total OtherFinanc!!;!s SoW"Ces filses)-Govemmental Funds 

2016 2015 

$ 12,626,250 $ 11,944,011 $ 
(772,126) (205,080) 

10,224,033 10,322,837 

C!!ge 

1,579,603 8.23 % 
4,716,030 67.23 % 

(2,028,710) (2.07)% 

C!!ge 

278,275 4.26% 
(946,248) (70.65)% 

(7,067,638) (45.29)% 

Change 

1,299,922 10.32 % 
5,654,658 103.33 % 
4,884,971 5.92% 

Change 

3,305,916 3.04% 
1,380,527 4.77% 

(25,961,866) (23.33)% 

Chang;e 

7,205,885 6.20% 
(2,681,053) (10.08)% 

(26,605,457) (22.69)% 

Change 

682,239 5.71 % 
(567,046) 276.50 % 

(98,804) (0.96)% 

Of the above fund balances, $0.1 million is categorized as nonspendable, $95.1 million as restricted, $0.8 million as 
committed, $207.0 million as assigned, and $13.8 million as unassigned. 

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on neai-term inflows, outflows and balances of 
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In paiticulai, unassigned 
fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal yeai. 

(Cootinued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

The City reports both major and non-major funds, and as such, major funds are reported in a separate column in the entity­
wide statements, while nonmajor funds are reported in a single aggregated column. By definition, the general fund is 
always considered a major fund. Funds must be reported as major funds if they meet both of the following criteria: 

An individual fund reports at least 10% of any of the following: a) total assets, b) total liabilities, c) total revenues, or 
d) total expenditures/expenses. 

An individual fund reports at least five percent of the aggregated total for both governmental funds and enterprise 
funds of any one of the items for which it met the I 0 percent criterion. 

General Fund - The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. The general fund's assets increased primarily as a 
result of increases in cash, cash equivalents, and investments as previously discussed, offset by a $2.4 Inillion reduction in 
deposits associated with prefunding payroll for the pay period ended June 26, 2015, which was not paid until July 2, 2015. 
Its liabilities increased due to there being two additional days included in accrued payroll. Fund balance increased because 
management continues to implement cost-savings measures, while revenues continue to climb. Expenditures increased 
due to higher internal service fund charges to establish vehicle replacement and workers compensation reserves. 

Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for voter-approved property tax overrides to be used 
exclusively for public safety programs. Total assets increased primarily because revenues increased while expenditures 
decreased. In other words, tax revenues outpaced expenditures. Liabilities decreased due to lower accrued payroll costs 
(vacated positions have not been filled) and amounts due to the City of Las Vegas related to the detention facility have 
been brought current. 

Aggregate Other Governmental Funds - Liabilities decreased due to a decline in construction activity and the completion 
of carryover projects. This also accounts for the reduction in revenues and expenditures which declined by siinilar 
amounts. 

Proprietary Funds 

The following tables summarize selected information about the City's Proprietary Funds and changes during the year: 

Wastewater Utility Enterprise Fund 
Water Utility Enterprise Fund 
Aggregate Other Enterprise Funds 
Internal Service Funds 

Wastewater Utility Enterprise Fund 
Water Utility Enterprise Fund 
Aggregate Other Enterprise Funds 
Internal Service Funds 

To1al Asset. - Proprietary Funds 

2016 

$ 429,996,341 $ 
163,441,597 

5,510,273 
60,339,429 

Total Liabilities - Proprietary Funds 

2016 

$ 281,074,703 $ 
32,072,692 

221,064 
32,511,967 

(Continued) 

2015 

441,990,937 $ 
161,219,141 

6,057,182 
44,469,907 

2015 

286,644,694 $ 
33,934,296 

211,970 
28,737,650 

Change 

(11,994,596) 
2,222,456 
(546,909) 

15,869,522 

Change 

(5,569,991) 
(1,861,604) 

9,094 
3,774,317 

(2.71)% 
1.38 % 

(9.03)% 
35.69 % 

(1.94)% 
(5.49)% 
4.29% 

13.13 % 
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Wastewater Utility Enterprise Fund 
Water Utility Enterprise Fnnd 
Aggregate Other Enterprise Funds 
Internal Service Funds 

Wastewater Utility Enterprise Fund 
Water Utility Enterprise Fund 
Aggregate Other Enterprise Funds 
Internal Service Funds 

Wastewater Utility Enterprise Fund 
Water Utility Enterprise Fund 
Aggregate Other Enterprise Funda 
Internal Service Funds 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Total Net Position - Proprietary Funds 

2016 2015 
(Restated) 

$ 148,667,927 $ 154,656,878 $ 
130,987,142 126,277,847 

5,287,290 5,843,576 
27,757,951 15,549,884 

Total Operating Revenues - Proprietary Funds 

2016 2015 

$ 44,709,311 $ 42,411,927 $ 
58,425,234 54,749,159 

1,884,371 1,958,061 
40,742,095 30,740,968 

Total Operating Expenses - Proprietary Funds 

2016 2015 

$ 29,065,188 $ 29,928,373 $ 
36,007,347 36,973,673 

2,553,694 2,406,323 
29,140,408 25,821,612 

C!!!!!ge 

(5,988,951) 
4,709,295 
(556,286) 

12,208,067 

Change 

2,297,384 
3,676,075 

(73,690) 
10,001,127 

Cbana;e 

(863,185) 
(966,326) 
147,371 

3,318,796 

Total Nonoperating Revenues <Expenses). Capital Contributions and Transfers - Proprietary Funds 

2016 2015 Chans;e 

Wastewater Utility Enterprise Fund $ (21,633,074) $ (13,688,302) $ (7,944,772) 
Water Utility Enterprise Fund (17,708,592) (17,641,902) (66,690) 
Aggregate Other Enterprise Funds 113,037 778,434 (665,397) 
Intemal Service Funds 606,380 3,029,973 (2,423,593) 

(3.87)% 
3.73 % 

(9.52)% 
78.51 % 

5.42% 
6.71 % 

(3.76)% 
32.53 % 

(2.88)% 
(2.61)% 
6.12 % 

12.85 % 

58.04 % 
0.38 % 

(85.48)% 
(79.99)% 

The City's proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements for business-type activities, but in more detail. Selected information related to the City's proprietary 
funds follows: 

Wastewater Utility Fund - Total assets of the wastewater utility fund decreased due to the sale of land that was originally 
purchased for the site of a water treatment facility, which is no longer required sine an alternative site was used. The City 
determined that it was better to sell the property than holding on for some future unknown development. Total liabilities 
decreased due to scheduled repayments of outstanding bonds. The decrease in net position was the result of an $8.4 
million loss on the sale of land. In other words, net position would have increased approximately $2.4 million if not for 
the non-cash loss on the sale of the land. This otherwise improvement is the result ofrate increases that began in 2010 
when the City decided to implement 3% annual increases (both for wastewater and water) to avoid large one-time 
increases. In addition, the number of customers increased. Operating expenses for both utilities declined as a result of not 
filling vacancies and the reallocation of certain utility employees' payroll and benefit costs who were performing capital 
project services for other funds of the City. 

Water Utility Fund - Total assets increased as a result of capital projects. Liabilities decreased due to scheduled debt 
repayments. Rate increases as previously discussed accounted for the increase in net position and revenues. 

(Cnntinued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Budgetary Highlights for General Fund 

The following table summarizes selected budgetary information about the City's General Fund: 

Total Revenues 
Total Expenditures 
Total Fund Balance 

Summary of Seleck:d Geoeral Fund Budget to Ac1ual Informatioo 

Oriajnal Budget Final Budget 

$ 108,687,797 $ 
123,510,329 

10,709,043 

108,870,389 $ 
123,878,711 

12,982,993 

112,178,554 $ 
123,504,882 

13,896,274 

Variance 

3,308,165 
373,829 
913,281 

Investment income, licenses and permits, and intergovernmental consolidated taxes each exceeded appropriations by 
approximately $1.0 million in the last quarter of the year outside of the June budget augmentation process. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

As of June 30, 2016, the City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities amounts to 
$1.77 billion (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization). This investment in capital assets includes land, 
buildings, infrastructure, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, roads, highways and bridges. The total 
increase in the City's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 1.2%. 

Major capital asset activity during the current fiscal year included the following: 

Simmons Street improvements ($9 .5 million), consisting of the construction of three traffic lanes in each direction, a 
center median, LED street lighting, traffic control devices and concrete sidewalks in the developed sections. 

North 5th Street Project ($8.5 million), which is proposed, upon ultimate build-out, as an eight-lane super arterial 
which would provide for high volume north-south travel and is being funded by the Nevada Department of 
Transportation and Regional Transportation Commission. 

Colton Avenue channel improvements ($4.4 million), consisting of the design and construction of one mile of round 
catch basin storm drain. This improvement will reduce the flooding along this industrial roadway. 

Brooks Avenue channel improvements ($4.3 million) consisting of the design and construction of concrete channel and 
box culverts. These channel improvements will reduce flooding in the industrial area of Losee Road and Brooks 
Avenue. 

Losee Road improvements ($2.9 million) consisting of the design, right-of-way acquisition, and construction of six 
travel lanes with traffic control devices and localized drainage improvements, emergency breakdown lanes, curb, 
gutter, sidewalk and streetlights. 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 3 beginning on page 55 of this report. 

(Cootinued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Long-term Debt 

Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes, the State limits the amount of geneial obligation debt a government entity may issue 
to 20% of its total assessed valuation. The current statutory debt limitation for the City is $1.23 billion, which is 
significantly in excess of the City's actual outstanding applicable net geneial obligation debt of$807.4 million. 

Additional information on the City's long term debt can be found in Note 3 beginning on page 58 of this report. 

Known Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget 

In looking to the future, the City has budgeted geneial fund revenues to be $114.5 million for 2017, up $5.5 million. As 
most revenues are expected to remain flat or show modest increases, intergoveinmental consolidated taxes (primarily 
consisting of sales taxes) is expected to increase to approximately $52.l million, up $2.7 million. Additionally, propeity 
taxes revenue is estimated to increase by approximately 1.9% 

The City has budgeted appropriations to be $131.6 million in 2017, up $7.6 million, primarily for 58 net additional 
positions ($5.2 million) and capital improvement projects related to information technology ($1.1 million). The City 
continues to strive to balance its contractually-recurring expenditures with its contractually-recurring revenues by 
renegotiating recurring service and supply contracts and working togethei with its employee bargaining groups in an effort 
to stabilize employee costs and related benefits. 

The City's adopted operating and capital improveinent budgets totals $366.7 million and $149.5 million, respectively. 

Propeity taxes revenue account for approximately 5.9% of geneial fund revenues. During fiscal year 2005, the State of 
Nevada enacted legislation that provided for a partial abatement of propeity taxes going forward. The level of abatement 
is based on the type and use of the propeity, but geneially, if the propeity is a primary residence, then the abatement is the 
amount of taxes that exceeded the prior year's tax bill plus a maximum of3.0%. Non-residential propeity tax increases are 
capped at a maximum of 8.0% year-ovei-year, or less depending on the related forumla. For the upcoming tax year, both 
are capped at 0.2% increase. Assessed propeity values exceeded the caps for abateinent. Caps weie also exceed in the 
prior year. 

Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes, diseases of the lungs and heart are consideied occupational diseases for firefighters 
and police officeis. Specifically, the statutes provide that a disease of the lung and/or heart is conclusively presumed to 
have arisen out of and in the course of einployment and as such, are compensable with regard to workeis' compensation 
benefits. Furthei, the statutes peimit claims to be reopened at any time during the life of the claimant for furthei 
examination and treatment should circumstances change which would warrant an increase or rearrangement of 
compensation. 

At issue is the cost of workeis' compensation benefits and settlement costs that the City will presumably incur beginning 
ovei the next ten years as the age and gross numbei of the City's covered police and fire safety workforce increases. It 
could be furthei assumed that a large portion of the police and fire safety workforce will develop some form oflung and/or 
heart disease as part of the natural process of aging, yet the City would be financially accountable for all the disability 
benefits as it would be conclusively determined that the disease arose out of and/or in connection with einployment with 
the City. As a result, the cost to the City for disability and death benefits to claimants under these statutes could very well 
cause a significant financial hardship over a short period of time and/or result in a reduction of related safety services. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Requests for information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an interest. 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should 
be addressed to the Finance Department, City of North Las Vegas, 2250 Las Vegas Boulevard North, Suite 710, North Las 
Vegas, Nevada, 89030-5875. 

26 



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 





GOVERNMENT-WIDE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2016 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, unrestricted $ 149,159,310 $ 77,636,554 $ 226, 795,864 
Cash, cash equivalents and investments, restricted 2,504,065 7,113,754 9,617,819 
Accounts receivable, net 5,359,103 14,522,056 19,881,159 
Grants receivable 8,452,417 8,452,417 
Property taxes receivable 1,464,101 1,464,101 
Special assessments receivable 67,198 67,198 
Interest receivable 3,241 3,241 
Due from other governments 12,945,492 608,200 13,553,692 
Inventories 258,143 3,063,055 3,321,198 
Prepaid land lease, net of amortization 20,625,000 20,625,000 
Other prepaid items 505,099 673,126 1,178,225 
Refundable deposits 5,785 5,785 
Property held for resale 6,426,980 6,426,980 
Internal balances 4,938,162 (4,938,162) 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Construction in progress 234,669,636 22,687,717 257,357,353 
Land 190,849,389 3,005,336 193,854,725 
Buildings and building improvements 165,575,987 74,041,634 239,617,621 
Improvements other than buildings 50,004,524 40,502,623 90,507,147 
fufrastructure 647,955,665 330,372,443 978,328,108 
Machinery, equipment and software 9,411,682 4,090,928 13,502,610 

Total assets 1,490,550,194 594,010,049 2,084,560,243 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unamortized deferred refunding charges 12,648,385 12,648,385 
Unamortized amounts related to pensions 29,624,500 2,745,773 32,370,273 

Total deferred outflows of resources 42,272,885 2 745 773 45,018,658 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 10,147,612 1,990,255 12,137,867 
Accrued salaries and benefits 16,447,497 208,512 16,656,009 
Due to other governments 1,078,980 6,223,256 7,302,236 
Cust.omer deposits 49,614 4,211,318 4,260,932 
Unearned revenue 2,680,745 43,133 2,723,878 
futerest payable 1,340,667 2,277,688 3,618,355 
Long-term liabilities, due within one year 

Bonds and notes payable 4,774,300 7,070,328 11,844,628 
Compensated absences 4,211,866 416,677 4,628,543 

Long-term liabilities, due in more than one year 
Bonds and notes payable, net of unamortized premiums and discounts 150,155,686 269,875,072 420,030,758 
Compensated absences 34,404,834 3,403,645 37,808,479 
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 15,305,563 15,305,563 
Net pension liability 190,180,735 17,627,067 207,807,802 

Total liabilities 430,778,099 313,346,951 744,125,050 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unamortized amounts related to pensions 36,501,422 3,383,166 39,884,588 

(Continued) 
See notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

STATEMENT OF NET PosmON (CONTINUED) 

NETPOSffiON 
Net investment in capital assets 
Rostricted for 

Debt service 
Street i.mprovm.ents projects 
Other capital projects 
Police, fire and other public safety programs and projects 
Parl<s, cultural and olher recreatiooal programs 
Library district operations 
Courts and other judical programs 
Community assistance and support programs 
Claims and judgements 
Other 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 

See notes to basic financial statements. 

JUNE 30, 2016 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

1,156,185,282 197,755,281 1,353,940,563 

7,617,874 7,113,754 14,731,628 
9,250,793 9,250,793 

21,690,691 21,690,691 
29,429,130 29,429,130 

3,320,286 3,320,286 
461,755 461,755 

1,708,381 1,708,381 
15,122,644 15,122,644 
2,400,000 2,400,000 

19,103 19,103 
(181,662,381) 75,156,670 (106,505,711) 

$ 1,065,543,558 $ 280,025,705 $ 1,345,569,263 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Net (Expenses) Revenues and 
ProJ1IBID Revenues Cban2e in Net Position 
Operating Grants Capital Grants 

Charges for and and Governmental Business-type 
Exmmses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

FUNCTION/PROGRAM 
Governmental activities 

General government $ 61,473,941 $ 20,458,488 $ 18,962 $ $ (40,996,491) $ $ (40,996,491) 
Judicial 5,378,903 7,917,230 2,538,327 2,538,327 
Public safety 141,730,894 28,359,209 13,332,475 (100,039,210) (100,039,210) 
Public works 14,894,436 10,860,642 7,020,590 43,854,707 46,841,503 46,841,503 
Culture and recreation 17,811,729 5,633,416 213,588 (11,964,725) (11,964,725) 
Community support 6,855,958 1,527,769 3,930,860 (1,397,329) (1,397,329) 
Debt service 

Interest expense and fiscal charges 7,769,871 (7,769,871) (7,769,871) 

Total governmental activities 255,915,732 74,756,754 24,516,475 43,854,707 (112.787,796) (112,787,796) 

Business-type activities 
Wastewater 52,437,713 44,544,995 3,034,877 3,656,382 (1,201,459) (1,201,459) 
Water 36,490,347 58,417,333 274,580 22,201,566 22,201,566 
Municipal golf courses 2,555,597 1,844,835 (710,762) (710,762) 

Total business-type activities 91,483,657 104,807,163 3,034,877 3,930,962 20,289,345 20,289,345 

Total function/program $ 347,399,389 $ 179,563,917 $ 27,551,352 $ 47,785,669 (112,787,796) 20,289,345 (92,498,451) 

(Continued) 
See notes to basic financial statements. 
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GENERAL REVENUES 
Property IBxes 
Residential construction taxes 
Room taxes 
Franchise fees, based on gross receipts 
Intergovernmental consolidated taxes 
Other local government shared revenues 
Unrestricted investment income 
Gain on disposal of capital assets 
Miscellaneous 

Total general revenues 

Transfers 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY 
REPORTED 

Adjustment 
NET POSITION BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADJUSTED 

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 

See notes to basic financial statements. 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Net (Expenses) Revenues and 
Prop;ram Revenues Chami;e in Net Position 

Exoenses 

Operating Grants Capital Grants 
Charges for and and Governmental Business-type 

Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

53,201,608 
426,603 
564,601 

21,307,694 
49,903,290 

2,110,967 
1,796,240 

183,390 
1,984,280 

131,478,673 

22,911,048 

41,601,925 

1,023,941,633 

1,023,941,633 

7,702 
6,517 

211,753 

225,972 

(22,911,048) 

(2,395,731) 

283,907,051 
0.485,615) 

282,421,436 

53,201,608 
426,603 
564,601 

21,307,694 
49,903,290 
2,110,967 
1,803,942 

189,907 
2,196,033 

131,704,645 

39,206,194 

1,307,848,684 
0.485,615) 

1,306,363,069 

$ 1,065.543.558 $ 280,025,705 $ 1.345.569,263 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

GoVERNMENTAL FuNl>S 
BALANCE SHEET 

JUNE 30, 2016 

Special Revenue 
Fund 

Aggregate Other Total 
Public Safety Governmental Governmental 

General Fund Tax Funds Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash, cash equivalents and invesbnents $ 6,797,015 $ 10,984,674 $ 75,981,466 $ 93,763,155 
Accounts receivable, net 4,407,437 18,701 963,887 5,390,025 
Grants receivable 4,774 8,412,287 8,417,061 
Property taxes receivable 386,877 726,188 351,036 1,464,101 
Interest receivable 3,241 3,241 
Special assessments receivable 67,198 67,198 
Prepaid items 127,919 1,200 11,921 141,040 
Due from other governments 9,043,079 3,902,413 12,945,492 
Property held for resale 6,426,980 6,426,980 

Total assets $ 20,767,101 $ ll,730,763 $ 96,120,429 $ 128,618,293 

LIABILlTIES 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities $ 718,030 $ 26,698 $ 5,544,333 $ 6,289,061 
Accrued salaries and benefits 4,895,277 306,797 252,657 5,454,731 
Due to other funds 102,447 59,667 30,550 192,664 
Due to other governments 819,547 254,687 1,074,234 
Cust.omer deposits 42,958 9,610 52,568 
Unearned revenue 236 041 2444704 2,680,745 

Total liabilities 6,814,300 393 162 8,536,541 15,744,003 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenues 56527 210,629 120 506 387 662 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 6,870,827 603 791 8 657 047 16,131,665 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspen.dable 

Prepaid items 127,919 1,200 11,921 141,040 
Land held for resale 6,426,980 6,426,980 

Restricted for 
Debt service 7,617,874 7,617,874 
Street i.m.provments projects 9,250,793 9,250,793 
Other capital projects 21,690,691 21,690,691 
Police, fire and other public safety programs and projects ll,125,772 18,303,358 29,429,130 
Parks, cultural and other recreational programs 3,320,286 3,320,286 
Library district operations 461,755 461,755 
Courts and other judical programs 1,708,381 1,708,381 
Community assistance and support programs 15,122,644 15,122,644 
Other 19,103 19,103 

Committed to 
Police, fire and other public safety programs and projects 27,369 27,369 
Community assistance and support programs 770,075 770,075 

Assigned to 
Parks, cultural and other recreational programs 2,732,597 2,732,597 

Unassigned 13,740,986 26924 13,767,910 

Total fund balances 13,896~74 11,126,972 87,463,382 112,486,628 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances $ 20,767,101 $ 11,730,763 $ 96,120,429 $ 128.618,293 

See notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

RECONCILATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GoVERNMENTAL F'uNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - GoVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

JUNE 30, 2016 

FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts reported in the statement of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources; and therefore, are not 
reported in governmental funds: 

Capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable are not due and payable in the CUITeDt period; and therefore, 
are not reported in governmental funds: 

Bonds payable 
Unamortized premiums and discounts 
Unamortized deferred refunding charges 
Compensated absences payable 
Net pension liability 
Deferred outflows related to pensions 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 

Other liabilities are not due and payable in the current period; and therefore, are not reported in governmental 
funds: 

Interest payable 

Unavailable revenue represents amounts that were not available to fund current expenditures; and therefore, 
are not reported in governmental funds: 

Unavailable revenue 

Internal service funds are used by managment to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds: 
Internal service fund assets and liabilities included in governmental activities in the statement of net 

position 
Internal service fund balance receivable from business-type activti.es from CUIDIIllllative prior years' 

activity 
Internal service fund balance receivable from business-type activties from current year activity 

NET POSmON, GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See notes to basic financial statements. 

$ 1,832,333,908 
(535,462,741) 

(152,889,300) 
(2,040,686) 
12,648,385 

(38,188,416) 
(188,258,408) 

29,325,058 
(36,132,469) 

{1,340,66Z) 

387,662 

27,757,951 

4,356,865 
559 789 

$ 112,486,628 

1,296,871,167 

(375,535,836) 

(1,340,667) 

387,662 

32,674,605 

$ 1,065,543,558 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

GoVERNMENTAL FuNl>S 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Special Revenue 
Fund 

Aggregate Other 
Public Safety Governmental 

General Fund Tax Funds 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 8,052,022 $ 30,337,588 $ 14,798,334 
Residential construction taxes 426,603 
Room taxes 564,601 
Franchise fees 21,307,694 
Licenses and permits 15,470,650 
Special assessments 2,167,784 
Charges for services 5,724,957 6,326 2,996,929 
Intergovernmental consolidated taxes 49,903,290 
Intergovernmental 4,278,389 60,942,509 
Fines and forfeitures 4,926,011 475,295 
Contributions 1,600 20,730 
Rents and royalties 568,094 97,000 
Inves1ment income 1,363,934 215,857 
Miscellaneous 581913 3 084 2,609,639 

Total revenues 112,178,554 30,346,998 85,315,281 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 21,617,683 347,911 
Jwlicial 5,077,945 510,619 
Public safety 84,378,262 23,920,214 18,252,538 
Public works 2,361,534 5,417,491 
Culture and recreation 8,403,975 4,750,381 
Community support 1,645,556 5 090 497 

Total current 123,484,955 23,920,214 34,369,437 

Capital outlay 
General government 7,590 1,073,003 
Public safety 2,480,751 
Public works 37,848,747 
Culture and recreation 12,337 2,874,615 
Community support 75 788 

Total capital outlay 19927 44,352,904 

Debt service 
Principal payments 4,534,700 
Interest and fiscal cbarges 7,397,302 

Total debt service 11,932,002 

Total expenditures 123,504,882 23,920,214 90,654,343 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (11,326,328) 6,426,784 (5,339,062) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Contingencies (500,000) 
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 226,042 4,874 36,193 
Tnmsfers in 23,522,649 18,060,063 
Transfers out (10,622,441) (777,000) (7,872,223) 

Total o1her financing sources (oses) 12,626d50 (772,126) 10,224,033 

(Cootinued) 
See notes to basic financial statements. 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 53,187,944 
426,603 
564,601 

21,307,694 
15,470,650 
2,167,784 
8,728,212 

49,903,290 
65,220,898 
5,401,306 

22,330 
665,094 

1,579,791 
3,194,636 

227,840,833 

21,965,594 
5,588,564 

126,551,014 
7,779,025 

13,154,356 
6,736,053 

181,774,606 

1,080,593 
2,480,751 

37,848,747 
2,886,952 

75 788 
44,372,831 

4,534,700 
7,397,302 

11,932,002 

238,079,439 

(10d38,60~ 

(500,000) 
267,109 

41,582,712 
(19d71,664) 
22,078,157 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

GoVERNMENTAL FuNl>S 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Special Revenue 
Fund 

Aggregate Other 
Public Safety Governmental 

General Fund Tax Funds 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 1,299,922 5,654,658 4,884,971 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 12,596,352 5,472,314 82,578,411 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 13,896d74 $ 11,126,972 $ 87,463,382 $ 

See notes to basic financial statements. 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

11,839,551 

100,647,077 

112,486,628 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

RECONCILATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FuNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - GoVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts reported in the statement of activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost 
of capital assets is capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives: 

Expenditures for capital assets $ 
Less current year depreciation, net of gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 

Revenues in the statement of activities, which do not provide current financial resources are not reported as 
revenues in governmental funds: 

Capital asset contributions 
Change in unavailable revenue 

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases 
liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in governmental 
funds, but the repayment reduces liabilities in the statement of net postition. This is the amount by which 
repayments exceeded debt issued 

Debt principal repayments 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources; 
and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds: 

Change in compensated absences payable 
Change in net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
Amortization of debt premiums and discounts 
Amortization of deferred refunding charges 
Change in accrued interest 

Intemal service funds are used by managm.ent to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds: 
Internal service fund change in net position included in governmental activities in the statement of 

activities 
The intemal service funds change in net position related to business-type activties 

CHANGE IN NET POSffiON, GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See notes to basic financial statements. 

44,543,015 
(44,814,241) 

5,238,921 
13 664 

4,534,700 

754,967 
7,096,062 

198,705 
(635,065) 

63 791 

12,208,067 
559 789 

$ 11,839,551 

(271,226) 

5,252,585 

4,534,700 

7,478,460 

12,767,856 

$ 41,601,925 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PROPRIETARY FuNDS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2016 

Governmental 
Business-type Activities Activities 

Aggregate Other 
Wastewater Enterprise Total Enterprise Internal Service 

__ U~tili=' =·1y~-~W~•=ter~U~tili='ty~ Funds Funds Funds 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 38,382,942 $ 46,119,657 $ 247,709 $ 84,750,308 $ 57,900,220 
Accounts receivable, net 6,678,480 7,830,587 12,989 14,522,056 4,434 
Prepaid items 615,992 35,741 21,393 673,126 364,059 
Due from other funds 216,857 
Due from other governments 608,200 608,200 
Inventories 420,889 2,573,150 69016 3,063,055 258143 

Total current assets 46,706,503 56,559,135 351107 103,616,745 58,743,713 

N oncurrent assets 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 

amortization 
Construction in progress 19,003,375 3,684,342 22,687,717 66,964 
Land 5,500 2,434,299 565,537 3,005,336 
Buildings and building improvemen1> 69,302,085 3,250,844 1,488,705 74,041,634 227,870 
Improvements other than buildings 23,780,466 13,623,018 3,099,139 40,502,623 83,293 
Infrastructure 247,219,137 83,153,306 330,372,443 
Machinery, equipment and software 3,354d75 736 653 4,090,928 ld17,589 

Total capital assets, net of accmnulated depreciation 
and amortization 362,664,838 106,882,462 5,153,381 474,700,681 1,595,716 

Other assets 
Prepaid land lease, net of current portion and 

amortization 20,625,000 20,625,000 
Refundable deposits 5 785 5785 

Total other assets 20,625,000 5 785 20,630,785 

Total noncurrent assets 383d89,838 106,882,462 5,159,166 495,331,466 I 595 716 

Total assets 429,996,341 163,441,597 5,510,273 598,948,211 60,339,429 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unamortized amounts related to pensions 1,092,938 1644 568 8267 2 745 773 299 442 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 581,749 1,298,939 109,567 1,990,255 3,858,529 
Accrued salaries and benefits 70,805 135,948 1,759 208,512 10,992,766 
Due to other funds 7,288 14,082 138 21,508 2,684 
Due to other governments 451,741 5,765,460 6,055 6,223,256 1,814 
Customer deposits 65,540 4,138,435 7,343 4,211,318 
Unearned revenue 43,133 43,133 
Compensated absences 139,134 277,543 416,677 46,712 
Interest payable 2,190,605 87,083 2,277,688 
Bonds and notes payable 4d35,328 2,835,000 7,070,328 

Total current liabilities 7 742 190 14,552,490 167 995 22,462,675 14,902,505 

(Continued) 
See notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PROPRIETARY FuNDS 

STATEMENT OF NET PosmON (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2016 

Governmental 
Business-type Activities Activities 

Aggregate Other 
Wastewater Enterprise Total Enterprise Internal Service 

__ U~tili=' =·1y~-~W~•=ter~U~tili~'ty.._ Funds Funds Funds 

N oncurrent liabilities 
Compensated absences 1,136,526 2,267,119 3,403,645 381,572 
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 15,305,563 
Bonds and notes payable 265,179,640 4,695,432 269,875,072 
Net Pension Liability 7 016 347 10,557,651 53 069 17,627,067 1,922,327 

Total noncurrent liabilities 273,332,513 17,520~02 53 069 290,905,784 17,609,462 

Total liabilities 281,074,703 32,072,692 221 064 313,368,459 32,511,967 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unamortized liabilities related to pensions 1,346,649 2,026,331 10186 3,383,166 368,953 

Total deferred in.flows of resources 1,346,649 2,026,331 10186 3,383,166 368,953 

NETPOSffiON 
Net investment in capital assets 93,249,870 99,352,030 5,153,381 197,755,281 1,595,716 
Restricted for 

Debt service 2,092,500 5,021,254 7,113,754 
Claims and judgements 2,400,000 

Unrestricted 53.325.557 26.613.858 133 909 80.073.324 23.762.235 

Total net position $ 148,667,927 $ 130,987,142 $ 5,287,290 284,942,359 $ 27,757,951 

Adjustment to report the cumulative internal balance for the 
net effect of the activity between the internal service 
funds and the enterprise funds over time (4,916,654) 

Net position of business-type activities $ 280,025,705 

See notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PROPRIETARY FuNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Governmental 
Business-!:£12s: Activities Activities 

Aggregate Other 
WastewaW Enterprise Total Enterprise Internal Service 

Utilitv Water Utility Funds Funds Funds 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Utility fees $ 40,695,324 $ 51,988,427 $ $ 92,683,751 $ 
Construction fees 297,878 417,900 715,778 
User fees 1,844,830 1,844,830 
Connection fees 2,363,188 736,712 3,099,900 
Other charges for services 8,742 1,932,616 1,941,358 40,742,095 
Fines and forfeitures 875,978 2,550,154 3,426,132 
Miscellaneous 468d01 799425 39541 1,307,167 

Total operating revenues 44 709 311 58,425d34 I 884 371 105,018,916 40,742,095 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries and wages 2,605,213 5,362,061 83,216 8,050,490 5,129,836 
Employee benefits 1,689,091 2,876,478 57,277 4,622,846 2,918,692 
Services and supplies 10,693,600 22,172,309 2,186,845 35,052,754 20,273,889 
Depreciation and amortization 14,077,284 5,596,499 226,356 19,900,139 817 991 

Total operating expenses 29,065,188 36,007,347 2,553,694 67,626,229 29,140,408 

Operating income (loss) 15,644,123 22,417,887 (669,323) 37,392,687 11,601,687 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 7,702 7,702 27,918 
Gain (loss) on capital asset disposition (8,194,522) 6,517 (8,188,005) (21,538) 
Interest and fiscal charges (14,841,346) (261,771) (15,103,117) 
Intergovernmental 6,509,631 6,509,631 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (16,518,535) (255,254) (16,773,789) 6 380 

Income (loss) before capital contnDutions and transfers (874,412) 22,162,633 (669,323) 20,618,898 11,608,067 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
Capital contributions 181 628 274 580 456,208 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers in 468,319 127,600 595,919 600,000 
Transfers out (5d96,16Z) (18,196d37) (14,563) (23,506,962) 

Total 1ransfers (5d96,16Z) (17,727,918) 113 037 (22,911,048) 600,000 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (5,988,951) 4,709d95 (556,286) (1,835,942) 12d08,067 

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY 
REPORTED 154,656,878 127,763,462 5,843,576 15,549,884 

Adjustment (1,485,615) 
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS ADWSTED 154,656,878 126d77,847 5,843,576 15,549,884 

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 148,667,927 $ 130,987,142 $ 5,287,290 $ 27,757,951 

Adjustment for the net effect of the current year activity 
between the intemal service funds and the enterprise 
funds (559,789) 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION, BUSINESS-TYPE 
ACTIVITIES $ (2,395,731) 

See notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PROPRIETARY FuNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Business-!:£12s: Activities 
Aggregate Other 

Governmental 
Activities 

WastewaW Enterprise Total Enterprise Internal Service 
Utilitv Water Utility Funds Funds Funds 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from customers $ 44,034,478 $ 56,507 ,080 $ 1,824,584 $ 102,366,142 $ 37,048,988 
Cash received from interfund services 411,346 411,346 3,921,327 
Cash received from other souces 2,859,233 799,425 39,541 3,698,199 
Cash payments for goods and services (9. 777. 770) (21,531,164) (2,211,768) (33,520,702) (20,991,772) 
Cash payments for employee services (4,235,143) (7,749,499) (99,232) (12,083,874) (3,630,589) 
Cash payments for interfund services !260,059) !388,335) !5,815) !654,209) !51,826) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 32,620,739 28,048,853 !452,690) 60,216,902 16J96,128 

CASH FLOWS FROMNONCAPITAL FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Transfers in 468,319 127,600 595,919 600,000 
Tnmsfers out (5,296,167) (18,196,237) (14,563) (23,506,967) 
Interest payments on debt 6,509,631 6,509,631 

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities 1J13,464 !17,727,918) 113 037 !16,401,41ZJ 600,000 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTMTIES 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,214,866) (1,490,187) (5,705,053) (563,815) 
Proceeds received from disposal of capital assets 4,314,625 4,314,625 
Principal payments on debt (6,046,550) (3,031,600) (9,078,150) 
Interest payments on debt (14,896,629) (287,337) (15,183,966) 
Amortization of premiums/discounts (106,341) !106,341) 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital financing activities !20,843,420) (4,915,465) !25,758,885) !563,815) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES 
Investment income received 7 702 7702 27 918 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUNALENTS 12,998,485 5,405,470 (339,653) 18,064,302 16,360,231 

CASH AND CASH EQUNALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 25,384,457 40 714187 587 362 66,686,006 41,539,989 

CASH AND CASH EQUNALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 38,382,942 $ 46,119,657 $ 247 709 $ 84,750,308 $ 57,900,220 

(Continued) 
See notes to basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PROPRIETARY FuNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Governmental 
Business-!:£12s: Activities Activities 

Aggregate Other 
WastewaW Enterprise Total Enterprise Internal Service 

Utili!I Water Utilill:, Funds Funds Funds 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

Operating income (loss) $ 15,644,123 $ 22,417,887 $ (669,323) $ 37,392,687 $ ll,601,687 
Adjustments to reconcile opera.ting income (loss) to net 

cash provided by (used in) operating activities 
Depreciation 14,077,284 5,596,499 226,357 19,900,140 817,991 
Provision for uncollecb.Dle receivables (26,350) 7,056 (19,294) 
(Increase) decrease in operating assets 

Accounts receivable (180,282) (1,050,432) (11,780) (1,242,494) (3,997) 
Due from other governments 94,112 94,ll2 
Due from other funds 411,346 (7) 411,339 232,217 
Inventories (142,714) (ll,934) (2,556) (157,204) 
Prepaid items 761,458 1,763 (4,765) 758,456 (13,225) 
Refundable deposit 2,296,920 2,296,920 

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities 
Accounts payable (44,826) 459,670 (17,603) 397,241 (682,468) 
Accrued salaries and benefits (214,959) (241,128) (2,175) (458,262) 2,065,502 
Due ro other funds (5,633) (5,521) (ll,154) (794) 
Due to other governments 341,912 191,646 533,558 (22,190) 
Cust.omer deposits (75,353) (4,570) (79,923) 
Unearned revenues (3,896) (3,896) 
Compensated absences 65,776 95,079 160,855 (44,309) 
Postemployment benefits other than pensions (46,082) 252,275 37628 243,821 2 345 714 

Total adjustments 16,976,616 5,630,966 216,633 22,824,215 4 694 441 

Net cash provided by (used in) operatiog activities $ 32,620,739 $ 28,048,853 $ (452,690) $ 60,216,902 $ 16d96,128 

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Contribution of capital assets $ 181,628 $ 274,580 $ 456,208 $ 

See notes to basic financial statements. 
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ASSETS 
Cash, cash equivalents and investments 
Accounts receivable, net 
Interest receivable 
Special assessments receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other governments 
Due t.o developers 
Due to others 

Total liabilities 

NETPOSffiON 

See notes to basic financial statements. 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

FIDUCIARY FuNDS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2016 

$ 

$ 

Agency Funds 

13,050,357 
2,736,204 

625 
4499 

15.791.685 

275,248 
2,868,125 

12,648,312 

15,791,685 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting Entity 

The City of North Las Vegas (the City), was iocorporated io 1946 and is governed by an elected Mayor and City 
Council comprised of four members. The City is a full-service city located at the northern tip of the Las Vegas valley. 
Services provided by the City ioclude a municipal court, public safety (police and fire), water and wastewater, 
highways and streets, planning and zoniog, parks and recreational facilities, libraries, community development and 
general admioistrative services. 

The fioancial statements of the City have been prepared io conformity with accountiog principles generally accepted io 
the United States. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishiog governmental accountiog and fioancial reporting principles. 

GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by Statement No. 39, Determining Whether 
Certain Organizations are Component Units and Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, defioes 
the reporting entity as the primary government and those component units for which the primary government is 
fioancially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the 
primary government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleadiog or 
iocomplete. Fioancial accountability is defioed as the appoiotment of a votiog majority of the organization's governiog 
board, and either the ability of the primary government to impose its will on the organization or the possibility that the 
organization will provide a fioancial benefit to or impose a fmancial burden on the primary government. In addition to 
fioancial accountability, component units can be other organizations io which the economic resources received or held 
by that organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, the primary 
government is entitled to or has the ability to otherwise access a majority of the economic resources received or held by 
that organization and the resources to which the primary government is entitled or has the ability to otherwise access 
are significant to the primary government. 

The City has complied with GASB Statements Nos. 14, 39 and 61 by examioiog its position relative to other entities 
and has determined that there are no requirements that would cause the basic fioancial statements of the City to be 
iocluded io any other entities' fioancial reports. The North Las Vegas Redevelopment Agency (the Agency) and the 
North Las Vegas Library District (the Library District) are legally separate entities for budget reportiog purposes as 
required by the State of Nevada (the State or Nevada), Department of Taxation. However, they both have substantially 
the same governiog body as the City and the City provides a majority of services required by the Agency and the 
Library District, such as fioancial administration, humao resources administration, and redevelopment planning. Based 
on these factors, the Agency and Library District are considered to be blended component units and are reported as 
special revenue funds of the City. No other entities were determined to be component units of the City. 

Basic Financial Statements 

The government-wide fioancial statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities and present 
consolidated ioformation for the City's nonfiduciary activities. Governmental activities, which normally are supported 
by taxes and iotergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from busioess-type activities, which rely to a 
significant extent on user fees and charges for support. 

Included io the statement of net position are capital assets and long-term liabilities, iocludiog general payment 
obligations, revenue bonds and compensated absences. Net position is classified as 1) net investment in capital assets, 
2) restricted net position, or 3) unrestricted net position. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are 
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment 
and include indirect expenses allocated to each function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment, and 2) grants and contributions, which are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other revenues not restricted for use by a particular function or segment are 
reported as general revenues. 

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds, even though the 
latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental and proprietary 
funds are reported as separate columns on the fund financial statements. Governmental fund financial statements 
include a balance sheet and a statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances with schedules 
presented to reconcile fund balances presented in the governmental fund financial statements to net position presented 
in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary fund financial statements include a statement of net position, 
a statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows. 

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary funds financial statements. Revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. As a general rule, 
the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and 
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become 
both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current 
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues 
to be available if they are collected within 90 days of fiscal year end. 

The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the City are property taxes, 
intergovernmental consolidated taxes (sales, cigarette, motor vehicle privilege and liquor taxes), ganiing taxes, gasoline 
taxes, grants, franchise fees and interest. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only 
when the City receives payment. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when the liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service 
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and judgments, compensated absences and postemployment 
benefits other than pensions are recorded only when payment is due. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund - Accounts for all financial resources not required to be accounted for in some other fund. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund - Accounts for voter-approved property tax overrides to be used 
exclusively for public safety programs. 

The City reports the following non-major governmental fund types: 

Special Revenue Funds - Accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specific purposes. 

Debt Service Funds - Accounts for the accumulation of fmancial resources that are restricted, committed or 
assigned to the repayment of debt principal and interest. 

Proorietacy Fund Financial Statements 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services, and producing and delivering goods in connection with the 
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's proprietary funds are 
charges for goods and services and other user fees. Operating expenses include the cost of goods and services, 
administrative expenses, and capital asset depreciation. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Wastewater Utility Fund - Accounts for the collection from the residents of the City and the transmission of sewage 
through the system infrastructure for treatment and release into Lake Mead. 

Water Utility Fund - Accounts for the delivery of water services through the system infrastructure to the residents 
of the City and other service areas. 

The City reports the following non-major proprietary fund: 

Municipal Golf Courses Fund - Accounts for the operations of a nine-hole par-3 golf course and an 18-hole par-72 
championship course. 

The City reports the following non-major proprietary fund type: 

Internal Service Funds - Accounts for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to 
other departments or agencies of the government and to other governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis. 

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements 

Fiduciary fund fmancial statements, comprised of a statement of net position, report the City's activities that are 
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of operational results. Fiduciary funds are 
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. 

The City reports the following fiduciary fund type: 

Agency Funds - Accounts for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other 
governments or other funds. 
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Assets and Liabilities 

Cash. Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The City's cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with 
original maturities of thiee months or less from the date of acquisition. 

The City invests by individual fund in two instances, but primarily pools cash resources of all other funds in order to 
facilitate the management of cash and investments. With this approach, the City is able to invest the monies at higher 
interest rates and with longer maturities. With the exception of those funds that are legally required to retain interest 
earnings, all interest earnings are reported in the general fund. 

The proprietary funds participate in the City's internal investment management pool. This pool has the general 
characteristics of a demand deposit account in that the proprietary funds may effectively withdraw amounts from the 
pool at any time without prior notice or penalty. Accordingly, amounts invested in this pool by proprietary funds are 
considered to be cash equivalents. Monies that are not required for immediate obligations are invested. 

Investments are reported at fair value, regardless of the length of time remaining to maturity. 

Receivables. Payables and Unavailable or Unearned Revenues 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services 
rendered. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures or expenses initially made from it 
that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of 
expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed. The resulting payables and receivables, which are outstanding at year end, 
are referred to as due to or from other funds in the fund financial statements. Any residual balances between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as 
internal balances. 

Upon the certification of tax rates by the State Tax Commission, the Clark County (the County) Commission levies the 
tax rate for the fiscal period begiuning with the succeeding July I. Effective upon the tax levy on July 1 each year, a 
perpetual lien is recorded against the property assessed until the tax and any penalty charges and interest, which may 
accrue thereon, are paid. The County Assessor assesses all real and personal property and the County Treasurer bills 
and collects the City's share of property taxes. Real property taxes are due on the third Monday in August of each year 
and may be paid in quarterly installments on or before the third Monday in August and first Mondays in October, 
January and March. In the event ofnonpayment, the County Treasurer is authorized to hold the property for two years, 
subject to redemption upon payment of taxes, penalties and costs, together with interest from the date the taxes were 
due until paid. If delinquent taxes are not paid within the two-year redemption period, the County Treasurer obtains a 
deed to the property free of all encumbrances. Upon receipt of a deed, the County Treasurer may sell the property to 
satisfy the tax lien. The County Treasurer remits on a monthly basis current and delinquent property tax collections to 
the City. 

Property taxes receivable that are not expected to be collected within 90 days of year end are classified as unavailable 
revenue in the fund financial statements rather than current revenue since the asset is not available to satisfy current 
obligations. 

Unearned revenues arise when the City receives resources before it has a legal claim to them as when property taxes 
levied for the following tax year are received before year end. 
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Inventories and Prepaid Items 

The City's inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method, with the exception of inventory 
held for resale, which is valued at market. In the governmental fund financial statements, inventories are recorded as 
expenditures when purchased rather than when consumed. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. In the governmental fund financial statements, prepaid items are 
recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

Restricted Assets 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments related to customer deposits, unspent bond proceeds and bond retirement 
(amounts accumulated to pay debt service payments over the next 12 months) are classified and reported as restricted 
assets. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are reported in proprietary fund financial statements and in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities colunms in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as those assets with an 
initial cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of more than one year. All purchased capital assets are 
valued at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated assets are recorded at their estimated fair value on the date 
donated. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not significantly increase the functionality of the assets or 
materially extend the assets' useful lives are not capitalized. 

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings and building improvements 
Improvements other than buildings 
Infrastructure 
Machinery, equipment and software 

Long-term Liabilities 

Years 

40 
15-40 

15-100 
5-10 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
statement of net position. Premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over 
the life of the bonds using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. For current and 
advance refundings resulting in defeasance of debt, the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying 
amount of the defeased debt is deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense using the straight-line 
method, which also approximates the effective interest method. Debt issuance costs are expensed in the period 
incurred. 

In the governmental fund financial statements, premiums, discounts and debt issuance costs are recognized in the 
period they are paid or received. The face amount of debt issued and premiums received on debt issuances are reported 
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Debt issuance costs, 
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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Compensated Absences 

It is tbe City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned vacation, holiday and sick leave benefits !bat would be 
paid to tbem upon separation from City service if not previously taken. A liability for tbese obligations is reported in 
tbe government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements as incurred. A liability for compensated absences is 
reported in tbe governmental fund financial statements only to tbe extent it is due and payable at year end. 
Expenditures for compensated absences are recognized by tbe applicable fund when paid. 

Deferred Compensation Plans 

In addition to tbe retirement plan disclosed in Note 4, tbe City offers its employees two deferred compensation plans 
created in accordance witb Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The City is not required to and does not contribute to 
tbe deferred compensation plans. The assets of these plans are held in trust outside tbe control of tbe City. Since tbe 
assets of these plans are not considered assets of tbe City and are not subject to tbe claims of tbe City's general 
creditors, these plans are not reported in tbe government-wide or fund financial statements. 

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (QPEB) 

In accordance witb tbe transition rules of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers 
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, tbe City elected to apply its measurement and recognition 
requirements on a prospective basis and set its beginning net OPEB obligation at zero upon adoption. The annual 
OPEB cost reported in tbe accompanying financial statements is equal to tbe annual required contribution (ARC) oftbe 
City, calculated by using an actuarial valuation based upon tbe same methods and assumptions applied in determining 
tbe plan's funding requirements. The net OPEB obligation at year end is determined by adding tbe annual OPEB cost 
to tbe net OPEB obligation at tbe beginning oftbe year and deducting any contributions to tbe plan during tbe year. 

Multiple-Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The City uses tbe same basis used in tbe Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada's (PERS) Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report, for reporting its proportionate share of tbe PERS collective net pension liability, deferred 
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, including information related to PERS 
fiduciary net position and related additions to/deductions. Benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized by PERS when due and payable in accordance witb tbe benefit terms. PERS investments 
are reported at fair value. 

Deferred Outnows and Inflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to future periods; 
and therefore, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The government­
wide and proprietary funds statement of net position reports deferred refunding charges (tbe difference between tbe 
reacquisition price and tbe net carrying amount of tbe defeased debt), which will be amortized over tbe life of tbe 
related debt and amounts related to penisons, including 1) tbe changes in proportion and differences between actual 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions related to pensions, which will be amortized over tbe average 
expected remaining service life of all employees !bat are provided witb pension benefits, and 2) contributions made 
subsequent to tbe measurement date, which will be recognized in tbe subsequent year. 
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Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not 
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The governmental funds balance sheet reports 
unavailable property tax revenues, which will be recognized as revenue in the period that the amounts become 
available. The government-wide and proprietary funds statement of net position reports amounts related to pensions, 
including 1) the differences between expected and actual experience and changes of assumptions, which will be 
amortized over the average expected remaining service life of all employees that are provided with pension benefits, 
and 2) the net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments, which will be amortized over five 
years. 

Net Position 

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net position is reported as 1) net investment in 
capital assets, 2) restricted, or 3) unrestricted. Net position is reported as restricted when constraints placed on it are 
either 1) imposed by external parties (such as creditors, grantors, contributors or other governments), or 2) imposed by 
law through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

Fund Balance 

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, as follows: 

Nonspendable fund balances include items that cannot be spent. This includes amounts that are not in a spendable 
form (for example, inventories and prepaid items) and amounts that are legally or contractually required to remain 
intact, such as a permanent fund principal balance. 

Restricted fund balances have constraints placed upon the use of the resources either by an external party or 
imposed by law through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

Committed fund balances can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by a resolution or 
ordinance (both are considered equally binding) of the City Council, which is the City's highest level of decision­
making authority. These constraints remain binding unless removed or changed in the same manner used to create 
the constraints. 

Assigned fund balances include amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for a specific purpose, 
but are neither restricted nor committed. Such intent should be expressed by the City Council or appropriately 
authorized officials. The City Manager and Finance Director have been authorized by the City Council in the 
budget approval process to make all fund balance assignments. Constraints imposed on the use of assigned fund 
balances can be removed or changed without formal City Council action. For governmental funds, other than the 
general fund, this is the classification for residual amounts that are not restricted, committed or nonspendable. 

Unassigned fund balance is the classification used by the general fund for residual amounts not included in the four 
categories described above. 
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Prioritization and Use of Available Resources 

When both restricted resources and other resources (i.e., committed, assigned and unassigned) can be used for the same 
purposes, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first. Furthermore, when committed, assigned and 
unassigned resources can be used for the same purpose, it is the City's policy to use committed resources first, assigned 
second, and unassigned last. 

Interfund Activity 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services 
rendered. The resulting payables and receivables, which are outstanding at year end, are referred to as due to or from 
other funds in the fund financial statements. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures or 
expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are reported as expenditures in the 
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed. Any residual balances between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as 
internal balances. 

Use of Estimates 

Timely preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States requires management to make estimates that affect reported amounts. Accordingly, these estimates may require 
revision in future periods. Significant estimates include liabilities for compensated absences, pensions, 
postemployement benefits other than pensions and useful lives of capital assets. 

Note 2. Stewardship and Accountability 

Budgets and Budgetarv Accounting 

The City adopts annual budgets, in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), in which annual budgets are 
legally adopted by the City Council for all funds except agency funds. Budgeted revenues and appropriations for all 
fund types are consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

On or before April 15, the Finance Director submits a tentative budget for the ensuing fiscal year to the City Council, 
the Nevada Department of Taxation and the citizens through public hearings. The Nevada Department of Taxation 
notifies the City Council of whether or not the budget is in compliance with the law and appropriate regulations. 
Public hearings, at which all changes made to the tentative budget are indicated, are conducted on the third Tuesday in 
May. The City Council adopts the budget prior to June I and submits it to the Nevada Department of Taxation for 
fins! approval. 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control tool during the fiscal year for all funds. 
Appropriations and encumbered appropriations lapse at year end. 

In accordance with the NRS, actual expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations of the various governmental 
functions, excluding the debt service function, of the general, special revenue, and capital projects funds. Pursuant to 
NRS 354.626, expenditures in excess of budgeted appropriations are allowed for bond repayments, medium-term 
obligation repayments, and other long-term contracts expressly authorized by law. The sum of operating and 
nonoperating expenses in proprietary funds also may not exceed total appropriations. 
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Per the NRS, the City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between functions if the City Council is 
notified at the next regular meetiog and the action is noted in the official minutes. Amendments, which affect the total 
fund appropriations or transfers between funds, are accomplished through formal City Council approval. Amendments 
to the adopted budget are made a matter of public record by actions of the City Council. The budgets reflected in the 
accompanying financial statements have been amended in accordance with the NRS. 

Prior Period Adjustment 

Net position of business-type activities and the water utility enterprise fund as of July l, 2015, have been retroactively 
reduced by $1,485,615 for expenses incurred during fiscal year 2015 that were unpaid at June 30, 2015, but were 
inadvertantly not accrued. 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemplayment Benefit Plans Other Than 
Pension Plans, effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016. The objective of this 
statement is to improve the usefolness of information about postemployment benefits other than pensions (other 
postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general purpose external financial reports of state and local 
governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing accountability. Management has not completed a full 
assessment of the statement to determine if it will have a material effect on the City's net position, results of operations, 
or cash flows. 

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit 
Plans Other Than Pension Plans, effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. The primary objective of 
this statement is to improve accountiog and financial reportiog by state and local governments for postemployment 
benefits other than pensions (other posteroployment benefits or OPEB). It also improved information provided by state 
and local governmental eroployers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. Management 
has coropleted a preliminary assessment of the statement and has determined it will have a material effect on the City's 
net position, results of operations, and cash flows. 

In August 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, effective for financial statements for 
periods beginning after December 15, 2015. This statement requires governments that enter into tax abatement 
agreements to disclose certain information regarding the agreements with the goals of improving financial reportiog by 
giving users of financial statements essential information that is not consistently or comprehensively reported to the 
public at present. Management has not completed a full assessment of the statement to determine if it will have a 
material effect on the City's net position, results of operations, or cash flows. 

In December 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer 
Defined Benefit Pension Plans, effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2015. This Statement addresses a 
practice issue regarding the scope and applicability of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reportiog for 
Pensions. Management has not coropleted a full assessment of the statement to determine if it will have a material 
effect on the City's net position, results of operations, or cash flows. 
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In January 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units-an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14, effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2016. 
The objective of this statement is to improve financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation 
requirements for certain component units. This Statement amends the blending requirements established in paragraph 
53 of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity. Management has completed its assessment of this statement 
and has determined that it will not have a material effect on the City's net position, results of operations, or cash flows. 

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, effective for financial 
statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The objective of this statement is to improve accounting 
and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance 
for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement. Mansgement has completed its assessment of 
this statement and has determined that it will not have a material effect on the City's net position, results of operations, 
or cash flows. 

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues-an amendment ofGASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, 
and No. 73, effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of 
this Statement for the selection of assumptions in a circumstance in which an employer's pension liability is measured 
as of a date other than the employer's most recent fiscal year-end. In that circumstance, the requirements for the 
selection of assumptions are effective for that employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of 
the pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017. The objective of this statement is to address certain issues that have 
been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets 
That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 
67 and 68. Mansgement has not completed a full assessment of the statement to determine if it will have a material 
effect on the City's net position, results of operations, or cash flows. 

Note 3. Detailed Notes on all Funds 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

At June 30, 2016, the City's cash, cash equivalents and investments (including restricted and designated amounts) were 
as follows: 

Pooled cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand 
Pooled inves1ments 
Non-pooled invesbnents 

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 
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$ 6,886,012 
74,015 

238,113,513 
4,390,500 

$ 249,464,040 
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At June 30, 2016, total cash, cash equivalents and inves1ments were presented in the City's financial statements as 
follows: 

Unrestricted Restricted Desi8!!!;ted Total 

Governmental activities $ 149,159,311 $ 2,504,065 $ $ 151,663,376 
Business-type activities 77,636,554 7,113,754 84,750,308 

226, 795,865 9,617,819 236,413,684 
Fiduciary Funds 13,050,356 13,050,356 

Total cash. cash equivalents and inves1ments $ 226, 795,865 $ 22,668,175 $ $ 249,464,040 

The City manages its investment portfolio in compliance with the NRS and its adopted Cash and Investment Financial 
Policy. Pursuant to NRS 355.170, pemritted inves1ments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and agencies, not to 
exceed 10 years to maturity; negotiable certificates of deposit issued by insured financial institutions, notes or short­
term negotiable bonds issued by other Nevada local governments; bankers' acceptances eligible for rediscount with the 
Federal Reserve Bank that do not exceed 180 days in maturity and 20% of total investments; commercial paper having 
an A-1 rating or equivalent, not to exceed 270 days to maturity and 20% of total inves1ment; and money market mutual 
funds invested only in federal government agency securities with an AAA rating or equivalent or in repurchase 
agreements fully collateralized by such securities. Additionally, the City is pemritted to purchase for investment the 
following securities, with certain limitations: notes, bonds and obligations issued by corporations, collateralized 
mortgage obligations and asset-backed securities. 

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, defines fair value, establishes a framework for 
measuring fair value and provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 

Level 1. Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets. 

Level 2. Inputs are other observable inputs. 

Level 3. Inputs are unobservable. 

The fair value measurement level within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is deemed 
siguificant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used maximize the use of observable inputs and 
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 

The estimated fair values of the City's U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. government-sponsored securities (excluding 
U.S. Agency securities), money market mutual funds and certificates of deposit are based on quoted market prices 
provided by recoguized broker dealers (Level 1 inputs). The estimated fair value of its U.S. Agency securities is based 
on a matrix pricing model that maximizes the use of observable inputs for similar securities as provided by recoguized 
broker dealers (Level 2 inputs). The estimated fair value of the City's Local Government Investment Pool investment is 
based on the City's proportionate share of the value of the pooled investments (Level 3 inputs). 
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Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adveisely affect the fair value of an investment. 
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market 
interest rates. One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination 
of short-term and long-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is 
maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for 
daily operations. 

At June 30, 2016, the City had the following investment types and maturities: 

Reported Investment Maturities 
Amount ~Years) 

Q:air Value} Less Than One One to Four 

U.S. Treasury securities 
U.S. government-sponsored securities 
Money market mutual funds 
Local government invesbnent pool 
Certificates of deposit 

Total investments 

Credit Risk 

$ 54,228,787 $ 
71,846,406 
34,395,800 
78,833,020 

3,200,000 

$ 242,504,013 $ 

$ 54,228,787 
26,008,005 45,838,401 
34,395,800 
78,833,020 

3,200,000 

142,436,825 $ 100,067,188 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
One of the ways that the City manages its credit risk is by purchasing investment securities that are rated AAA. 

At June 30, 2016, the credit rating for each investment type was as follows: 

Reported 
Amount AAA or Not Requrred 

Q:air Value) AA+ to be Rated Unrated 

U.S. Treasury securities $ 54,228,787 $ $ 54,228,787 $ 
U.S. government-sponsored securities 71,846,406 71,846,406 
Money market mutual funds 34,395,800 34,395,800 
Local government investment pool 78,833,020 78,833,020 
Certificates of deposit 3d00,000 3,200,000 

Total investments $ 242,504,013 $ 106~2d06 $ 54,228,787 $ 82,033,020 

Custodial Credit Risk 

For deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the entity's deposits may not be returned to it. Pursuant 
to NRS 356.005, local governments may deposit public money in any insured state or national bank, in any insured 
credit union or in any insured savings and loan association; however, the NRS does not specifically require collateral 
for demand deposits. The City's demand deposits were covered at year end by the Federal Depository Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 for each financial institution with which the City has demand deposit accounts. 
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At June 30, 2016, the City's cash deposits in financial institutions was $8,250,156. The City participates in a collateral 
pool for public deposits program administered by the State Treasurer. The program serves as an alternative method to 
allow financial institutions and local government agencies within the State to participate in a pooled collateralization of 
their deposits in an efficient and cost effective manner. The program provides for centralized reporting, processing and 
management of all pledged collateral through the State Treasurer's Office. The State Treasurer requires that acceptable 
securities pledged as collateral be maintained at 102% of those entities' deposits participating in the pool and that the 
pledged securities be held by a third party for the benefit of the State Treasurer. As such, at year end the FDIC covered 
$250,000 and the remaining $78,583,020 was secured by the State Treasurer's pooled collateral program at 102%. 

For investments, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the City will not be 
able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of the outside party. 

At June 30, 2016, the City's individual investments in U.S. Treasuries, U.S. government-sponsored securities and 
federal agencies were held in the City's name either by the City's contracted external investment manager or the 
counterparty to the transaction's trust department. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City's investment in a single issuer of 
securities. 

Investments in any one investment type that represent 5% or more of total investments at June 30, 2016, were as 
follows: 

U.S. Treasury securities 
U.S. government-sponsored securities 
Money market mutual funds 
Local government investment pool 
Certificates of deposit 

Capital Assets 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, capital asset activity was as follows: 

Balance Increases and 
Jul~ 1, 2015 transfers• 

Governmental activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated or 

amortized 
Construction in progress $ 233,569,190 $ 42,380,227 $ 
Land 190,800,644 48 745 

Total capital assets not being depreciated or 
amortized 424,369,834 42,428,972 

(Continued) 

Decreases and 
transfers• 

$ 

Percentage of 
Portfolio 

22.36 % 
29.63 % 
14.18 % 
32.51 % 

1.32 % 

Transfers 

(41,279,781) $ 

!41,279,781) 

Balance 
June 301 2016 

234,669,636 
190,849,389 

425,519,025 
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Capital assets being depreciated or amortized 

Balance 
July 1, 2015 

Increases and Decreases and 
transfers • transfers • 

Buildings and building improvements $ 216,340,205 $ $ (10) $ 
Improvements o1her 1han buildings 
Iofrastructure 
Machinery, equipment and software 

Total capital assets being depreciated or 
amortized 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
Buildings and building improvements 
Improvements o1her 1han buildings 
Iofrastructure 
Machinery, equipment and software 

Total accumulated depreciation and 
amortization 

Total capital assets being depreciated or 
amortized, net 

Total governmental activities 

• Includes transfers from and to proprietary funds, 
if any. 

Business-type activities 
Capital assets not being depreciated or 

amortized 
Construction in progress 
Land 

Total capital assets not being depreciated or 
amortized 

Capital assets being depreciated or amortized 
Buildings and building improvements 
Improvements other than buildings 
Iofrastructure 
Machinery, equipment and software 

Total capital assets being depreciated or 
amortized 

79,393,100 
1,002,946,846 

71,441,446 

1,370,121,597 

(45,486,937) 
(30,055,777) 

(362,540,391) 
!62,633,424) 

!500,716,529) 

869,405,068 

$ 1,293,774,902 $ 

$ 

Balance 
July I, 2015 

32,895,394 
15,514,483 

48 409 877 

87,055,606 
67,053,810 

473,858,690 
10,693,066 

638,661,172 

$ 

(Cootinued) 

22,300 
5,183,490 (3,934) 
2,714,478 !945,926) 

7,920,268 (949,870) 

(5,277,271) 
(3,404,887) 

(34,099,011) 
!2,787,910) 

!45,569,079) 

!37,648,811) !949,870) 

4 780 161 $ !949,870) $ 

Increases and Decreases and 
transfers • transfers • 

4,388,669 $ $ 
02,509,147) 

4,388,669 !12,509,147) 

456,207 
689 503 

1145 710 

Transfers 

$ 
4,049,788 

36,468,665 
761327 

41,279,780 

861,691 

861691 

42,141,471 

Balance 
June 30. 2016 

216,340, 195 
83,465,188 

1,044,595,067 
73,971,325 

1,418,371,775 

(50, 764,208) 
(33,460,664) 

(396,639,402) 
!64,559,643) 

!545,423,91Z) 

872,947,858 

861 690 $ 1,298,466,883 

Transfers 

(14,596,346) $ 

!J4,596,342J 

14,473,433 
122 913 

14,596,346 

Balance 
June 301 2016 

22,687,717 
3,005,336 

25,693,053 

87,055,606 
67,053,810 

488, 788,330 
11,505,482 

654,403,228 
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Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
Buildings and building improvements $ 
Improvements other than buildings 
lnfras1ructure 
Machinery, equipment and software 

Total accumulated depreciation and 
amortization 

Total capital assets being depreciated or 
amortized, net 

Balance 
July 1, 2015 
(Restated) 

(10,670,998) $ 
(24,643,132) 

(144,110,601) 
(6,704,128) 

!186,128,859) 

452,532,313 

Increases and Decreases and 
transfers • transfers • 

(2,342,974) $ 
(1,908,055) 

(14,315,240) 
(700,472) 

!19,1l66,741) 

(18,121,031) 

$ 

Total business-type activities $ 500,942,190 $ (13,732,362) $ (12,509,147) $ 

* Includes transfers from and to governmental 
funds, if any. 

Transfers 

9,954 
(9,954) 

14,596,346 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, charges, by function, for depreciation expense were as follows: 

Governmental activities 
General government $ 33,870,073 
Judicial 84,571 
Public safety 3,023,677 
Public works 5,285,905 
Culture and recreation 3,293,803 
Community support 12024 

Total depreciation expense, governmental activities $ 45,570,053 

Business-type activities 
Wastewater $ 13,443,884 
Water 5,596,499 
Municipal golf courses 226,356 

Total depreciation expense, business-type activities $ 19,266,739 

(Continued) 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
June 30. 2016 

(13,013,972) 
(26,551,187) 

(158,415,887) 
(7,414,554) 

!205,395,600) 

449,007,628 

474,700,681 
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Due To and From Other Funds 

During the course of operations, numerous reimbursable transactions occur between individual funds for goods 
provided or services rendered. At June 30, 2016, the resulting payables and receivables (reported as due to and from 
other funds) resulting from the time lag between the dates that reimbursable transactions occur and payments between 
funds are made, were as follows: 

General Fund 
Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Aggregate Other Governmental Funds 
Wastewater Utility Enterprise Fund 
Water Utility Enterprise Fund 
Aggregate 01her Enterprise Funds 
Internal Service Funds 

Interfund Transfers 

$ 

$ 

Receivable 

$ 

216 857 

Payable 

102,448 
59,667 
30,550 

7,288 
14,082 

138 
2684 

216 857 $====2=1=6=85=7 

Transfers of unrestricted revenues collected in various funds are used to fmance various programs and expenditures 
accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorization. For the year ended June 30, 2016, interfund 
transfers were as follows: 

Transfer In Fund Transfer Out Fund Amount 

General Fund Aggregate Other Governmental Funds $ 30,245 
Wastewakr Utility Enterprise Fund 5,296,167 
Water Utility Enterprise Fund 18,196,237 

Aggregate 01her Governmental Funds General Fund 9,894,841 
Public Safety Tax Special Revenue Fund 777,000 
Aggregate Other Governmental Funds 7,374,792 

Water Utility Enterprise Fund Aggregate Other Governmental Funds 468,319 
Aggregate 01her Enterprise Funds General Fund 127,600 
Internal Service Funds General Fund 600 000 

$ 42,765,201 

During fiscal year 2013, the City transferred approximately $24.0 million from the wastewater and water utility 
enterprise funds to the general fund as payment in lieu of taxes, franchise fees and general overhead charges. During 
the 76th legislative session in 2011, Nevada Assembly Bill 471, amending NRS 354.613, was passed. This new law 
requires municipalities making such transfers to eliminate any amounts in excess of actual costs by 2021. 

Depending on the timing and amounts of these reductions in transfers required to support general fund operations, the 
City may fall below the statutory minimum operating fund balance of 4% and be required to enter into supervised fiscal 
receivership by the Nevada Department of Taxation under NRS 354.685. 

Long-term Liabilities 

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds; accordingly, long-term liabilities for these funds 
are included in the following table as part of governmental activities. 

(Continued) 
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Long-term liabilities activity for tbe year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows: 

Governmental activities 

General obligation bonds 

$32,500,000 2003 Judicial/Public Safety 
Facilities bonds due in annual 
installments through March 2023; 
interest varies between 3% and 5% 

$105,000,000 2006 Civic Center 
Facilities bonds due in annual 
installments through May 2036; 
interest varies between 4.25% and 5% 

$7,630,000 2007A Judicial/Public Safety 
Facilities refunding bonds due in 
annual installments beginning May 
2017 through May 2023; inten:st is at 
4.15% 

$3,145,000 2010 Libnuy District 
medium-term refunding bonds due in 
annual installments through April 
2020; interest is at 4.38% 

$17,090,000 2010 Building Projects 
medium-term refunding bonds due in 
annual installments beginning July 
2013 through July 2020; interest is at 
4.18% 

$27,o70,000 2011 Building Projects 
refunding bonds due in aonual 
installments beginning June 2016 
through June 2036; inten:st variea 
between 3% and 5% 

Total general obligation bonds 

Special assessment bonds 

$3,250,000 2007 SIAD No. 61 (Aon 
Road) improvement bonds due in semi­
annual installments through March 
2017; interest is at 3.829% 

$1,250,000 2007 SIAD No. 62 (Clayton 
Slreet) improvement bonds due in 
semi-annual installments through 
March 2017; interest is at 3.829% 

$12,680,000 2007 SIAD No. 63 (Lamb 
Blvd.) improvement bonds due in semi­
annual installments through May 2017; 
interest varies between 3.4% and 4% 

$ 

Balance 
July l, 2015 

6,855,000 $ 

94,455,000 

7,630,000 

2,095,000 

14,070,000 

27,070,000 

152,175,000 

610,400 

288,600 

4,350,000 

(Continued) 

Increases 

$ 

Decreases 

$ 

Balance 
June 30, 2016 

6,855,000 $ 

94,455,000 

7,630,000 

(385,000) 1,710,000 

(2,110,000) 11,960,000 

(200,000) 26,870,000 

(2,695,000) 149,480,000 

(303,100) 307,300 

(141,600) 147,000 

(1,395,000) 2,955,000 

Due Within 
One Year 

75,000 

385,000 

2,195,000 

200,000 

2,855,000 

307,300 

147,000 

1,450,000 
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Balance Balance Due Within 
Jul~ 1, 2015 Increases Decreases June 301 2016 One Year 

Total special assessment bonds $ 5~9,000 $ $ (1,839,700) $ 3,409,300 $ 1,904,300 

Unamortized bond premiums 2,491,482 (216,964) 2,274,518 

Unamortized bond discounts (252,093) 18 257 (233,832) 

Compensated absences 39,415,975 12,397,430 03.1%,705) 38,616,700 

Postemployment benefits other than pensions 13,016,187 3,117,538 (828,162) 15,305,563 

Net pension liability 184,866,253 19,556,827 (14,242,345) 190,180,735 

Total governmental activities 396,961,804 35,071,795 (33,000,619) 399,032,980 4 759 300 

Business-type activities 

General obligation/pledged revenue hoods 

$8,685,000 2003B Water geoeral 
obligation refunding revenue bonds 
due in aoooal ins1allments through 
November 2015; interest varies 
between 3% and 5% 460,000 (460,000) 

$14,365,000 2005A Water/Waatewater 
general obligation refunding revenue 
bonds due in annual installments 
through December 2017; interest is at 
5% 4,575,000 (1,695,000) 2,880,000 1,780,000 

$10,030,000 2005B Water/Wastewater 
general obligation refunding revenue 
bonds due in annual installments 
through August 2019; interest varies 
between 3.25% and 4% 5,515,000 (1,010,000) 4,505,000 1,055,000 

$140,000,000 2006 Geoeral obligatioo 
W astewat.er reclamation system bonds 
due in annual installments through 
October 2036; interest varies between 
4%and5% 122,995,000 (3,280,000) 119,715,000 3,425,000 

$145,000,000 2010A Water/Waatewater 
improvement bonds (Build America 
Bonds) due in annual installments 
beginning June 2015 through June 
2040; interest varies between 4.13% 
and6.572% 144,900,000 144,900,000 

Total general obligation/pledged revenue 
bonds 278,445,000 (6,445,000) 212,000,000 6d60,000 

(Cootioued) 
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Balance Balance Due Within 
Jul~ 1, 2015 Increases Decreases June 301 2016 One Year 

Notes payable 

$7,000,000 medium-term financing due 
in quarterly installments through July 
2022; interest is at 2% beginning April 
2015 $ 5,ooo,ooo s $ (2,647,781) $ 2,352,219 $ 356,928 

Unamortized bond premiums 2,684,891 (215,211) 2,469,680 

Compensated absences 3,623,467 1,328,598 !J,131,743) 3,820,322 469 503 

Net pension liability 16,322,640 1726757 (422,330) 17,627,067 

Total business-type activities 306,075,998 3,055,355 (10,862,065) 298,269,288 7 086 431 

Total long-term liabilities $ 703,037,802 $ 38,127,150 $ (43,862,684) $ 697,302,268 $ 11,845,731 

Postemployment benefits other than pensions are liquidated through the self-insurance reserve internal service fund, 
which is funded by assessing a flat percentage to each fund based on the fund's gross salaries, plus a flat fee for each 
employee for health insurance. Compensated absences and pension liabilities are liquidated by the fund incurring the 
related payroll costs. 

At June 30, 2016, annual debt service requirements to maturity were as follows: 

For the Year Ended June 30. 

Governmental activities 

General obligation bonds 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 -2026 
2027 -2031 
2032 -2036 

Total general obligation bonds 

Special assessment bonds 
2017 
2018 

Total special assessment bonds 

Total governmental activities 

$ 

$ 

(Continued) 

Principal Interest 

2,870,000 $ 7,094,464 
7,320,000 6,974,095 
7,810,000 6,645,787 
8,140,000 6,310,845 
8,015,000 5,958,917 

30,435,000 25,583,011 
37,310,000 17,640,200 
47,580,000 7,369,500 

149,480,000 83,576,819 

1,904,300 99,460 
1,505,ooo 29159 

3,409,300 128 619 

152,889,300 $ 83,705,438 
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For the Year Ended June 30, 

Business-type activities 

General obligation/pledged revenue bonds 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 -2026 
2027 -2031 
2032 -2036 
2037 -2041 

Total general obligatioo/pledged n:venue boods 

Notes payable 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 -2026 

Total notes payable 

Total business-type activities 

Component Unit Debt 

$ 

$ 

Principal 

6,580,000 $ 
6,880,000 
7,170,000 
7,490,000 
7,800,000 

44,540,000 
55,685,000 
69,270,000 
66,585,000 

212,000,000 

356,928 
364,120 
371,457 
378,942 
386,578 
494195 

2,352,220 

274,352d20 $ 

Interest 

15,090,837 
14,784,896 
14,471,443 
14,110,705 
13,756,220 
62,057,295 
48,383,717 
31,611,558 
10,767,031 

225,033,702 

44,379 
37,186 
29,849 
22,364 
14,728 
7438 

155 944 

225,189,646 

In 2008, tbe City and tbe Library District entered into a cooperative agreement under which tbe City would design, 
construct and equip a library facility and tbe Library District would reimburse tbe City $9,500,000, plus interest at 5%, 
for its costs by msking annual interfund tranfers through January 2019. Since actual costs to design, construct and 
equip tbe library were completed under budget by $2,500,000, tbe total to be reimbursed by tbe Library District to tbe 
City is $7,000,000. 

Defeased Debt 

In prior years, tbe City defeased certain long-term bond obligations by placing tbe proceeds of new bonds in 
irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on tbe defeased bonds. Accordingly, tbe trust account 
assets and liabilities for tbe defeased bonds are not included in tbe City's financial statements. 

At June 30, 2016, $3,655,000 of defeased debt remained outstanding. 

Debt Covenants and Legal Debt Margin 

Certain long-term liabilities are subject to restrictive debt covenants and tbe amount of long-term general obligation 
debt that can be incurred by tbe City is limited by tbe NRS. Management believes tbe City to be in compliance with all 
applicable limitations and restrictions. 

(Cootinued) 
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Arbitrage Rebate Requirement 

The Federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposes a rebate requirement with respect to certain long-term debt obligations. 
Under this Act, an arbitrage amount may be required to be rebated to the United States Treasury for interest on the 
bonds to qualify for exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Rebatable arbitrage is computed as 
of each installment computation date. The arbitrage rebate calculation as of the most recent such date indicates that no 
amount is due. Future calculations might result in adjustments to this determination. 

Special Assessment Debt 

The City has issued various special assessments bonds, the proceeds of which have been used to fund specific 
infrastructure improvements. These bonds do not constitute debt of the City within the meaning of any constitutional 
or statutory provision or limitation, are not considered a general obligation of the City, and are considered special 
obligations payable solely from assessments levied in the special assessment districts. Furthermore, the City is not 
secondarily liable in the case of payment deficiencies. The City uses a fiduciary (agency) fund to account for special 
assessment revenue collections and repayment of the related debt. On June I, 2016, the City refunded its 2006 Special 
Assessment District 60 (Aliance Development) debt to reduce the interest rate that varied from 3.875% to 5.1 % down 
to 2.0% to 2.25%, without changing the December 1, 2022 maturity date. The amount of the refunding and the 
outstanding balance at June 30, 2016, is $14,015,000. 

Segment Information 

The City has issued long-term debt (in some cases revenue supported) to fioance the improvement, acquisition or 
construction of wastewater and water utility system capital assets. This debt has historically been paid from the 
revenues of the City's wastewater and water utility funds. The fioancial position, results of operations and cash flows 
of these enterprise funds are presented separately in the accompanying proprietary fund fmancial statements and no 
additional segment information disclosure is considered necessary. 

Note 4. Other Information 

Construction and Other Commitments 

The City has active construction projects as of June 30, 2016. These projects include public safety projects associated 
with the installation of or upgrade to traffic signals in developing areas; the design, acquisition, construction and 
improvements of and to various streets and roadways within the City limits; capital improvements associated with 
parks and recreation buildings and facilities; flood control projects and improvements and general government capital 
improvement projects. 

At June 30, 2016 the City's construction and other significant commitments were as follows: 

Parks and Recreation Projects 
Public Safety Projeci> 
Capital Projects Street Improvements 
Motor equipment 

$ 

Renwllring 
Commitment 

622,500 
6,284,751 
5,995,544 

708,230 

$ 13,611,025 

(Continued) 
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Litigation 

In the ordinary course of its operations, claims are filed against the City including, but not limited to those arising from 
alleged improper actions by employees, police actions and negligence. City management intends to vigorously defend 
each claim and, although, total damages claimed are substantial, believes that most of these claims will settle for 
substantially less than the claimed amount, may be partially offset by payments from the City's liability insurance 
policies, as discussed below under "Risk Management," and will not result in any material adverse future effect on the 
City's financial position, results of operation, or cash flows. 

The City does not accrue for estimated future legal and defense costs, if any, to be incurred in connection with 
outstanding or threatened litigation and other disputed matters but rather, records such as period costs when the 
services are rendered. 

Risk Management 

The City's operating activities are concentrated in the Las Vegas, Nevada metropolitan area; and therefore, realization 
of the City's receivables and its future operations could be affected by an adverse change in the economic conditions in 
the area. 

Over the last few years, the United States has experienced a widespread decline in residential real estate sales, 
mortgage lending and related construction activity, high unemployment, as well as weakness in the commercial and 
investment banking systems, which has had, and is likely to continue to have, far-reaching effects on the economic 
activity in the countfY. The near- and long-term impact of these factors on the Southern Nevada economy and the 
City's operating activities cannot be predicted at this time but may be substantial. 

The City's cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions are often in excess of federally-insured 
limits, and the risk of losses related to such concentrations may increase as a result of the economic conditions 
discussed in the preceding paragraph. The extent of a future loss to be sustained as a result of uninsured deposits in the 
event of a future failure of a fmancial institution, if any, however, is not subject to estimation at this time. 

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. For these and other risks, the City established the self­
insurance internal service fund and purchases commercial insurance coverage for claims in excess of the coverage 
provided by the self-insurance internal service fund and for other insurable risks of loss. Settled claims have not 
exceeded this commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years. 

Self-insurance Internal Service Fund 

The City reports activity related to liability insurance, workers' compensation and postemployment benefits other than 
pensions in the self-insurance internal service fund. 

Liability insurance - The City maintains its self-insurance fund to cover all liability and property damage claims 
made or occurring prior to securing its excess liability policy. NRS 41.035 caps the City's tort liability at $50,000 
per claim for causes of action that occurred on or before September 30, 2007, $75,000 per claim for causes of 
action that occurred on or after October 1, 2007, and $100,000 per claim for causes of action that occurred on or 
after October 1, 2011. These caps do not apply to civil rights claims against the City in either State or Federal 
courts. 

(Continued) 
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Workers' compensation - The City maintains a self-insurance fund related to workers' compensation claims. Self­
insurance is in effect up to an individual self insured retention (SIR) amount of $2,500,000 per claim for all 
employees. The City maintains coverage from private insurers for losses in excess of the stop-loss amount up to 
$1,000,000 per accident. 

Postemployment benefits other than pensions - Includes all activity for unemployment compensation, 
postemployment benefits other than pensions and employee separation leave benefits. The City reimburses the 
State for the actual costs of unemployment compensation claims on a quarterly basis. Earned but unused leave 
benefits are distributed to employees at separation from City employment. Postemployment benefits other than 
pensions liabilities and payments are based on an actuarial valuation (see additional detailed information in the 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) section below). 

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, 2015 and 2016, changes in claims liability amounts were as follows: 

Claims Liability, Claims Incurred Claims Liability, 
Beginning and Changes in Claims Ending 

Balanoe Estimate Paid Balance 

For the year ended.June 30, 2014 
Liability insurance $ 397,114 $ 12,837 ,888 $ (7,106,426) $ 6,128,576 
Worker's compensation 6,456,546 2,036,019 (2,076,566) 6,415,999 
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 10,214,355 1,473,553 11,687,908 
Unemployment compensation and employee 

separation leave benefits 5,210,792 (5,210,792) 

$ 17,068,015 $ 21,558d52 $ (14,393,784) $ 24,232,483 

For the year ended June 30, 2015 
Liability insurance $ 6,128,576 $ (1,836,796) $ (808,214) $ 3,483,566 
Worker's compensation 6,415,999 (330,990) (2,507,625) 3,577,384 
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 11,687,908 1,328,279 13,016,187 
Unemployment compensation and employee 

separation leave benefits 1,783,620 0.783,620) 

$ 24d32,483 $ 944113 $ (5,099,459) $ 20,077,137 

For the year ended.June 30, 2016 
Liability insurance $ 3,483,566 $ 605,332 $ (1,472,109) $ 2,616,789 
Worker's compensation 3,577,384 10,429,177 (3,123,688) 10,882,873 
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 13,016,187 2,289,376 15,305,563 
Unemployment compensation and employee 

separation leave benefits 3,750,407 (3,750,407) 

$ 20,077,137 $ 17,074d92 $ (8,346,204) $ 28,805,225 

Multiple-Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The City's employees are covered by the Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada (PERS), which was 
established by the Nevada Legislature in 1947, effective July l, 1948, and is governed by the Public Employees 
Retirement Board (the PERS Board) whose seven members are appointed by the governor. The City does not exercise 
any control over PERS. In addition, NRS 286.110 states, "Respective participating public employers are not liable for 
any obligation of the system." Yet, in accordance with GASB, the City records it's proportionate share of PERS' 
unfunded liabilities. 

(Continued) 
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PERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employees' retirement system which includes both 
regular and police/fire members. PERS is administered to provide a reasonable base income to qualified employees 
who have been employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have been removed or substantially 
impaired by age or disability. 

Benefits, as required by NRS, are determined by the number of years of accredited service at time of retirement and the 
member's highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive months with special provisions for members entering 
the system on or after January 1, 2010. Benefit payments to which participants or their beneficiaries may be entitled 
under the plan include pension benefits, disability benefits, and survivor benefits. 

Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed as 2.5% of average compensation for each accredited year of 
service prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on and after July 1, 2001, this multiplier is 2.67% of average 
compensation. For members entering the system on or after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.5% multiplier. PERS offers 
several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance which, in general, allow the retired employee to 
accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetime and various optional monthly 
payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death. 

Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.575 - .579, which for members entering the system 
before January 1, 2010, is equal to the lesser of: 

1) 2% per year following the third anniversary of the commencement of benefits, 3% per year following the sixth 
anniversary, 3.5% per year following the ninth anniversary, 4% per year following the twelfth anniversary and 5% 
per year following the fourteenth anniversary, or 

2) The average percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index (or other PERS Board approved index) for the 
three preceding years. 

In any event, a member's benefit must be increased by the percentages in paragraph 1, above, if the benefit of a 
member has not been increased at a rate greater than or equal to the average of the Consumer Price Index (All Items) 
(or other PERS Board approved index) for the period between retirement and the date of increase. 

For members entering the system on or after January l, 2010, the post-retirement increases are the same as above, 
except that the increases do not exceed 4% per year. 

Regular members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with 10 years of service, or 
at any age with thirty years of service. Regular members entering the System on or after January l, 2010, are eligible 
for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, or age 62 with 10 years of service, or any age with thirty years of 
service. 

Police/fire members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 55 with ten years of service, 
at age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any age with twenty-five years of service. Police/fire members entering 
the system on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, or age 60 with 
ten years of service, or age 50 with twenty years of service, or at any age with thirty years of service. Only service 
performed in a position as a police officer or firefighter may be counted toward the eligibility for retirement as 
Police/fire accredited service. 
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The normal ceiling limitation on the monthly benefit allowances is 75% of average compensation. However, a member 
who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of average 
compensation. Both regular and police/fire members become fully vested as to benefits upon completion of five years 
of service. 

The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member contribution rates rests 
with NRS. New hires, in agencies which did not elect the employer-pay contribution (EPC) plan prior to July l, 1983, 
have the option of selecting one of two alternative contribution plans. Contributions are shared equally by employer 
and employee in which employees can take a reduced salary and have contributions made by the employer or can make 
contributions by a payroll deduction matched by the employer. 

PERS's basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a percentage of salary 
throughout an employee's working lifetime in order to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. 

PERS receives an actuarial valuation on an annual basis for determining the prospective funding contribution rates 
required to fund the system on an actuarial reserve basis. Contributions actually made are in accordance with the 
required rates established by NRS. These statutory rates are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 286.421 and 
286.450. The actuarial funding method used is the entry age normal cost method. It is intended to meet the funding 
objective and result in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a percentage of salary. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the required employer/employee matching rate was 13.25% for regular and 
20.75% for police/fire members. The EPC rate was 25.75% for regular and 40.50% for police/fire members. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the required contribution rates for regular members was 14.5% and 28% for 
employer/employee matching and EPC, respectively. The required contribution rates for police/fire members remained 
the same. 

PERS issues a publicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial Report that includes financial statements and 
required supplemental information. This report is available on the PER's website, www.nvpers.org under publications. 

PERS collective net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. For this purpose, certain actuarial 
valuation assumptions are stipulated by GASB and may vary from those used to determine the prospective funding 
contribution rates. 

The total PERS pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions (based on the results of an 
experience review completed in 2013), applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Actuarial valuation date 
Inflation rate 
Payroll growth 
Investment rate of return 
Discount rate 
Productivity pay increase 
Consumer price index 
Actuarial cost method 
Projected salary increases 

June 30, 2015 
3.50"/o 
5.00o/o, including inflation 
8.00°/o, including inflation 
8.QOO/o 
0.75% 
3.500/o 
Entry age normal and level percentage of payroll 
Regular: 4.600/o to 9. 75%, depending on service 
Police/Fire: 5.25% to 14.500/o, depending on service 
Rates include inflation and productivity increases 
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At June 30, 2015, assumed mortality rates and projected life expectancies for selected ages were as follows: 

Age 

40 
50 
60 
70 
80 

40 
50 
60 
70 
80 

Regular Members 

Mortality Rates 
Males Females 

0.10 % 
0.17 % 
0.55 % 
1.82 % 
5.65 % 

Police/Fire Members 

0.05 % 
0.12 % 
0.42 % 
1.39 % 
3.79 % 

Mortality Rates 
Males Females 

0.10 % 0.06% 
0.19 % 0.15 % 
0.63 % 0.54% 
2.02% 1.72 % 
6.41 % 4.63 % 

These mortality rates and projected life expectancies are based on the following: 

Expected Years 
of Life Rema;ning 

Males Females 

41.1 
31.6 
22.4 
14.3 
7.7 

44.4 
34.7 
25.4 
17.0 
10.1 

Expected Yeaxs 
of Life Remaining 

Males Females 

40.2 
30.7 
21.5 
13.5 
7.1 

42.5 
32.8 
23.6 
15.5 
9.0 

For non-disabled male regular members - RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table projected to 2013 with Scale 
AA 

For non-disabled female regular members - RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, projected to 2013 with 
Scale AA, set back one year 

For all non-disabled police/fire members - RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table projected to 2013 with 
Scale AA, set forward one year 

For all disabled regular members and all disabled police/fire members - RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table 
projected to 2013 with Scale AA, set forward three years 

PERS' s policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by the PERS Board. 
The asset allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk and return needs of PERS. The 
following target asset allocation policy was adopted as of June 30, 2014: 

Asset Class 

Domestic equity 
Inremational equity 
Domestic fixed income 
Private markets 

Long-term 
Geometric 

Target Expected Real 
Allocation Rate of Return• 

42 % 5.50 % 
18 % 5.75 % 
30 % 0.25 % 
10 % 6.80 % 

"' These geometric return rates are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by adding the long-term 
expected inflation rate of3.5%. 
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The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00% as of June 30, 2015 and 2014. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at 
the rate specified by NRS. Based on that assumption, PERS's fiduciary net position at June 30, 2015, was projected to 
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments (8%) was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2015. 

The City's proportionate share of the net pension liability at June 30, 2015, calculated using the discount rate of 8.00%, 
as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1 % lower (7.00%) or 1 % higher (9.00%) than the current discount rate was as follows: 

1 % Decrease in 1 % Increase in 
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate 

Net pension liability $ 316,657,475 $ 207,807,802 $ 117,291,696 

Detailed information about PERS fiduciary net position is available in the PERS Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report, available on the PERS website, www.nvpers.org under publications. PERS fiduciary net position and 
additions to/deductions from it have been determined on the same basis used in the PERS Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. PERS financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America applicable to governmental accounting for fiduciary funds. Benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

The City's proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability was $207,807,802, which represents 
1.81342% of the collective net pension liability. Contributions for employer pay dates within the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2015, were used as the basis for determining each employer's proportionate share. Each employer's 
proportion of the net pension liability is based on their combined employer and member contributions relative to the 
total combined employer and member contributions for all employers for the period ended June 30, 2015. 

For the period ended June 30, 2016, the City's pension expense was $21,283,584 and its reported deferred outflows 
and inflows ofresources related to pensions as of June 30, 2016, were as follows: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between actual contnDutions and proportionate 

share of contributions 
Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date 

$ 

At June 30, 2015, the average expected remaining service life was 6.70 years. 

(Continued) 

Defem:d 
Outflows of Deferred Inflows 
Resources of Resources 

$ 15,630,744 

11,256,249 

3,134,677 12,997,595 
29,235,596 
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Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
totaling $29,235,596 will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 

For the Year Ended June 30, 

2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
Thereafter 

Changes in the City's net pension liability were as follows: 

Net pension liability. beginning of year 

Pension expense 
Employer contributions 
Net new deferred inflows and outflows of resources 

Net pension liability. end of year 

$ (11,419,116) 
(11,419,116) 
(11,419,116) 

2,145,478 
(3,530,986) 
(1,107,054) 

$ 201,188,894 

21,283,584 
(27,990,979) 
13,326,302 

$ 207,807,801 

At June 30, 2016, $3,218,328 payable to PERS, equal to the June 2016 required contribution, was included in accounts 
payable. 

Teamsters Security Fund for Southern Nevada 

The City participates in the Teamsters Security Fund for Southern Nevada, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit plan that covers the City's International Brotherhood of Teamsters employees (the Teamsters Plan). 

The Teamsters Plan is available to active and retired employees represented by the International Brotherhood of 
Teamsters and is a preferred provider organization (PPO) and administered by Zenith Administrstors, Inc. The 
Teamsters Plan is a welfare benefit plan that provides hospital, medical, prescription, dental, vision, life and accidental 
death and dismemberment insurance. Financial statements for the Teamsters Plan can be obtained by writing Zenith 
Administrators, Inc., IOI Convention Center Drive, Suite 600, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89109 or Teamsters Local Union 
14, Teamsters Security Fund for Southern Nevada, 1250 S. Burnham Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89104. 

The Teamsters Plan is financed by employer contributions pursuant to collective bargaining agreements, interest earned 
on the investment of reserve funds and through voluntary contributions of participants to retain eligibility. For the year 
ended June 30, 2016, the City contributed $880 per month for each active employee represented by the International 
Brotherhood of Teamsters. 

No contributing employer has liability, directly or indirectly, to provide the benefits established under the Teamsters 
Plan beyond the obligation to make contributions as stipulated in the respective collective bargaining agreement. The 
Teamsters Plan clearly states that benefits are not guaranteed to always be available and that events may occur that 
force the trustees of the Teamsters Plan to change, reduce and/or eliminate the Teamster Plan altogether. 
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The number of eligible employees, annual covered payroll and amounts contributed were as follows: 

For the Year Ended June 30. 

2014 
2015 
2016 

International Associations of Fire Fighters 

Required 
Contribution and Number of 

Eligible 
Employees 

Annual Covered Amount 

463 $ 
483 
478 

Payroll Contributed 

35,558,191 $ 
34,871,927 
35,066,517 

4,625,706 
4,779,055 
4,262,691 

Effective August I, 2012, the City's fire department employees began participating in a benefit plan administered by 
the North Las Vegas Fire Fighters Union Health and Welfare Trust (the "Fire Fighters Trust"). The City has no 
liability, directly or indirectly, to fund future benefits to participants in the plan beyond the obligation to make 
contributions as stipulated in the respective bargaining agreements. However, the defined contribution plan is treated 
like a defmed benefit plan for accounting purposes because costs are not shared among multiple employers and 
contributions received by the Fire Fighters Trust are not assigned solely to, and for the benefit of, active employees. 

Plan benefits include medical, prescription, dental and vision coverage for its participants. Financial statements for the 
plan can be obtained by writing North Las Vegas Fire Fighters Union Health and Welfare Trust, 11700 West 
Charleston Boulevard, Suite 170-182, Las Vegas, NV 89135. 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City contributed $1,000 per month for each active employee represented by the 
Fire Fighters Trust. 

The number of eligible employees, annual covered payroll and amounts contributed were as follows: 

For the Year Ended June 30. 

2014 
2015 
2016 

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions <OPEB) 

Plan Information 

Required 
Contribution and Number of 

Eligible 
Employees 

Annual Covered Amount 

158 $ 
167 
156 

Payroll Contributed 

19,047,992 $ 
17,957,169 
17,621,112 

2,057,000 
1,816,500 
2,004,400 

In accordance with NRS, the City provides postemployment benefits to its retirees that are not represented by the 
International Brotherhood of Teamsters. Eligible retirees receive coverage through a healthcare plan offered by the 
City (Healthcare Plan), which offers two plan options, a fully-insured health maintenance organization (HMO) plan or 
UnitedHealthcare, which is a self-insured tiered preferred provider organization (PPO). In addition to the Healthcare 
Plan, eligible retirees may receive coverage through the Public Employee Benefit Plan (PEBP). The PEBP is no longer 
offered to current employees. The City also offers a life insurance plan (Life Insurance Plan) to all employees (active 
and retired), including those represented by the International Brotherhood of Teamsters and the International 
Associations of Fire Fighters. Employees are eligible to receive benefits from the plan they were covered under as 
active employees. 
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The Healthcare Plan offers its retirees healthcare, deotal, vision and life insurance benefits. Eligibility and contribution 
requirements for the Healthcare Plan and the Life Insurance are established by and may be amended by the City 
Council. Only employees covered under the PEBP receive subsidy from the City. Premiums for City offered life and 
health insurance, except PEBP are paid by retirees. The City is responsible for health claims for retired unrepresented 
and police employees based on the retiree's choice of plan. 

PEBP is an agent multiple-employer defmed benefit plan administered by a nine member governing board that 
provides medical, prescription, deotal and vision benefits to retirees. Eligibility and subsidy requirements are governed 
by the NRS and can only be amended through legislation. In 2008, the NRS were amended and as a result of this 
amendment, the number of retirees for whom the City is obligated to provide postemployment benefits is limited to 
eligible employees who retired from City service prior to September 1, 2008. The PEBP issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. This report may be 
obtained by writing to the Public Employee Benefit Plan, 901 South Stewart Street, Suite 101, Carson City, NV 89701 
or by calling (775) 684-7000. 

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost 

The City is required to provide a subsidy, based on years of service for its retirees that have enrolled in the PEBP. The 
subsidy is paid on a pay-as-you-go basis and is set by the State Legislature. For the year ended June 30, 2016, this 
subsidy ranged from $116 to $636 per retiree, per month. 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the average cost borne by the City for employees and retirees enrolled in the 
Healthcare Plan was $1,585 per participant, per month. Retirees enrolled in the Healthcare Plan receive no direct 
subsidy from the City; however, retiree loss experience is pooled with active loss experience for the purpose of setting 
rates and the difference between the true claims cost and the blended premium creates an implicit rate subsidy from the 
City. Beginning July 1, 2014, the City started an employee/retiree premium contribution program with three 
alternative PPO plans. In addition, the City created one HMO plan at no cost to the employee. 

Annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) 
over a period not to exceed 30 years. 
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The following table shows the components of the annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to 
the plan, and changes in the net OPEB obligation: 

City of North City of North 
Public Employee Las Vegas Las Vegas Life 
Benefit Pro£[81]1 Health Care Plan Insurance Plan Total 

Aooual required cootributioo (ARC) $ 530,397 $ 1,202,704 $ 1,419,371 $ 3,152,472 
Interest on net OPEB obligation 52,013 230,521 238,114 520,648 
Adjus1ment 1o ARC (89,981) (229,028) (236,572) (555,581) 

Annual OPEB cost 492,429 1,204,197 1,420,913 3,117,539 
OPEB contributions made (486,703) (239,674) 001,786) (828,163) 

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 5,726 964,523 1,319,127 2,289,376 

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 1,300,324 5,763,018 5,952,845 13,016,187 

Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 1,306,050 $ 6,727,541 $ 7,271,972 $ 15,305,563 

Annual OPEB cost, employer contributions, the percentage of annual cost contributed to the plan and the net OPEB 
obligation for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2015 and 2016 were as follows: 

OPEB 
AooualOPEB Contributions Percentage NetOPEB 

For the Year Ended June 30. Cost Made Cootributed Oblisation 

Public Employee Benefit Program 
2014 $ 651,273 $ 597,741 91.8 % $ 1,313,579 
2015 491,616 504,871 102.7 % 1,300,324 
2016 492,429 486,703 98.8 % 1,306,050 

City of North Las Vegas Health Care Plan 
2014 1,543,821 212,207 13.7 % 4,844,683 
2015 1,140,255 221,920 19.5 % 5,763,018 
2016 1,204,197 239,674 19.9 % 6,727,541 

City of North Las Vegas Life Insurance Plan 
2014 153,684 65,274 42.5 % 4,711,198 
2015 1,335,892 94,245 7.1 % 5,952,845 
2016 1,420,913 101,786 7.2 % 7,271,972 
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Funded Status and Funding Progress 

The funded status of the plans as of the most recent actuarial valuation date was as follows: 

Unfunded 
Actuarial UAALasa 

Actuarial Accrued Percent of 
Actuarial Value Accrued Liability Annual Covered Covered 

Valuation Date of Assets Liabili!I (AAL) !QAALJ Funded Ratio Pal'.!;211 Pal'.!211 

Public Employee Benefit Program 
June 30, 2015 NIA 1 $ 7,645,416 $ 7,645,416 0.0% $ N/A 2 N/A 2 

City of North Las Vegas Health Care 
Plan 

June 30, 2015 N/A 1 12,722,773 12,722,773 0.0% 30,506,686 41.7 % 

City of North Las Vegas IAFF Plan 
June 30, 2015 NIA' 12,720,838 12,720,838 0.0% 12,949,578 98.2% 

1. No assets have been placed in trust. 
2. The Public Employee Benefit Program is a closed plan; and therefore, there are no ClllTeil1 covered employees. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as 
actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 

The required schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the 
basic financial statements, presents multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plans (the plans as understood by the employer and plan members) 
and include the types of benefits provided at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the 
City and the plan members at that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods 
and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value 
of assets. 
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Significant actuarial methods and assumptions as of the most recent actuarial valuation date were as follows: 

Actuarial valuation date 
Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Actuarial assumptions 

Investment rate of return 
Projected salary increase 
Inflation rate 

Number of retirees 
Healthcare inflation rates 

Initial 
Ultimate 

City of North 
Public Employee Las Vegas 

City of North 
Las Vegas Life 
Insurance Plan Benefit Program Health Care Plan 

June 30, 2015 
Entry age 

normal, closed 
Level dollar 

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2015 
Entry age En1ry age 

normal, open normal, open 
Level percent of Level percent of 

pay pay 
25 years 30 years 30 years 

No assets in trust No assets in trust No assets in trust 

4% 4% 4% 
N/A 1 4% 4% 
2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 

163 429 160 

8% 8% 8% 
5% 5% 5% 

1. The Public Employee Benefit Program is a closed plan; and therefore, there are no current covered employees. 

The City utilizes the self-insurance reserve internal service fund to allocate OPEB costs. Each fund recognizes its portion 
of the annual OPEB costs based on each fund's actual salary costs. No governmental funds have been used to liquidate the 
net OPEB obligation thus far. As of June 30, 2016, the self-insurance reserve internal service fund had $46,513,312 in 
unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and investments some of which is intended to fund future OPEB costs. Because these 
assets are not held in an irrevocable trust, they are not considered plan assets at this time and as such, are not reflected in 
any OPEB funding schedules. The City is required to have its actuarial valuation study updated every two years and will 
make funding decisions with regard to OPEB costs accordingly. 
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Valuation Date 

Public Employee Benefit Program 
June 30, 2011 3 

June 30, 20134 

June 30, 20154 

City of North Las Vegas Health Care 
Plan 

June30,20113 
June 30, 20134 

June 30, 20154 

City of North Las Vegas Life Insurance 
Plan 

June 30, 2011' 
June 30, 20134 

City of North Las Vegas IAFF Plan 5 

June 30, 2015 

I. No usets have been placed in trust 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS 

SCHEDULE OF FuNDING PROGRESS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Unfunded 
Actuarial 

Actuarial Accrued 
Actuarial Value Accrued Liability 

of Assets Liabili!J: (AALJ !!!:AALJ Funded Ratio 
Annual Covered 

Pal'.!211 

NIA 1 $ 10,530,961 $ 10,530,961 0.0% $ NIA 2 

NIA' 11,038,451 11,038,451 0.0% NIA 2 

N/A 1 7,645,416 7,645,416 0.0% N/A 2 

N/A 1 17,976,859 17,976,859 0.0% 142,669,047 
NIA' 13,937,406 13,937,406 0.0% 82,838,760 
N/A 1 12,722,773 12,722,773 0.0% 30,506,686 

N/A 1 2,431,608 2,431,608 0.0% 142,669,047 
NIA' 2,240,684 2,240,684 0.0% 82,838,760 

N/A 1 12,720,838 12,720,838 0.0% 12,949,578 

2. The Public Employee Benefit Program is a closed plan; and them'ole, there are no current covered employees. 

UAALasa 
Percent of 
Covered 
Payroll 

NIA 2 

NIA 2 

N/A 2 

12.6 % 
16.8 % 
41.7 % 

1.7 % 
2.7% 

98.2% 

3. During the year ended June 30, 2011, the City reduced staffing levels ftom 1,820 to 1,269 of eligible employees, and significant reductions occurred in the City's required subsidy for retirees participating 
in the Nevada Public Emplo)'Hll' BmH!fits Program. All a nisult, the actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2011, W8ll IllJlS'furmed to propmly llllllOmrt for these IMllllll. The lllillJllllts lllJlOihld above 
n:flect the:n:11ult11 of the second June, 30, 2011, actuarial report. 

4. A change in estimate hBll occurred since the June 30, 2013, valuation related to retiree life inBunmce and the actwuy lW longer believe& an OPED liability eitists since iWree premiums are now 
determined separately from active employee premiums for those plans, and retirees are respoDBible for paying the full premium for retiree life insurance 

5. The valuation WI of IIDl.e 30, 2015, separates the City's medical plan and the IAFF medical plan. In the past, the two were combined 
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MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER COST-SHARING DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE COLLECTIVE NET PENSION LIABILITY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND LAsT NINE FISCAL YEARS1 

Proportion of the 
Collective Net 

Pension Liability PERS Fiduciary 
as a Percentage Net Position as a 

of Covered Percentage of 
Employee Total Pension 

For the Year Ended June 30, 

Proportion of the Proportion of the 
Collective Net Collective Net 

Pension Liability Pension Liability 

Covered 
Employee 

Payroll Payroll Liability 

2014 
2015 

1.93043 % $ 201,188,894 $ 87,200,964 
1.81342 % 207,807,801 82,840,577 

230.71868 % 
250.85163 % 

76.31210 % 
75.12611 % 

I. Information for 1he multiple-employer cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan :ill not available for years prior to the year ended June 30, 2014. As becomes available this schedule will ultimatelJ 
~t infonnation for the ten most reaent :Ii.seal yean. 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND LAsT NINE FISCAL YEARS1 

Contributions in 
relation to the 

Statutorily Statutorily Contribution Covered 
Required Required Deficiency Employee 

For the Year Ended June 301 Contnl>ution Contribution (§!cess} Pal'.!211 

2014 $ 28,986,153 $ 28,986,153 $ $ 87,200,964 
2015 27,789,671 27,789,671 82,840,577 
2016 29,296,433 29,296,433 84,120,151 

Contributions as 
a Percentage of 

Covered 
Employee 

Pal'.!211 

33.24044 % 
33.54538 % 
34.82643 % 

I. Infimnatian :fur 1hil multiple-mnployer llOllt-sharing defined bmllfit pension plan ill not available for yt!llill prior to the year mided J1DJ.11 30, 2014. As beoomm available this &clllldule will ultimatelJ 
~t infonnation :fur the ten most reaent :Ii.seal yean. 

79 



80 



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

GENERAL FuND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

The general fund is used to account for all financial resources not required to be accounted for in some other fund. 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

GENERAL FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 7,993,531 $ 7,993,531 $ 8,052,022 $ 58,491 
Franchise fees 22,468,850 22,468,850 21,307,694 (1,161,156) 
Licenses and permits 13,462,379 13,462,379 15,470,650 2,008,271 
Charges for services 4,763,794 4,790,686 5,724,957 934,271 
Intergovernmental consolidated taxes 48,825,320 48,825,320 49,903,290 1,077,970 
Intergovernmental 4,250,113 4,274,813 4,278,389 3,576 
Fines and forfeitures 5,777,500 5,777,500 4,926,011 (851,489) 
Contributions 300 300 1,600 1,300 
Rents and royalties 450,000 450,000 568,094 118,094 
Investment income 354,000 354,000 1,363,934 1,009,934 
Miscellaneous 342 010 473 010 581913 108 903 

Total revenues 108,687.797 108,870,389 112,178,554 3,308,165 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Legislative 
Salaries and wages 507,486 507,486 401,879 105,607 
Employee benefits 369,561 369,561 257,161 112,400 
Services and supplies 135 176 135 176 58 830 76 346 

Total legislative 1,012,223 1,012,223 717 870 294 353 

Executive 
Salaries and wages 491,314 518,395 545,490 (27,095) 
Employee benefits 297,990 311,333 303,665 7,668 
Services and supplies 433,329 460 814 338,621 122,193 

Total executive 1,222,633 1,290,542 1187 776 102 766 

City attorney 
Salaries and wages 1,312,227 1,312,227 1,192,662 119,565 
Employee benefits 726,056 726,056 634,190 91,866 
Services and supplies 255 389 280 439 194 376 86 063 

Total city attorney 2,293,672 2,318,722 2,021,228 297 494 

City clerk 
Salaries and wages 294,517 294,517 268,559 25,958 
Employee benefits 154,353 154,353 141,344 13,009 
Services and supplies 172,432 281,932 129,081 152,851 

Total city clerk 621,302 730,802 538 984 191 818 

Finance 
Salaries and wages 1,844,181 1,854,554 1,595,680 258,874 
Employee benefits 1,042,517 1,048,029 854,602 193,427 
Services and supplies 463 900 448 900 446 073 2 827 

Total finance 3,350,598 3,351,483 2,896,355 455128 

PlamDng 
Salaries and wages 642,004 648,022 637,382 10,640 
Employee benefits 305,534 309,667 306,448 3,219 
Services and supplies 120 084 120 084 94392 25 692 

Total planning 1,067,622 1077773 1,038,222 39 551 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

GENERAL FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Other 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total other 

Total general government 

Judicial 
Municipal court 

Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total municipal court 

Marshals 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total marshals 

Other 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total other 

Total judicial 

Public safety 
Police 

Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total police 

Corrections 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total corrections 

Protective services 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total protective services 

Fire 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total fue 

Total public safety 

Original Budget 

3,907,545 
1,954,861 
5,995,253 

11,857,659 

21,425,709 

2,639,718 
1,370,746 

554 340 
4,564,804 

289,348 
201,206 

19,322 

509 876 

5,074,680 

17,182,305 
10,918,629 
4185 706 

32d8M40 

4,482,816 
3,158,581 
8,794,680 

16,436,077 

2,416,330 
1,292,379 
1 032447 
4,741,156 

17,258,569 
10,371,822 
3,42Q,606 

31,050,997 

84,514,870 

(Continued) 

Final Budget Actual Variance 

3,253,639 3,106,416 147,223 
1,556,816 3,430,212 (1,873,396) 
7,144,433 6,680,620 463,813 

7 590 (7,590) 
11,954,888 13,224,838 !ld69,950) 

21,736,433 21,625,273 111 160 

2,624,718 2,716,806 (92,088) 
1,370,746 1,403,521 (32,775) 

554 340 473 772 80 568 
4,549,804 4 594 099 (44J95) 

229,348 127,723 101,625 
201,206 72,883 128,323 
107,322 83,240 24,082 
25,000 25 000 

562 876 283 846 279 030 

50,000 (50,000) 
150,000 (150,000) 
200,000 (200,000) 

5,112,680 5,077,945 34 735 

17,590,660 16,438,801 1,151,859 
11,209,862 12,088,360 (878,498) 
4,206,652 4 447 674 (241,022) 

33,007,174 32,974,835 32 339 

4,121,271 3,382,679 738,592 
2,885,015 4,483,451 (1,598,436) 
8,770,734 7,902,783 867 951 

15,777,020 15,768,913 8107 

1,885,734 1,826,004 59,730 
931,211 998,293 (67,082) 

1,016,513 954 010 62 503 
3,833,458 3,778,307 55151 

17,793,328 17,667,834 125,494 
10,660,683 11,114,281 (453,598) 
3,432,997 3,074,092 358,905 

31,887,008 31,856,207 30 801 

84,504,660 84,378,262 126,398 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

GENERAL FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

Public wOiks 
Administration 

Salaries and wages 201,083 172,006 192,282 (20,276) 
Employee benefits 114,619 97,300 99,758 (2,458) 
Services and supplies 22101 22101 16 884 5dl7 

Total administration 337 803 291407 308 924 (17,517) 

Flood control 
Salaries and wages 307,511 282,333 333,744 (51,411) 
Employee benefits 144,917 129,933 142,183 (12,250) 
Services and supplies 32445 32445 (337,812) 370d61 

Total flood control 484 873 444 711 138,111 306,600 

Streets 
Employee benefits 1,324 (1,324) 
Services and supplies 33 (33) 

Total streets 1357 (1,357) 

Engineering 
Salaries and wages 119,950 94,772 237,223 (142,451) 
Employee benefits 61,074 46,090 114,018 (67,928) 
Services and supplies 89597 89597 58 868 30 729 

Total engineering 270 621 230 459 410 109 (179,650) 

Real property 
Salaries and wages 290,063 290,063 137,180 152,883 
Employee benefits 143,863 143,863 68,689 75,174 
Services and supplies 38 928 38 928 11262 27 666 

Total real property 472 854 472 854 217,131 255,723 

Construction 
Salaries and wages 312,375 255,345 299,700 (44,355) 
Employee benefits 139,388 109,156 138,713 (29,557) 
Services and supplies 115 133 115 133 78111 37 022 

Total construction 566 896 479 634 516 524 (36,890) 

Survey 
Salaries and wages 65,085 (21,069) 111,315 (132,384) 
Employee benefits 31,490 (10,683) 57,753 (68,436) 
Services and supplies 75 834 75 834 50310 25 524 

Total survey 172409 44082 219,378 (175d96) 

Other 
Salaries and wages 282,117 282,117 
Employee benefits 157,933 400,000 (242,067) 
Services and supplies 150,000 (150,000) 

Total other 440 050 550 000 009,950) 

Total public works 2,305,456 2,403,197 2,361,534 41663 

Culture and recreation 
Administration 

Salaries and wages 189,620 189,620 190,900 (1,280) 
Employee benefits 98,883 98,883 98,220 663 
Services and supplies 15 671 15 671 15 741 (70) 

Total administration 304174 304174 304 861 (687) 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

GENERAL FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

Participant recreation 
Salaries and wages 732,824 701,982 660,391 41,591 
Employee benefits 173,788 271,913 201,676 70,237 
Services and supplies 904,779 916,679 844,225 72,454 
Capital outlay 12337 (12,337) 

Total participant recreation 1,811,391 1890574 1,718,629 171 945 

Parks and grounds 
Salaries and wages 1,030,171 1,083,331 945,797 137,534 
Employee benefits 536,444 452,523 1,431,089 (978,566) 
Services and supplies 4 737 047 4 725 147 4,015,936 709d11 

Total pmks and grounds 6,303,662 6,261,001 6,392,822 (131,821) 

Total culture and recreation 8,419d27 8 455 749 8,416,312 39437 

Community support 
Housing and neighborhood services 

Salaries and wages 521,254 457,284 459,960 (2,676) 
Employee benefits 267,880 227,455 230,903 (3,448) 
Services and supplies 335,632 335,632 281,128 54 504 

Total housing and neighborhood services 1,124,766 1,020,371 971991 48 380 

Economic development 
Salaries and wages 232,481 232,481 177,026 55,455 
Employee benefits 122,831 122,831 100,043 22,788 
Services and supplies 229,309 229,309 25 996 203,313 

Total economic development 584 621 584 621 303,065 281,556 

Developer agreements 
Services and supplies 61000 61000 20 500 40 500 

Other 
Employee benefits 300,000 (300,000) 
Services and supplies 50000 (50,000) 

Total other 350 000 (350,000) 

Total community support 1,770,387 1,665,992 1,645,556 20436 

Total expenditures 123,510,329 123,878,711 123,504,882 373,829 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (14,822,532) (15,008,322) (11,326,328) 3,681,994 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Contingencies (500,000) (500,000) (500,000) 
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 25,000 25,000 226,042 201,042 
Transfers in 23,492,404 23,492,404 23,522,649 30,245 
Transfers out (7,622,441) (7,622,441) (10,622,441) (3,000,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 15,394,963 15,394,963 12,626,250 (2,768,713) 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 572,431 386,641 1,299,922 913,281 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 10,136,612 12,5%,352 12,596,352 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 10,709,043 $ 12,982,993 $ 13,896,274 $ 913d81 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Special revenue funds are used to account for financial resources that are restricted or committed to specific purposes other than debt service and capital 
projects. 

Public Safety Tax 
Accounts for voter-approved property tax overrides to be used exclusively for public safety programs. 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PUBLIC SAFETY TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 30,125,339 $ 30,125,339 $ 30,337,588 $ 212,249 
Charges for services 6,326 6,326 
Miscellaneous 3 084 3 084 

Total revenues 30,125,339 30,125,339 30,346,998 221,659 

EXPENDITURES 
Public safety 

Police 
Salaries and wages 13,369,417 13,369,417 12,167,655 1,201,762 
Employee benefits 8,819,951 8,819,951 8,398,541 421,410 
Services and supplies 3,092,009 3,092,009 2,334,117 757 892 

Total police 25,;l81,377 25,281,377 22,900,313 2,381,064 

Corrections 
Salaries and wages 666,210 666,210 577,955 88,255 
Employee benefits 438,657 438,657 403,119 35,538 
Services and supplies 29707 29707 26169 3 538 

Total corrections 1134 574 1134 574 1,007,243 127 331 

Protective services 
Salaries and wages 3,500 
Employee benefits 320 544 (544) 
Services and supplies 14846 14 846 12114 2 732 

Total protective services 18 666 14 846 12,658 2188 

Total expenditures 26,434,617 26,430,797 23,920,214 2,510,583 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 3,690,722 3,694,542 6,426,784 2,732~2 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 4,874 4,874 
Transfers out (777,000) (777,000) (777,000) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (777,000) (777,000) (772,12[) 4874 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 2,913,722 2,917,542 5,654,658 2,737,116 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,635,010 5,472,314 5,472,314 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 6,548,732 $ 8,389,856 $ 11,126,972 $ 2,737,116 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Note 1. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions 

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the City reduced staffing levels from 1,820 to 1,269 of eligible employees, and 
significant reductions occurred in the City's required subsidy for retirees participating in the Nevada Public 
Employees' Benefits Program. As a result, the actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2011, was reperformed to properly 
account for these events. The amounts reported in the schedule of funding progress reflect the results of the second 
June 30, 2011, actuarial report. 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, no significant events occurred that would have affected the actuarial valuation; and 
therefore, would have changed the benefit provision, size or composition of those covered by the postemployment 
benefit plans, or the actuarial methods and assumptions used in the actuarial valuation reports dated July I, 2013, July 
I, 2011 and July I, 2009. 

The actuarial accrued liability and unfunded actuarial accrued liability involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. These estimates are subject 
to continual revision. 

Additional information related to postemployment benefits other than pensions can be found in Note 4 to the basic 
financial statements. 

Note 2. Multiple-Employer Cost-Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

For the year ended June 30, 2016, there were no changes in the pension benefit plan terms to the actuarial methods and 
assumptions used in the actuarial valuation report dated June 30, 2015. 

The actuarial valuation report dated June 30, 2015, is the only valuations to date of the multiple-employer cost-sharing 
defined benefit pension plan. As additional actuarial valuations are obtained these schedules will ultimately present 
information from the ten most resent valuations. 

Additional pension plan information can be found in Note_ to the basic financial statements. 

Note 3. Budget Information 

The accompanying required supplementary schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance presents 
the original adopted budget, the final amended budget, and actual fund data for the general fund and each major special 
revenue fund. The original budgets were adopted on a basis consistent with financial accounting policies and with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. All amendments made to the original budgets were as 
prescribed by law and similarly consistent. 

Additional budgetary information can be found in Note 2 to the basic financial statements. 
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR GoVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
COMBININGBALANCESHEET 

JUNE 30, 2016 

Aggregate Other 
Governmental 

Special Revenue Debt Service Qmital Projects Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash. cash equivalents and investments $ 49,708,430 $ 7,552,386 $ 18,720,650 $ 75,981,466 
Accounts receivable, net 917,651 46,236 963,887 
Grants receivable 2,181,829 6,230,458 8,412,287 
Property taxes receivable 349,842 1,194 351,036 
Interest receivable 3,241 3,241 
Special assessments receivable 67,198 67,198 
Prepaid items 11,921 11,921 
Due from other governments 3,902,225 188 3,902,413 
Property held for resale 6,426,980 6,426,980 

Total assets $ 63,498,878 $ 7,624,019 $ 24,997,532 $ 96,120,429 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities $ 1,077,848 $ 5,135 $ 4,461,350 $ 5,544,333 
Accrued salaries and benefits 252,657 252,657 
Due to other funds 30,550 30,550 
Due to other governments 209,464 45,223 254,687 
Customer deposits 9,610 9,610 
Unearned revenue 2,378,005 66699 2,444,704 

Total liabilities 3,958,134 5135 4,573,272 8,536,541 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenues 119496 I 010 120,506 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resoW"Ces 4 077 630 6145 4,573,272 8 651041 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 

Prepaid items 11,921 11,921 
Land heW for resale 6,426,980 6,426,980 

Restricted for 
Debt service 7,617,874 7,617,874 
Street improvments projects 5,194,054 4,056,739 9,250,793 
Other capital projects 17,882,515 3,808,176 21,690,691 
Police, fue and other public safety programs and projects 9,061,704 9,241,654 18,303,358 
Parks, cultural and other recreational programs 29,519 3,290,767 3,320,286 
Library district operations 461,755 461,755 
Courts and other judical programs 1,708,381 1,708,381 
Community assistance and support programs 15,122,644 15,122,644 
Other 19,103 19,103 

Committed to 
Community assistance and support programs 770,075 770,075 

Assigned to 
Parks, cultural and other recreatiooal programs 2,732,597 2,732,597 

Unassigned 26924 26 924 

Total fund balances 59,421~8 7 617 874 20,424,260 87,463,382 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances $ 63,498,878 $ 7,624,019 $ 24,997,532 $ 96,120,429 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR GoVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Aggregate Other 
Governmental 

Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects Funds 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 14,795,644 $ 2,690 $ $ 14,798,334 
Residential construction taxes 426,603 426,603 
Room taxes 564,601 564,601 
Special assessments 2,167,784 2,167,784 
Charges for services 2,882,663 114,266 2,996,929 
Intergovernmental 22,538,324 38,404,185 60,942,509 
Fines and forfeitures 474,865 430 475,295 
Contributions 20,430 300 20,730 
Rents and royalties 97,000 97,000 
Investment income 147,274 21,200 47,383 215,857 
Miscellaneous 2,053,1l95 556 344 2,609,639 

Total revenues 44,000,699 2,192,104 39,122,478 85,315,281 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 10,192 337,719 347,911 
Judicial 510,619 510,619 
Public safety 17,887,914 364,624 18,252,538 
Public worl<s 4,497,424 920,067 5,417,491 
Culture and recreation 4,641,932 108,449 4,750,381 
Community support 5,087,306 3 191 5,090,497 

Total current 32,635,387 1734050 34,369,437 

Capital outlay 
General government 248 1,072,755 1,073,003 
Public safety 245,258 2,235,493 2,480,751 
Public works 130,166 37,718,581 37,848,747 
Culture and recreation 286,882 2,587,733 2,874,615 
Community support 48 835 26953 15 788 

Total capital outlay 711389 43,641,515 44,352,904 

Debt service 
Principal payments 385,000 4,149,700 4,534,700 
Interest and fiscal charges 91 761 7,305,541 7,397,302 

Total debt service 476 761 11,455,241 11,932,002 

Total expenditures 33,823,537 11,455,241 45,375,565 90,654,343 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 10,177,162 (9,263,137) (6,253,08Z) (5,339,062) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 19,000 17,193 36,193 
Transfers in 1,584,027 12,427,741 4,048,295 18,060,063 
Transfers out (7,582,409) (289,814) (7,872~3) 

Total other financing soun:es (uses) (5,979,382) 12,427,741 3,775,674 10~1033 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 4,197,780 3,164,604 (2,477,413) 4,884,971 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 55,1l23,468 4,453,270 22,901,673 82,578,411 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 59,421d18 $ 7,617,874 $ 20,424,260 $ 87,463,382 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE F'uNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Special revenue funds are used to account for financial resources that are restricted or committed to specific purposes other than debt service and capital 
projects. 

Parks and Recreation Support 
Accounts for monies collected for the enhancement and support of park facilities and recreation programs. 

Redevelopment Agency 
Accounts for supplemental property taxes assessed on the redevelopment district property and the costs of carrying out the redevelopment plan. 

Library District 
Accounts for monies received by the District from property taxes and contributions from the general fund and costs related to the Library 

District. 

Special Purpose Revenue 
Accounts for monies received from various sources, which are to be used for specific purposes. 

More Cops Sales Tax 
Accounts for a voter-approved increase in sales and use tax to employ and equip additional police officers. 

Park Construction Tax 
Accounts for monies collected from developers to finance park construction projects. 

Public Safety Support 
Accounts for monies received by the City from various sources that are to be used for programs that enhance public safety. 

Municipal Court Support 
Accounts for fees collected to defray the costs of maintaining the Municipal Court. 

Community Development 
Accounts for monies received by the City from the County as a grantee participant in the federal Community Development Block Grant Program 

as well as funds received from the State of Nevada and other sources, which must be used for qualifying community development projects. 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FIJNDS 

COMBININGBALANCESHEET 
JUNE 30, 2016 

Parks and 
Recreation Redevelopment Special Purpose More Cops Sales 

S!!m!ort Agen!al'. Librarv District Revenue Tax 

ASSETS 
Cash. cash equivalents and investments $ 2,719,001 $ 13,694,577 $ 483,790 $ 20,850,631 $ 2,152,902 
Accounts receivable, net 48,575 306,292 3,895 245,647 (838) 
Grants receivable 91,994 517 40,512 
Property taxes receivable 49,205 62,914 232,745 
Prepaid items 6,417 
Due from other governments 656,150 3,245,326 
Property held for resale 

Total assets $ 2,859,570 $ 14,050,074 $ 557 533 $ 22,025,685 $ 5,397,390 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities $ 58,982 $ 4,159 $ 26,033 $ 378,261 $ 4,916 
Accrued salaries and benefits 8,510 8,009 22,136 50,647 136,803 
Due to other funds 770 835 2,280 5,263 18,442 
Due to other governments 17,622 98,297 
Customer deposits 9,610 
Unearned revenue 19 582 2 873 3 011 475 

Total liabilities 97454 15 876 71082 532 943 160 161 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenues 32,813 18 279 66958 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 97454 48 689 89361 599 901 160 161 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 

Prepaid items 6,417 
Land held for resale 

Restricted for 
Street i.mprovments projects 5,194,054 
Other capital projects 16,212,627 
Police, fire and other public safety programs and 

projects 5,237,229 
Parl<s, cultural and other recreatiooal programs 29,519 
Library district operations 461,755 
Courts and other judical programs 
Community assistance and support programs 14,001,385 
Other 19,103 

Committed to 
Community assistance and support programs 

Assigned to 
Parks, cultural and other recreational programs 2,732.597 

Total fund balances 2,762,116 14,001,385 468 172 21,425,784 5J.37J.29 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances $ 2,859,570 $ 14,050,074 $ 557 533 $ 22,025,685 $ 5,397,390 

(Cootinued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FIJNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

Park 
Construction Public Safety Municipal Court Community Total Special 

Tax SUJ!I!ort Sunoort Devel2Jm!ent Revenue 

ASSETS 
Cash. cash equivalents and investments $ 1,669,888 $ 3,415,315 $ 1,715,621 $ 3,006,705 $ 49,708,430 
Accounts receivable, net 218,065 96,015 917,651 
Grants receivable 472,488 1,576,318 2,181,829 
Property taxes receivable 4,978 349,842 
Prepaid items 5,504 11,921 
Due from other governments 749 3,902,225 
Property held for resale 6,426,980 6,426,980 

Total assets $ 1,669,888 $ 4,111,595 $ 1,721,125 $ 11,106,018 $ 63,498,878 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities $ $ 141,539 $ 459 $ 463,499 $ 1,077,848 
Accrued salaries and benefits 16,811 6,140 3,601 252,657 
Due to other funds 1,943 641 376 30,550 
Due to other governments 93,545 209,464 
Customer deposits 9,610 
Unearned revenue 125,381 2,226,683 2,378,005 

Total liabilities 285 674 7240 2 787 704 3,958,134 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenues 1446 119 496 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 287120 7240 2 787 704 4 077 630 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 

Prepaid items 5,504 11,921 
Land held for resale 6,426,980 6,426,980 

Restricted for 
Street i.mprovments projects 5,194,054 
Other capital projects 1,669,888 17,882,515 
Police, fire and other public safety programs and 

projects 3,824,475 9,061,704 
Parl<s, cultural and other recreational programs 29,519 
Library district operations 461,755 
Courts and other judical programs 1,708,381 1,708,381 
Community assistance and support programs 1,121,259 15,122,644 
Other 19,103 

Committed to 
Community assistance and support programs 770,075 770,075 

Assigned to 
Parks, cultural and other recreational programs 2,732.597 

Total fund balances 1,669,888 3,824,475 1,713,885 8,318,314 59,421,248 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances $ 1,669,888 $ 4,111,595 $ 1,121,125 $ 11,106,018 $ 63,498,878 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FIJNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FuND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Parks and 
Recreation Redevelopment Special Purpose More Cops Sales 

Support Agency Library District Revenue Tax 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ $ 1,595,934 $ 2,628,016 $ 10,363,852 $ 
Residential construction taxes 
Room taxes 564,601 
Charges for services 2,354,884 
Intergovernmental 90,207 110,218 4,869,502 11,562,218 
Fines and forfeitures 150 62,087 
Contributions 11,603 
Rents and royalties 97,000 
Investment income 1,134 98,616 14,537 16,183 
Miscellaneous 10 303 47040 !'8,54ZJ (3~0) 

Total revenues 2,468d81 1,791,550 2,847,361 15,793,945 11,575,181 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 
Judicial 
Public safety 9,594 3,861,035 10,465,358 
Public works 60,250 186 4,428,250 
Culture and recreation 1,800,270 2,130,996 710,660 
Community support (2) 1,032,303 7128 

Total current 1,870,112 1,032,489 2,130,996 9,007,074 10,465,358 

Capital outlay 
General government 248 
Public safety 31,185 
Public works 130,166 
Culture and recreation 286,882 
Community support 48 745 90 

Total capital outlay 286,882 48 745 161689 

Debt service 
Principal psyments 385,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 91 761 

Total debt service 476 761 

Total expenditures 2,156,994 1,081d34 2,607,757 9,168,763 10,465,358 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 3lld87 710 316 239 604 6,625,182 1,109,823 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 
Tnmsfers in 14,563 241,054 240,000 
Transfers out (527,500) (4,867,638) 

Total o1her financing sources (uses) 14 563 (286,446) (4,627,638) 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 325,850 710,316 (46,842) 1,997,544 1,109,823 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,436d66 13d91,069 515 014 19,428,240 4127 406 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 2,762,116 $ 14,001,385 $ 468 172 $ 21,425,784 $ 5d37~9 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FIJNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FuND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Park 
Construction Public Safety Municipal Court Community Total Special 

Tax SUJ!I!ort Sunoort Devel2Jm!ent Revenue 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ $ 207,842 $ $ $ 14,795,644 
Residential construction taxes 426,603 426,603 
Room taxes 564,601 
Charges for services 83,345 444,434 2,882,663 
Intergovernmental 1,761,090 4,145,089 22,538,324 
Fines and forfeitures 412,628 474,865 
Contributions 8,827 20,430 
Rents and royalties 97,000 
Investment income 12,311 4,493 147,274 
Miscellaneous 810 645 379 622 827 452 2,053d95 

Total revenues 438 914 3,288,870 824 056 4 972 541 44,000,699 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General government 6,475 3,716 10,192 
Judicial 510,619 510,619 
Poblic safety 3,551,927 17,887,914 
Public works 8,738 4,497,424 
Culture and recreation 6 4,641,932 
Community support 4 047 877 5,087,306 

Total current 3,551,927 511094 4,060,337 32,635,387 

Capital outlay 
General government 248 
Poblic safety 214,073 245,258 
Public works 130,166 
Culture and recreation 286,882 
Community support 48 835 

Total capital outlay 214 073 711 389 

Debt service 
Principal psyments 385,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 91 761 

Total debt service 476 761 

Total expenditures 3,766,000 517 094 4,060,337 33,823,537 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES 438 914 (477,130) 306 962 912 204 10,177,162 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 19,000 19,000 
Tnmsfers in 1,088,410 1,584,027 
Transfers out (525,935) (30,245) (300,000) (1,331,091) (7 ,582,409) 

Total o1her financing sources (uses) (525,935) 1,077,165 (300,000) (1,331,091) (5,979,382) 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (87,021) 600,035 6,962 (418,887) 4,197,780 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR I 756 909 3,224,440 1,706,923 8,737,201 55~3,468 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 1,669,888 $ 3,824,475 $ 1,713,885 $ 8,318,314 $ 59,421,248 

92 



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PARKS AND RECREATION SUPPORT SPECIAL REVENUE FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Charges for services 
futergovernmental 
Fines and forfeitures 
Contributions 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Public safety 

Police 
Services and supplies 

Total public safety 

Public works 
Streets 

Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 

Total streets 

Engineering 
Services and supplies 

Construction 
Salaries and wages 

Survey 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total survey 

Other 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total other 

Total public works 

Culture and recreation 
Administration 

Services and supplies 
Cspital outlay 

Participant recreation 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total participant recreation 

Parl<s and grounds 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total paiks and grouods 

$ 2,418,000 $ 
55,560 

30,000 

10000 

2,513,560 

25,000 
214132 

1,431,965 
287,512 
511328 

2,230,805 

403 576 
403 576 

(Continued) 

2,418,000 $ 
66,560 

30,000 

10000 

2,524,560 

25,000 
214132 

1,303,965 
287,512 
650,328 

2,241,805 

403 576 
403 576 

2,354,884 
90,207 

150 
11,603 

1,134 
10303 

2,468,281 

9 594 

9 594 

5,130 
541 

5 671 

48000 

844 

1,692 
98 
59 

1849 

3,676 
210 

3 886 

60250 

286,882 

910,709 
193,276 
491 882 

1,595,867 

5,736 
12,144 

175 713 
193 593 

$ (63,116) 
23,647 

150 
(18,397) 

1,134 
303 

(56d79) 

(9,594) 

(9,594) 

(5,130) 
(541) 

(5,671) 

(48,000) 

(844) 

(1,692) 
(98) 
(59) 

0,849) 

(3,676) 
(210) 

(3,886) 

(60d50) 

25,000 
(72,750) 

393,256 
94,236 

158 446 
645 938 

(5,736) 
(12,144) 
227,863 
209 983 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PARKS AND RECREATION SUPPORT SPECIAL REVENUE FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

Other 
Salaries and wages 9,589 (9,589) 
Employee benefits 1221 (l~l) 

Total other 10 810 00,810) 

Total culture and :recreation 2,873,513 2,884,513 2,087,152 797 361 

Community support 
Housing and neighborhood services 

Services and supplies (2) 2 

Total expenditures 2,873,513 2,884,513 2,156,994 727 519 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (359,953) (359,953) 311287 671,240 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 292,348 292,348 14,563 (277,785) 
Transfers out (292,348) (292,348) 292 348 

Total other financing sources (uses) 14 563 14 563 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (359,953) (359,953) 325,850 685,803 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1413 433 2,436,266 2,436,266 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 1,052,480 $ 2,076,313 $ 2,762,116 $ 685,803 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 1,311,579 $ 1,311,579 $ 1,595,934 $ 284,355 
Rents and royalties 97,000 97,000 
Investment income 31600 31600 98616 67 016 

Total revenues 1343 179 1343 179 1 791550 448 371 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Executive 
Salaries and wages (1,520) (1,520) (1,520) 
Employee benefits 600 600 600 

01her 
Salaries and wages 20,520 20,520 20,520 
Employee benefits 8,971 8,971 8,971 
Services and supplies 665 665 665 

Total other 30156 30156 30156 

Total general government 29236 29236 29d36 

Public worl<s 
01her 

Salaries and wages 146 (146) 
Employee benefits 38 (38) 
Services and supplies 2 (2) 

Total other 186 (186) 

Community support 
Housing and neighborhood services 

Salaries and wages 1,222 (1,222) 
Employee benefits 1,917 (1,917) 
Services and supplies 40000 40000 35 672 4328 

Total housing and neighborhood services 40000 40000 38 811 1189 

Economic development 
Salaries and wages 351,584 351,584 365,789 (14,205) 
Employee benefits 185,100 185,100 209,951 (24,851) 
Services and supplies 1,218,960 1,352,730 417,748 934,982 
Capital outlay 700 000 779446 48 745 730 701 

Total economic development 2455 644 2,668,860 1,042,233 1,626,627 

01her 
Services and supplies 4 (4) 

Total community support 2495 644 2,708,860 1,081,048 1,627,812 

Total expenditures 2,524,880 2,738,096 1,081,234 1,656,862 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,181,701) (1,394,917) 710,316 2,105,233 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 11,891,518 13,291,069 13,291,069 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 10,709,817 $ 11,8%,152 $ 14,001,385 $ 2,105d33 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

LIBRARY DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 2,606,402 $ 2,606,402 $ 2,628,016 $ 21,614 
futergovernmental 97,600 110,218 12,618 
Fines and forfeitures 65,000 65,000 62,087 (2,913) 
Miscellaneous 55 000 55 000 47040 (7,960) 

Total revenues 2,726,402 2,824,002 2,847,361 23 359 

EXPENDITURES 
Culture and recreation 

Library district operations 
Salaries and wages 1,079,509 1,079,509 1,048,019 31,490 
Employee benefits 545,721 545,721 526,740 18,981 
Services and supplies 548 967 646 567 556 237 90 330 

Total culture and recreation 2,174,197 2,211,191 2,130,996 140 801 

Debt service 
Principal payments 385,000 385,000 385,000 
Interest and fiscal charges 91 761 91 761 91 761 

Total debt service 476 761 476 761 476 761 

Total expenditures 2,650,958 2,748,558 2,607,757 140 801 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 75444 75 444 239,604 164160 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 241,054 241,054 241,054 
Transfers out (527,500) (527,500) (527,500) 

Total other financing soun:es (uses) (286,446) (286,446) (286,442) 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (211,002) (211,002) (46,842) 164,160 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 346 687 515 014 515 014 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 135 685 $ 304 012 $ 468172 $ 164160 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SPECIAL PuRPOSE REVENUE SPECIAL REVENUE FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taxes 
Room taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Investment income 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

City attorney 
Capital outlay 

Total city attorney 

Finance 
Capital outlay 

Total finance 

Other 
Services and supplies 

Total general government 

Public safety 
Protective services 

Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total public safety 

Public works 
Streets 

Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total streets 

Engineering 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total engineering 

Real property 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Construction 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

$ 9,697,883 $ 9,697,883 $ 
400,000 400,000 

4,690,877 4,690,877 
1,950 1,950 

100 840 100 840 

14,891,550 14,891,550 

1 835 

1 835 

1,295,289 1,216,867 
642,983 595,388 

2,744,230 2,687,230 
32000 

4,682,502 4,531,485 

1,301,085 1,354,329 
644,627 629,643 

2,783,100 2,959,200 

4,728,812 4 943 172 

(Continued) 

10,363,852 $ 665,969 
564,601 164,601 

4,869,502 178,625 
14,537 12,587 

!18,54Z) !119,387) 

15,793,945 902 395 

6 !6) 
6 !6) 

242 !242) 
242 !242) 

1834 

249 1586 

1,161,201 55,666 
555,042 40,346 

2,144,792 542,438 
31185 815 

3,892,220 639,265 

1,300,239 54,090 
654,462 (24,819) 

2,407,658 551,542 
97 801 !97,801) 

4460160 483 012 

1,731 (1,731) 
(7,925) 7,925 

61 (61) 
29960 !29,960) 
23 827 !23,827) 

(258) 258 
(18) 18 
711 mn 

6,292 (6,292) 
3,540 (3,540) 

223 !223) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SPECIAL PuRPOSE REVENUE SPECIAL REVENUE FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Survey 
Employee benefits 
Capital outlay 

Total survey 

Other 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total other 

Total public works 

Culture and recreation 
Parl<s and grounds 

Services and supplies 
Other 

Services and supplies 

Community support 
Housing and neighborhood services 

Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Other 
Services and supplies 

Total community support 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 

Original Budget 

4,728,812 

876 281 

546 

100,000 

100,000 

10,388,141 

4 503 409 

(4,867,638) 
(4,867,638) 

(364,229) 

12,154,708 

$ 11,790,479 $ 

Final Budget Actual Variance 

(512) 512 
1694 (1,694) 
1182 0,182) 

25,178 25,178 
62,579 7,741 54,838 

55 016 (55,016) 
87757 62 757 25 000 

5,030,929 4,558,416 472 513 

876 281 710 660 165 621 

546 546 

4,219 (4,219) 
2,759 (2,759) 

150 (150) 
90 (90) 

100,000 100,000 

100,000 7218 92 782 

10,541,076 9,168,763 1,372,313 

4 350 474 6,625,182 2,274,708 

240,000 240,000 
(4,867,638) (4,867,638) 
(4,627,638) (4,627,638) 

(277,164) 1,997,544 2,274,708 

19,428,240 19,428,240 

19,151,076 $ 21,425,784 $ 2.;174,708 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MORE COPS SALES TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ 10,081,330 $ 10,081,330 $ 11,562,218 $ 1,480,888 
Investment income 13,400 13,400 16,183 2,783 
Miscellaneous !3,220) (3d1l0) 

Total revenues 10,094,730 10,094,730 11,575,181 1480 451 

EXPENDITURES 
Public safety 

Police 
Salaries and wages 5,945,745 5,945,745 5,690,183 255,562 
Employee benefits 4,201,093 4,201,093 4,019,846 181,247 
Services and supplies 889 948 889 948 755 329 134 619 

Total public safety 11,036,786 11,036,786 10,465,358 571428 

Total expenditures 11,036,786 11,036,786 10,465,358 571428 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (942,056) (942,056) 1,109,823 2,051,879 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (942,056) (942,056) 1,109,823 2,051,879 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,268,084 4127 406 4,127,406 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 2,326,028 $ 3,185,350 $ 5,237,229 $ 2,051,879 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PARK CONSTRUCTION TAX SPECIAL REVENUE F'uND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Residential construction taxes $ 230,000 $ 230,000 $ 426,603 $ 196,603 
Investment income 220 220 12311 12 091 

Total revenues 230,220 230,220 438 914 208 694 

EXPENDITURES 
Culture and recreation 

Parl<s plamiing and development 
Services and supplies 113 200 113 200 113d00 

Total paiks planning and development 113 200 113,200 113d00 

Total culture and recreation 113 200 113 200 113d00 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 117 020 117 020 438 914 321 894 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfers out (483,000) (525,935) (525,935) 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (365,980) (408,915) (87,021) 321,894 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,554,064 1,756,909 1,756,909 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 1,188,084 $ 1347994 $ 1,669,888 $ 321 894 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PUBLIC SAFETY SUPPORT SPECIAL REVENUE FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ 206,338 $ 206,338 $ 207,842 $ 1,504 
Charges for services 30,000 30,000 83,345 53,345 
Intergovernmental 1,369,162 2,032,972 1,761,090 (271,882) 
Fines and forfeitures 381,000 412,628 31,628 
Contributions 15,000 15,000 8,827 (6,173) 
Investment income 4,493 4,493 
Miscellaneous 400 000 450 000 810 645 360 645 

Total revenues 2,020,500 3,ll5,310 3,288,870 173 560 

EXPENDITURES 
Public safety 

Police 
Salaries and wages 1,ll6,599 1,491,431 1,296,149 195,282 
Employee benefits 730,472 843,612 770,ll9 73,493 
Services and supplies 405,296 1,101,270 581,819 519,451 
Capital outlay 123,581 187 915 151,833 36,082 

Total police 2,375,948 3,624,228 2,799,920 824 308 

Corrections 
Salaries and wages 28,500 66,603 33,631 32,972 
Employee benefits 3,900 9,215 4,687 4,528 
Services and supplies 100 000 100 000 100 000 

Total corrections 132400 175 818 38318 137 500 

Protective services 
Salaries and wages 277,849 412,476 416,603 (4,127) 
Employee benefits 148,109 210,085 222,288 (12,203) 
Services and supplies 261,901 184,268 170,736 13,532 
Capital outlay 62240 62240 

Total protective services 687 859 869 069 871 867 (2,798) 

Fire 
Salaries and wages 25,260 (25,260) 
Employee benefits 3,512 (3,512) 
Services and supplies 28,209 27,123 1086 

Total fue 28 209 55 895 (27,686) 

Total public safety 3,196J07 4,697,324 3,766,000 931,324 

Total expenditures 3,196J07 4 697 324 3,766,000 931 324 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (1,175,707) !J,582,014) (477,130) 1 104 884 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 19,000 19,000 
Transfers in 975,443 1,106,653 1,088,410 (18,243) 
Transfers out (30,245) (30~5) 

Total other financing soun:es (uses) 975 443 1,125,653 1,077,165 (48,488) 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (200,264) (456,361) 600,035 1,056,396 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2 873 446 3,224,440 3,224,440 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 2,674,182 $ 2,768,079 $ 3,824,475 $ 1,056,396 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MUNICIPAL COURT SUPPORT SPECIAL REVENUE FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 343,400 $ 343,400 $ 444,434 $ 101,034 
Miscellaneous 351984 351984 379 622 27 638 

Total revenues 695 384 695 384 824 056 128 672 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Other 
Services and supplies 369410 369 410 6475 362 935 

Total other 369410 369 410 6475 362 935 

Total general government 369410 369 410 6475 362 935 

Judicial 
Municipal court 

Salaries and wages 302,991 302,991 239,834 63,157 
Employee benefits 159,954 159,954 121,278 38,676 
Services and supplies 327170 327170 149 507 177 663 

Total municipal court 790 115 790 115 510 619 279 496 

Total expenditures 1,159,525 1,159,525 517 094 642 431 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (464,141) (464,141) 306 962 771 103 

OTIIER FINANCING USES 
Transfers out (300,000) (300,000) (300,000) 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (764,141) (764,141) 6,962 771,103 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,662,008 1,706,923 1,706,923 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 897 867 $ 942 782 $ 1,713,885 $ 771 103 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ 10,078,886 $ 10,175,520 $ 4,145,089 $ (6,030,431) 
Miscellaneous 250,000 730 000 827 452 97452 

Total revenues 10,328,886 10,905,520 4 972 541 (5,932,979) 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Finance 
Salaries and wages 32 (32) 
Employee benefits 9 (9) 
Services and supplies 1 (1) 

01her 
Employee benefits 3,412 (3,412) 
Services and supplies 262 (262) 

Total general government 3 716 (3.716) 

Public works 
Streets 

Employee benefits 643 (643) 

Engineering 
Salaries and wages 7 531 (7,531) 

01her 
Employee benefits 564 (564) 

Total other 564 (564) 

Total public works 8 738 (8,738) 

Culture and recreation 
01her 

Employee benefits 6 (6) 
Total other 6 (6) 

Total culture and recreation 6 (6) 

Community support 
Housing and neighborhood services 

Salaries and wages 511,360 513,125 430,880 82,245 
Employee benefits 256,161 256,627 224,912 31,715 
Services and supplies 9,574,713 9,919,116 3,392,035 6,527,081 
Capital outlay 717 900 717 900 717 900 

Economic development 
Services and supplies 50 (50) 

Total economic development 50 (50) 

Total expenditures 11,060,134 11,406,768 4,060,337 7 346 431 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (731,248) (501,248) 912,204 1,413,452 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfers out (400,900) (532,110) (1,331,091) (798,981) 

Total other financing uses (400,900) (532,110) 0,331,091) (798,981) 

(Cootinued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,132,148) 

6.452,934 

(1,033,358) 

8.737,201 

(418,887) 

8.737,201 

614,471 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 5,320.786 $ 7.703,843 $ 8,318,314 $==6=1=4=41..,1 
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to the repayment of debt 
principal and interest. 

Debt Service 
Accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general obligation medium- and long-term debt principal and interest 

Additionally, this fund is used to account for the collection and accumulation of resources for, and the payment o4 principal and interest 
payments pertaining to those special assessments levied against and secured by a lien upon property within certain assessment districts, for 
which the City is financially obligated in the event there are deficiencies. 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

DEBT SERVICE FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Property taxes $ $ $ 2,690 $ 2,690 
Special assessments 2,020,090 2,020,090 2,167,784 147,694 
Fines and forfeitures 430 430 
Investment income 21200 21,200 

Total revenues 2,020,090 2,020,090 2,192,104 172 014 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service 

Principal payments 4,149,700 4,149,700 4,149,700 
Interest and fiscal charges 7,298,131 7,299,863 7,305,541 (5,678) 

Total expenditures 11,447,831 11,449,563 11,455,241 (5,678) 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (9,427,741) (9,429,473) (9,263,BZ) 166 336 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 9,427,741 9,427,741 12,427,741 3,ooo,ooo 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,732) 3,164,604 3,166,336 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,260,387 4,453,270 4,453,270 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 4,260,387 $ 4,451,538 $ 7617874 $ 3,166,336 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FuNl>S 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to the improvement, acquisition or construction 
of capital assets. 

General Government Improvements 
Accounts for various general government capital improvement projects. 

Municipal Buildings Facilities 
Accounts for the costs of acquisition. construction, equipping and furnishing of various new facilities financed through the issuance of general 

obligation bonds. 

Civic Center Facilities 
Accounts for the costs of acquisition, construction, equipping and furnishing of a new civic center facility :financed through the sale of general 

obligation bonds. 

Parks and Recreation Projects 
Accounts for capital improvement expenditures associated with the City's parks and recreation buildings and facilities. 

Public Safety Projeci> 
Accounts for the cost of public safety projects associated with the City's police, fire and detention facilities, as well as the installation of traffic 

signals in developing areas and improvemen:ts of storm drainage systems. 

Capital Projeci> S1reet hnprovements 
Accounts for the design. acquisition, construction and improvements of and to various streets and roadways within the City limits. 





ASSETS 
Cash. cash equivalents and investments 
Accounts receivable, net 
Grants receivable 
Due from other governments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 
Due t.o other governments 
Unearned revenue 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted for 

Street i.mprovm.ents projects 
01her capital projects 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FuNDS 
COMBININGBALANCESHEET 

JUNE 30, 2016 

General 
Government 

Improvements 

$ 143,379 $ 

$ 143 379 $ 

$ 10,460 $ 

10460 

132,919 
Police, fire and other public safety programs and projects 
Parks, cultural and other recreatiocal programs 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 132 919 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 143 379 $ 

(Continued) 

Municipal Parks and 
Buildings Civic Center Recreation 
Facilities Facilities Projects 

4,427,508 $ 1,936,724 $ 2,076,953 
2,907 

319,938 
188 

4,427,508 $ 1,936.724 $ 2,399,986 

156,599 $ 707,195 $ 276,090 
45,223 

4578 

156 599 707195 325 891 

2,445,728 l,229,529 
608,509 

1,216,672 2,074,095 

4,270,909 1,229,529 2 074 095 

4,427,508 $ 1,936,724 $ 2,399,986 

107 



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FuNDS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

Capital Projects 
Public Safety Street 

ASSETS 
Cash. cash equivalents and investments 
Accounts receivable, net 
Grants receivable 
Due from other governments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 
Due t.o other governments 
Unearned revenue 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted for 

Street i.mprovm.ents projects 
01her capital projects 
Police, fire and other public safety programs and projects 
Parl<s, cultural and other recreatiooal programs 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

Projects Improvements 

$ 7,059,414 $ 3,076,672 
43,329 

2,541,740 3,368,780 

$ 9,601,154 $ 6.488.781 

$ 938,857 $ 2,372,149 

2228 59 893 

941 085 2,432,042 

4,056,739 

8,633,145 

26924 

8,660,069 4 056 739 

$ 9,601,154 $ 6,488,781 

Total Capital 
Projects 

$ 18,720,650 
46,236 

6,230,458 
188 

$ 24,997.532 

$ 4,461,350 
45,223 
66 699 

4,573.J:.72 

4,056,739 
3,808,176 
9,241,654 
3,290,767 

26 924 

20,424,260 

$ 24,997,532 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FuNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES ANO CHANGES IN FuND BALANCES 

FOR THE YEAR ENOED JUNE 30, 2016 

General Municipal Parks and 
Government Buildings Civic Center Recreation 

Improvements Facilities Facilities Projects 

REVENUES 
Charges for services $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental 1,057,700 
Contributions 
Investment income 34,256 13,127 
Miscellaneous 4146 

Total revenues 34256 13127 1,061,846 

EXPENDITURES 
Cummt 

General government 136,100 228,511 (1,475) 
Public safety 13,457 
Public works 9,436 (66,386) 
Culture and recreation 15,926 92,004 
Community support 71 !244) 

Total current 174 990 228,511 23 899 

Capital outlay 
General government 10,460 145,105 869,083 1,475 
Public safety 404,788 244 
Public works 36,378 61,572 
Culture and recreation 39,929 2,547,804 
Community support 191 18106 

Total capital outlay 10460 626 391 869 083 2,629,201 

Total expenditures 10461 801 381 1097594 2,653,100 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES !10,461) !767,125) !1,084,46Z) !l,591,254) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 
Transfers in 2,005,612 
Transfers out !36,384) 

Total other financing sources (uses) !36,384) 2,005,612 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (10,461) (767,125) (1,120,851) 414,358 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 143 380 S,038,034 2,350,380 1,659,737 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 132 919 $ 4,270,909 $ 1,229,529 $ 2,074,095 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FuNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FuND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Capital Projects 
Public Safety Street Total Capital 

Projects Improvements Projects 

REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 114,266 $ $ 114,266 
Intergovernmental 19,101,590 18,244,895 38,404,185 
Cootributioos 300 300 
Investment income 47,383 
Miscellaneous 574 750 (22,552) 556 344 

Total revenues 19,790,906 18,222,343 39,122,478 

EXPENDITURES 
Cummt 

General government 539 (25,956) 337,719 
Public safety 233,458 117,709 364,624 
Public works 9,281 967,735 920,067 
Culture and recreation 519 108,449 
Community support 338 3 026 3 191 

Total current 243 616 1,063,033 1,734,050 

Capital outlay 
General government 16,128 30,504 1,072,755 
Public safety 1,276,792 553,669 2,235,493 
Public works 19,079,608 18,541,023 37,718,581 
Culture and recreation 2,587,733 
Community support 852 7 804 26 953 

Total capital outlay 20,373,380 19,133,000 43,641,515 

Total expenditures 20,616,996 20,196,033 45,375,565 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (826,090) (1,973,690) !6d53,08Z) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 17,193 17,193 
Transfers in 397,430 1,645,253 4,048,295 
Transfers out (253,430) (289,814) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 414 623 1,391,823 3 775 674 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (411,467) (581,867) (2,477,413) 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,071,536 4,638,606 22,901,673 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 8,660,069 $ 4,056,739 $ 20,424,260 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

GENERAL GoVERNMENT IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Finance 
Services and supplies $ $ $ (10,460) $ 10,460 
Capital outlay 10460 (10,460) 

01her 
Services and supplies 10460 (10,460) 

Total general government 10460 (10,460) 

Public works 
01her 

Services and supplies (1) 

Total public works 0) 

Total expenditures 10461 (10,461) 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (10,461) (10,461) 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (10,461) (10,461) 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 151 510 143 380 143 380 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 151 510 $ 143 380 $ 132 919 $ (10,461) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS FACILITIES CAPITAL PROJECTS F'uND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Investment income $ $ $ 34 256 $ 34d56 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

City attorney 
Capital outlay 6 (6) 

Finance 
Employee benefits 1 (1) 
Services and supplies 14,366 (14,366) 
Capital outlay (14,065) 14 065 

Total finance 302 (302) 

Other 
Salaries and wages 7,000 7,000 7,000 
Employee benefits 3,000 3,000 3,000 
Services and supplies 180,885 234,885 121,733 113,152 
Capital outlay 130,000 309,500 159164 150,336 

Total other 320,885 554 385 280 897 273 488 

Total general government 320,885 554 385 281,205 273 180 

Public safety 
Police 

Salaries and wages 28,575 28,575 28,575 
Employee benefits 12,675 12,675 12,675 
Services and supplies 27,750 27,750 13,182 14,568 
Capital outlay 90 580 (90,580) 

Protective services 
Salaries and wages 176 (176) 
Employee benefits 93 (93) 
Services and supplies 6 (6) 

Total protective services 275 (275) 

Safe streets 2000 
Capital outlay 176 (176) 

Total safe streets 2000 176 (176) 

Other 
Capital outlay 271 000 929153 314 032 615 121 

Total public safety 340 000 998 153 418 245 579 908 

Public works 
Streets 

Salaries and wages (176) 176 
Employee benefits (94) 94 
Services and supplies (6) 6 

Total streets (276) 276 

Engineering 
Salaries and wages (16,770) 16,770 
Employee benefits (10,707) 10,707 
Services and supplies (587) 587 
Capital outlay 28064 (28,064) 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS FACILITIES CAPITAL PROJECTS F'uND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Real property 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total real property 

Construction 
Salaries and wages 
Employee beoefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

01her 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total other 

Total public works 

Culture and recreation 
Administration 

Salaries and wages 
Employee beoefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total administration 

Library district operations 
Services and supplies 

01her 

Total culture and recreation 

Community support 
Housing and neighborhood services 

Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total housing and neighborhood services 

Total community support 

Total expenditures 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total o1her financing sources (uses) 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 

Original Budget Final Budget 

660 885 

(660,885) 

340,000 
(340,000) 

(660,885) 

3,268,1l63 

$ 2,607,378 $ 

6,000 
6,580 

55,708 
1,092,000 
l,160,288 

l,160,288 

2,712,826 

!2.712,826) 

340,000 
(340,000) 

(2,712,826) 

5,038,034 

2,325,208 

Actual Variance 

(66) 66 
(4) 4 

(70) 70 

(5,067) 5,067 
(3,071) 3,071 

(176) 176 
8314 (8,314) 

27,662 (27,662) 
17,531 (17,531) 

967 !967) 
46160 !46,160) 

45 814 !45,814) 

6,000 
6,580 

(29,031) 84,739 
39929 1,052,071 
10 898 1,149,390 

44957 (44,957) 

55 855 1,104,433 

67 (67) 
4 (4) 

191 !191) 
262 !262) 

262 !262) 

801 381 1911445 

!767,125) 1945701 

(340,000) 
340 000 

(767,125) 1,945,701 

5,038,034 

$ 4 270 909 $ 1945701 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

CIVIC CENTER FACILITIES CAPITAL PROJECTS FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

REVENUES 
Investment income 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Finance 

Other 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total other 

Total general government 

Total expenditures 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfers out 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 

Original Budget Final Budget 

$. ____ $. ____ $ 

981,225 1,241,325 
80000 

981,225 1,321,325 

981,225 1,321,325 

981,225 1,321,325 

(981,225) 0,321,325) 

!36,384) !36,384) 

(1,017,609) (1,357,709) 

1,538,023 2,350,380 

$ 520414 $ 992 671 $ 

Actual Variance 

13 127 $. __ _,1"'3 ""12::..:.7 

678,410 562,915 
419184 !339,184) 

1097594 223,731 

1097594 223 731 

1097594 223 731 

0,084,467) 236,858 

!36,384) 

(1,120,851) 236,858 

2,350,380 

1,229,529 $ 236,858 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PARKS AND RECREATION PROJECTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

City attorney 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total city attorney 

Finance 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total finance 

Public safety 
Other 

Capital outlay 

Total public safety 

Public works 
Streets 

Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total streets 

Engineering 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total engineering 

Real property 
Services and supplies 

Total real property 

Construction 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Survey 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total public works 

$ 1,454,282 $ 1,620,117 $ 

1,454d82 1,620,117 

(Continued) 

1,057,700 
4146 

1,061,846 

(78) 
(55) 

(3) 
164 
28 

(783) 
(528) 

(28) 
1311 

!28) 

244 

244 

407 
1,995 

157 
2 559 

(24,922) 
(16,066) 

(866) 
43 534 

1680 

!9,053) 
!9,053) 

(7,946) 
(4,713) 

(278) 
12 937 

(2,787) 
(2,216) 

(98) 
5101 

!4,814) 

$ (562,417) 
4146 

!558d71) 

78 
55 

3 
!164) 

!28) 

783 
528 

28 
!1,311) 

28 

!244) 

!244) 

(407) 
(1,995) 

057) 
!2.S59) 

24,922 
16,066 

866 
(43,534) 
0,680) 

9 053 
9 053 

7,946 
4,713 

278 
02,937) 

2,787 
2,216 

98 
!5,101) 

4814 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PARKS AND RECREATION PROJECTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

Culture and recreation 
Administration 

Services and supplies 100,094 (100,094) 
Capital outlay 2,750,280 2,959,050 2,385,951 573 099 

Parl<s planning and development 
Salaries and wages 149,955 149,955 149,955 
Employee benefits 66,537 66,537 66,537 
Services and supplies 673,049 673,049 (79,842) 152,891 
Capital outlay 19 842 (19,842) 

Total parl<s planning and development 889 541 889 541 889 541 

Parl<s and grounds 
Services and supplies 21,551 21,551 21,551 
Capital outlay 82011 (82,011) 

Total parl<s and grounds 21551 21551 82011 (54,460) 

01her 
Salaries and wages 42,634 (42,634) 
Employee benefits 21,625 (27,625) 
Services and supplies 1493 (1,493) 

Total other 11152 Ol,752) 

Total culture and :recreation 3,667,372 3,876,142 2,639,808 ld36,334 

Community support 
Housing and neighborhood services 

Salaries and wages (144) 144 
Employee benefits (95) 95 
Services and supplies (5) 5 
Capital outlay 18106 (18,106) 

Total housing and neighbmhood services 11862 (17,862) 

Total community support 11862 (17,862) 

Total expenditures 3,667,372 3,876,142 2,653,100 l,B3,042 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (2,213,090) (2,256,025) (1,591,254) 664171 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 1,366,551 1409 486 2,005,612 596126 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (846,539) (846,539) 414,358 1,260,897 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR l,ll3,436 1,659,737 1,659,737 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 266,897 $ 813,198 $ 2,074,095 $ ld60,897 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PuBLIC SAFETY PROJECTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

REVENUES 
Charges for services 
futergovernmental 
Contributions 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

City attorney 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total city attorney 

Finance 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total finance 

Other 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 

Total other 

Total general government 

Public safety 
Protective services 

Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total protective services 

Fire 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total fire 

Safe streets 2000 
Capital outlay 

Total safe streets 2000 

Other 
Capital outlay 

Total public safety 

Public works 

Original Budget 

$ 

(Continued) 

41,652,022 

41,652,022 

613,000 
1,379,000 
1,992,000 

1,992,000 

$ 

Final Budget 

149,438 
41,652,022 

2,491 

41,803,951 

2,491 
149 438 
151929 

230,500 
2,014,674 
2,245,174 

2,397,103 

$ 

Actual 

114,266 
19,101,590 

300 
574 750 

19,790,906 

(1,015) 
(717) 

(36) 
2062 

294 

(8,035) 
(5,567) 

(284) 
14066 

180 

9,457 
6,409 

327 
16193 

16667 

823 
456 

27 
108 048 
109 354 

232,152 
1,167,203 
1,399,355 

1 055 
I 055 

486 

1,510,250 

$ 

Variance 

(35,172) 
(22,550,432) 

(2,191) 
574 750 

(22,013,045) 

1,015 
717 

36 
(2,062) 

(294) 

8,035 
5,567 

284 
04,066) 

080) 

(9,457) 
(6,409) 

(327) 
06.193) 

06,667) 

(823) 
(456) 

2,464 
41390 
42 575 

(1,652) 
847 471 
845 819 

0,055) 
O.OS5l 

(486) 

886,853 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PuBLIC SAFETY PROJECTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

Flood control 
Salaries and wages 140,923 140,923 (4,976) 145,899 
Employee benefits 61,466 61,466 (3,086) 64,552 
Services and supplies 72,797 72,797 (743,328) 816,125 
Capital outlay 33,116,481 33,116,481 18,300,441 14,816,040 

Total flood control 33,391,667 33,391,667 17,549,051 15,842,616 

Streets 
Salaries and wages (1,055) 1,055 
Employee benefits (457) 457 
Services and supplies 9971 (9,971) 

Total streets 8459 (8,459) 

Engineering 
Salaries and wages (109,874) 109,874 
Employee benefits (70,588) 70,588 
Services and supplies (3,830) 3,830 
Capital outlay 184 304 (184,304) 

Total engineering 12 (12) 

Real property 
Salaries and wages (3,978) 3,978 
Employee benefits (2,985) 2,985 
Services and supplies (157) 157 
Capital outlay 6782 (6,782) 

Total real property (338) 338 

Construction 
Salaries and wages (322,010) 322,010 
Employee benefits (192,437) 192,437 
Services and supplies (10,554) 10,554 
Capital outlay 525 687 (525,687) 

Total construction 686 (686) 

Survey 
Salaries and wages (34,607) 34,607 
Employee benefits (23,877) 23,877 
Services and supplies (1,211) 1,211 
Capital outlay 59935 (59,935) 

Other 
Salaries and wages 2,964,129 2,964,129 476,145 2,487,984 
Employee benefits 1,284,700 1,284,700 293,090 991,610 
Services and supplies 2,736,373 2,736,373 759,085 1,977,288 
Capital outlay 1,275,153 1,275,153 2459 1~72,694 

Total other 8,260,355 8,260,355 I 530 779 6,729,576 

Total public works 41,652,022 41,652,022 19,088,889 22,563,133 

Community support 
Housing and neighborhood services 

Employee benefits 320 (320) 
Services and supplies 18 (18) 
Capital outlay 852 (852) 

Total housing and neighborhood services 1190 (1,190) 

Total community support 1190 0,190) 

(Cootinued) 
118 



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PuBLIC SAFETY PROJECTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

Total expenditures 43,644,022 44,049,125 20,616,996 23,432,129 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (1,992,000) (2,245,174) (826,090) 1419 084 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Proceeds from capital asset disposal 17,193 17,193 
Transfers in 397 430 397 430 397 430 

Total other :financing sources 397 430 397 430 414 623 17193 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,594,570) (1,847,744) (411,467) 1,436,277 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,166,508 9,071,536 9,071,536 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 5,571,938 $ 7,223,792 $ 8,660,069 $ l,436J77 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

CAPITAL PROJECTS STREET IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN F'uND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental 
Contributions 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

City attorney 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Capital outlay 

Total city attorney 

Finance 
Salaries and wages 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total finance 

Other 
Salaries and wages 

Total other 

Total general government 

Public safety 
Protective services 

Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total protective services 

Safe streets 2000 
Capital outlay 

Total safe streets 2000 

Other 
Capital outlay 

Total other 

Total public safety 

Public worl<s 
Administration 

Salaries and wages 
Total administration 

Flood control 
Employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Capital outlay 

Total flood control 

Original Budget Final Budget 

$ 37,055,462 $ 37,055,462 $ 
357,000 357,000 

37,412,462 37,412,462 

(Continued) 

Actual Variance 

18,244,895 $ (18,810,567) 
(357,000) 

(22,552) (22,552) 

18,222,343 !19,190,119) 

(1,407) 1,407 
(992) 992 

3 022 !3,022) 
623 !623) 

(13,239) 13,239 
(9,792) 9,792 

(469) 469 
27 482 !27,482) 

3 982 !3,982) 

!57) 57 
!57) 57 

4 548 !4,548) 

117,709 (117,709) 
435 005 !435,005) 
552 714 !552,714) 

3 375 !3,375) 
3 375 !3,375) 

115 289 !115d89) 
115 289 015d89) 

671378 !671,378) 

0,206) ld06 
0,206) Jd06 

2 (2) 
2 (2) 

95 468 !95,468) 
95 472 (95,472) 

120 



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

CAPITAL PROJECTS STREET IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

Streets 
Salaries and wages 2,251,821 2,251,821 2,251,821 
Employee benefits 975,864 975,864 975,864 
Services and supplies 2,471,362 2,471,362 564,163 1,907,199 
Capital outlay 32,922,136 32,922,136 17,557,499 15,364,637 

Total streets 38,621,183 38,621,183 18,121,662 20,499,521 

Engineering 
Salaries and wages 147,075 147,075 15,609 131,466 
Employee benefits 64,575 64,575 10,292 54,283 
Services and supplies 167,350 167,350 544 166,806 
Capital outlay 1,827,000 1,827,000 344 671 1,482,329 

Total engineering 2,206,000 2,206,000 371116 1,834,884 

Real property 
Salaries and wages 194 (194) 
Employee benefits (2,737) 2,737 
Services and supplies (145) 145 
Capital outlay 89658 (89,658) 

Total n:al property 86970 (86,970) 

Construction 
Salaries and wages 11,710 (11,710) 
Employee benefits 7,329 (7,329) 
Services and supplies 408 (408) 
Capital outlay 370 648 (370,648) 

Total construction 390 095 (390,095) 

Survey 
Salaries and wages 969 (969) 
Employee benefits 488 (488) 
Services and supplies 34 (34) 
Capital outlay 79981 (79,981) 

Total survey 81472 (81,472) 

Other 
Salaries and wages 16,347 (16,347) 
Employee benefits 10,623 (10,623) 
Services and supplies 333,109 (333,109) 
Capital outlay 3 098 (3,098) 

Total other 363 177 (363,177) 

Total public works 40,827,183 40,827,183 19,508,758 21,318,425 

Culture and recreation 
Other 

Employee benefits 519 (519) 
Total other 519 (519) 

Total culture and recreation 519 (519) 

Community support 
Housing and neighborhood services 

Employee benefits 2,871 (2,871) 
Services and supplies 155 (155) 
Capital outlay 7 804 (7,804) 

Total housing and neighborhood services 10 830 (10,830) 

Total community support 10 830 (10,830) 
(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

CAPITAL PROJECTS STREET IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual Variance 

Total expenditures 40,827,183 40,827,183 20,196,033 20,631,150 

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (3,414,721) (3,414,721) 0,973,690) 1441 031 

OTIIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 1,805,190 1,805,190 1,645,253 (159,937) 
Transfers out (13,430) (253,430) (253,430) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1 791 760 1,551,760 1,391,823 (159,937) 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,622,961) (1,862,961) (581,867) 1,281,094 

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,138,602 4,638,606 4,638,606 

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 1,515,641 $ 2,775,645 $ 4,056,739 $ ld81,094 
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS 





MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MAJOR ENTERPRISE FuNl>S 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Enterprise funds are used to account for activites for which a user fee is charged for goods or services. 

Wastewater Utility 
Accounts for the collection from the residents of the City and the transmission of sewage through the system infrastructure for treatment and 

release into Lake Mead. 

Water Utility 
Accounts for the delivery of water services through the system infrastructure to the residents of the City and other service areas. 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

WASTEWATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FuND 
SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Utility fees $ 39,776,000 $ 39,776,000 $ 40,695,324 $ 
Construction fees 270,000 270,000 297,878 
Connection fees 970,000 970,000 2,363,188 
Other charges for services 8,742 
Fines and forfeitures 600,000 600,000 875,978 
Miscellaneous 300,000 300,000 468 201 

Total operating revenues 41,916,000 41,916,000 44 709 311 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries and wages 4,077,303 4,077,303 2,605,213 
Employee benefits 1,905,011 1,905,011 1,689,091 
Services and supplies 14,743,948 14,752,948 10,693,600 
Depreciation and amortization 13,342,600 13,342,600 14,077,284 

Total operating expenses 34,068,862 34,077,862 29,065,188 

Operating income 7 847 138 7,838,138 15,644,123 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 7,702 
Gain (loss) on capital asset disposition (8,194,522) 
Interest and fiscal charges (15,098,437) (15,098,437) (14,841,346) 
Intergovernmental 6,326,306 6,326,306 6,509,631 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (8,772,131) (8,772,131) (16,518,535) 

Loss before capital contributions and transfers (924,993) (933,993) (874,412) 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
Capital contributions 181628 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers out (5,296,167) (5,296,167) (5,296,167) 

CHANGE IN NET POSffiON $ (6,221,160) $ (6,230,160) (5,988,951) $ 

NET POSffiON, BEGINNING OF YEAR 154,656,878 

NET POSffiON, END OF YEAR $ 148,667,927 

Variance 

919,324 
27,878 

1,393,188 
8,742 

275,978 
168d01 

2,793,311 

1,472,090 
215,920 

4,059,348 
(734,684) 

5,012,674 

7,805,985 

7,702 
(8,194,522) 

257,091 
183 325 

(7,746,404) 

59 581 

181 628 

241J09 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

WATER UTILITY ENTERPRISE FuND 
SCIIEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Utility fees $ 51,745,000 $ 51,745,000 $ 51,988,427 $ 
Construction fees 310,000 310,000 417,900 
Connection fees 900,000 900,000 736,712 
Other charges for services 1,802,000 1,802,000 1,932,616 
Fines and forfeitures 1,465,000 1,465,000 2,550,154 
Miscellaneous 775 000 775 000 799 425 

Total operating revenues 56,997,000 56,997,000 58,425,234 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries and wages 6,393,674 6,393,674 5,362,061 
Employee benefits 3,031,443 3,031,443 2,876,478 
Services and supplies 26,687,839 26,694,939 22,172,309 
Depreciation and amortization 5,508,400 5,508,400 5,596,499 

Total operating expenses 41,621,356 41,628,456 36,007,347 

Operating income 15,375,644 15,368,544 22,417,887 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Gain (loss) on capital asset disposition 6,517 
Interest and fiscal chaxges (393,563) (393,563) (261,771) 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (393,563) (393,563) (255,254) 

Income before capital contnDutions and transfers 14,982,081 14,974,981 22,162,633 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
Capital con1ributions 274 580 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers in 87,284 87,284 468,319 
Transfers out (18,196d37) (18,196,237) (18,196,23Z) 

Total transfers (18,108,953) (18,108,953) (17,727,918) 

CHANGE IN NET POSffiON $ (3,126,872) $ (3,133,972) 4709295 $ 

NET POSffiON, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED 127,763,462 
Adjustment (1,485,615) 

NET POSmON, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS AOJUSTED 126,277,847 

NET POSffiON, END OF YEAR $ 130,987,142 

Variance 

243,427 
107,900 

(163,288) 
130,616 

1,085,154 
24425 

l,428d34 

1,031,613 
154,965 

4,522,630 
(88,099) 

5,621,109 

7 049 343 

6,517 
131,792 
138 309 

7,187,652 

274 580 

381,035 

381 035 

7.S43d67 
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NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Enterprise funds are used to account for activites for which a user fee is charged for goods or services. 

Municipal Golf Courses 
Accounts for the operations of a nine-hole par-3 golf course and an 18-hole par-72 championship course. 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MUNICIPAL GoLF COURSES ENTERPRISE FuND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual 

OPERATING REVENUES 
User fees $ 2,281,894 $ 2,281,894 $ 1,844,830 $ 
Miscellaneous 30000 30000 39 541 

Total operating revenues 2,311,894 2,311,894 1884371 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries and wages 114,060 82,060 83,216 
Employee benefits 17,281 17,281 57,277 
Services and supplies 2,296,486 2,328,486 2,186,845 
Depreciation and amortization 226400 226,400 226,356 

Total operating expenses 2,654d27 2,654,227 2,553,694 

Operating loss (342,333) (342,333) (669,323) 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers in 127,600 127,600 127,600 
Transfers out !14,563) 

CHANGE IN NET POSffiON $ !214,733) $ !214,733) (556,286) $ 

NET POSffiON, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,843,576 

NET POSffiON, END OF YEAR $ 5,287,290 

Variance 

(437,064) 
9 541 

(427,523) 

(1,156) 
(39,996) 
141,641 

44 
100 533 

(326,990) 

!14,563) 

{341,553) 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FuNI>s 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Intemal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of 
the government and to other governmental units, on a cost reimbursement basis. 

Motor Equipment 
Accounts for repairs, maintenance, fuel and services to vehicles of all departments of the City. 

Self-insurance Reserve 
Accounts for costs incurred in self-insuring liability claims, unemploymen~ employee and retiree lrealth care (including medical, dental and 

vision), workers' compensation programs and post employment benefits other than pensions. 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

INTERNAL SERVICE F'uNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2016 

M- Self-insurance Total Internal 
Egy!ument R<serve Service Funds 

ASSETS 
Current assets 

Cash. cash equivalents and investments $ 11,386,908 $ 46,513,312 $ 57,900,220 
Accounts receivable, net 519 3,915 4,434 
Prepaid items 364,059 364,059 
Due from other funds 216,857 216,857 
Inventories 258 143 258143 

Total current assets 11,645,570 47,098,143 58,743,713 

N oncurrent assets 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Construction in progress 66,964 66,964 
Buildings and building improvements 227,870 227,870 
Improvements other than buildings 83,293 83,293 
Machinery, equipment and software 1,217,589 J,217,589 

Total noncurrent assets 1595 716 1,595,716 

Total assets 13,241,286 47,098,143 60,339,429 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unamortized amounts related to pensions 200 746 98696 299 442 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 399,837 3,458,692 3,858,529 
Accrued salaries and benefits 18,124 10,974,642 10,992,766 
Due oo other funds 1,873 811 2,684 
Due to other governments 145 1,669 1,814 
Compensated absences 37 801 8911 46 712 

Total current liabilities 457 780 14 444 725 14,902,505 

N oncurrent liabilities 
Compensated absences 308,779 72,793 381,572 
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 15,305,563 15,305,563 
Net Pension Liability 1,288,730 633 597 1,922,327 

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,597,509 16,011,953 17,609,462 

Total liabilities 2,055,289 30,456,678 32,511,967 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unamortized liabilities related to pensions 247 346 121,607 368,953 

NETPOSffiON 
Net investment in capital assets 1,595,716 1,595,716 

Claims and judgements 2,400,000 2,400,000 
Unrestricted 9543,681 14,218554 23.762,235 

Total net position $ 11,139,397 $ 16,618,554 $ 27,757,951 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

INTERNAL SERVICE F'uNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

M- Self-insurance Total Internal 
Egy!ument R<serve Service Funds 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Other charges for services $ 10,177,336 $ 30,564,759 $ 40,742,095 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries and wages 772,255 4,357,581 5,129,836 
Employee benefits 503,879 2,414,813 2,918,692 
Services and supplies 2,447,032 17,826,857 20,273,889 
Depreciation and amortization 817 991 817 991 

Total operating expenses 4 541157 24,599,251 29,140,408 

Operating income 5,636,179 5,965,508 11,601,687 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
Investment income 27,918 27,918 
Gain (loss) on capital asset disposition (21,538) (21,538) 

Total nonoperating revenues (21,538) 27918 6 380 

Income before capital contnDutions and transfers 5,614,641 5,993,426 11,608,067 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers in 600,000 600,000 

CHANGE IN NET POSffiON 5,614,641 6,593,426 12,208,067 

NET POSffiON, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,524,756 10,025,128 15,549,884 

NET POSmON, END OF YEAR $ 11,139,397 $ 16,618,554 $ 27,757,951 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

INTERNAL SERIVICE FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

M-
Egy!ument 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from customers $ 6,487,707 $ 
Cash received from interfund services 3,689,110 
Cash payments for goods and services (2,241,245) 
Cash payments for employee services (989,618) 
Cash payments for interfund services (51,27ZJ 

Net cash provided by operating activities 6 894 677 

CASH FLOWS FROM NON CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Transfers in 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTMTIES 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (563,815) 

Net cash used in capital financing activities (563,815) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES 
Investment income received 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUN ALENTS 6,330,862 

CASH AND CASH EQUNALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,056,046 

CASH AND CASH EQUNALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 11,386,908 $ 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

Operating income $ 5,636,179 $ 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities 

Depreciation 817,991 
(Increase) decrease in operating assets 

Accounts receivable (519) 
Due from other funds 
Prepaid iU:ms 

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities 
Accounts payable 205,799 
Accrued salaries and benefits 3,340 
Due oo odier funds (245) 
Due to other governments (12) 
Compensated absences 57,300 
Postemployment benefits other than pensions 174 844 

Total adjustments 1,258,498 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 6 894 677 $ 

Self-insurance Total Internal 
&<serve Service Funds 

30,561,281 $ 37,048,988 
232,217 3,921,327 

(18,750,527) (20,991,772) 
(2,640,971) (3,630,589) 

(549) (51,826) 
9 401451 16d96,128 

600,000 600,000 

(563,815) 
(563,815) 

27918 27 918 

10,029,369 16,360,231 

36,483,943 41,539,989 

46.Sl3,312 $ 57,900,220 

5,965,508 $ 11,601,687 

817,991 

(3,478) (3,997) 
232,217 232,217 
(13,225) (13,225) 

(888,267) (682,468) 
2,062,162 2,065,502 

(549) (794) 
(22,178) (22,190) 

(101,609) (44,309) 
2,170,870 2 345 714 
3,435,943 4 694 441 

9 401451 $ 16d96,128 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

MOTOR EQUIPMENT ENTERPRISE F'uND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Other charges for services $ 5,660,679 $ 5 691679 $ 10,177,336 $ 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries and wages 715,433 715,433 772,255 
Employee benefits 328,111 328,111 503,879 
Services and supplies 3,109,055 3,109,055 2,447,032 
Depreciation and amortization 763 700 763 700 817 991 

Total operating expenses 4,916d99 4,916,299 4 541157 

Operating income 744 380 775 380 5,636,179 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
Gain (loss) on capital asset disposition (21,538) 

Income before capital contnDutions 744 380 775 380 5 614 641 

CHANGE IN NET POSffiON $ 744 380 $ 775 380 5,614,641 $ 

NET POSffiON, BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,524,756 

NET POSmON, END OF YEAR $ 11,139,397 

Variance 

4485 657 

(56,822) 
(175,768) 
662,023 
(54d91) 
375142 

4 860 799 

(21,538) 

4,839d61 

4,839d61 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SELF-INSURANCE RESERVE ENTERPRISE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET TO ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Original Budget Final Budget Actual 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Other charges for services $ 22,577,710 $ 22,577,710 $ 30,564,759 $ 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries and wages 5,673,108 5,673,108 4,357,581 
Employee benefits 546,891 546,891 2,414,813 
Services and supplies 17,176,192 17,176,192 17,826,857 

Total operating expenses 23,396,191 23,3%,191 24,599,251 

Operating income (loss) (818,481) (818,481) 5,965,508 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
Investment income 27918 

Income (loss) before transfers (818,481) (818,481) 5,993,426 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers in 600,000 600,000 600,000 

CHANGE IN NET POSffiON $ (218,481) $ (218,481) 6,593,426 $ 

NET POSffiON, BEGINNING OF YEAR 10,025,128 

NET POSffiON, END OF YEAR $ 16,618,554 

Variance 

7 987 049 

1,315,527 
(1,867,922) 

(650,665) 
0,203,060) 

6,783,989 

27 918 

6,811,907 

6,811,907 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

AGENCY FuNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Agency funds are used to account for assets held as an agent for individuals, private organimtions, other governments or other funds. 

Bail Deposit. 
Accounts for funds deposited or pledged for the release of a suspect from detention, with the understanding that the suspect will return for trial or 

forfeit the bail (and possibly be brought up on charges of the crime or failure t.o appear). 

Non-forfeiture Holding 
Accounts for those funds associated with the seizure of narcotics from a suspect to be held until such time as a trial is held and a determination is 

made with regard to the purpose of the funds. 

Other Deposits 
Accounts for funds deposited by developers in-lieu of a surety bond. 

Business Cleanup Deposits 
Accounts for those deposit requirements as a condition to the issuance of a special use permit in the event the business fails to adequately clean 

up the area after the special event. 

Special Trust Reward 
Accounts for funds from Clark County to be used as a reward to eligiDle tipsters who provide information that directly leads to the whereabouts 

ofEverlyse Cabrera and the subsequent felony arrest and/or indictment. 

Employee Insurance Deposits 
Accounts for employee and employer contributions to group health and life insurance, which are held until they are disbursed to the City's 

insurance carriers. 

Workers' Compensation Retention 
Accounts for ftmds held by the State of Nevada as a retention requirement. 

Contractor Retention Accounts 
Accounts for money withheld from contract payments as retention requirements in construction contracts. 

New Construction Privilege Tax 
Accounts for ftmds collected from new construction by the City and remitted to Clark County, Nevada. 

Convention Authority Tax 
Accounts for for gaming taxes and room tax receipts collected from North Las Vegas businesses by the City and transmitted to the Las Vegas 

Convention and Visitors Authority. 

Garbage Company Collection 
Accounts for billings and collections by the City for garbage pick-up services performed by a local disposal company. 

Inmate Deposits 
Accounts for ftmds held for inmates in the City Detention Center until they are released or transferred. 

SIAD No. 54 (Civic Center Drive Development) 
Accounts for the collection of property assessments pledged for the payment of principal and interest and for which no assets or revenues of the 

City have been pledged. 

SIAD No. 60 (Aliante Development) 
Accounts for the collection of property assessments pledged for the payment of principal and interest and for which no assets or revenues of the 

City have been pledged. 





ASSETS 
Cash, cash equivalents and investments 
Accounts receivable, net 
Interest receivable 
Special assessments receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other governments 
Due to developers 
Due to others 

Total liabilities 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

AGENCY FUNDS 
COMBINJNG STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY AsSETS AND LIABILITIES 

JUNE 30, 2016 

Business 
Non-forfeiture Cleanup Special Trust 

Bail D!::J2osits Holding Other Dm2osits D~sits Reward 

$ 155,699 $ 695,289 $ 3,376,590 $ 16,599 $ 15,000 $ 
5,337 

$ 155,699 $ 695,289 $ 3,381,927 $ 16,599 $ 15,000 $ 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 
15,557 

155 699 695 289 3,366,370 16 599 15 000 

$ 155,699 $ 695,289 $ 3,381,927 $ 16,599 $ 15,000 $ 

(Continued) 

Employee Workers' Contractor 
Insurance Compensation Retention 
Dra?Qsits Retention Accounts 

9,613 $ 258 $ 2,852,631 

9,613 $ 258 $ 2,852,631 

$ $ 
2,852,568 

9 613 258 63 

9,613 $ 258 $ 2,852,631 
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ASSETS 
Cash, cash equivalents and investments 
Accounts receivable, net 
Interest receivable 
Special assessments receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other governments 
Due to developers 
Due to others 

Total liabilities 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

AGENCY FUNDS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2016 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

New 
Construction 
Privilege Tax 

68,306 $ 

68 306 $ 

68,306 $ 

68,306 $ 

Convention 
Authoritv Tax 

195,686 $ 
10,506 

206,192 $ 

206,942 $ 

(750) 

206,192 $ 

Garbage 
Company 
Collection 

SIADNo.54 
(Civic Center 

Drive 
Inmate Deposits Development) 

1,706,716 $ 5,070 $ 474,626 $ 
2,720,361 

4427077 $ 5 070 $ 474 626 $ 

$ $ $ 

4 427 077 5 070 474 626 

4,427,077 $ 5,070 $ 474,626 $ 

SIADNo.60 
(Aliante Total Agency 

Develnmnentl Funds 

3,478,274 $ 13,050,357 
2,736,204 

625 625 
4499 4499 

3,483,398 $ 15,791,685 

$ 275,248 
2,868,125 

3,483,398 12,648,312 

3,483,398 $ 15,791,685 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

AGENCY FuNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY AsSETS AND LIABILITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Balance Balance 
July I. 2015 Additions Deductions June 30. 2016 

BAIL DEPOSITS 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 188 488 $ 391 781 $ 452 621 $ 155 699 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others $ 188 488 $ 1404 657 $ 1465 497 $ 155 699 

NON-FORFEITURE HOIDING 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 327 550 $ 76 072 $ 105 176 $ 695d89 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others $ 327 550 $ 93 423 $ 122,527 $ 695d89 

OTHER DEPOSITS 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 3,044,881 $ 1,866,141 $ 1,463,009 $ 3,376,590 

Accounts receivable, net $ $ $ $ 5 337 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others $ 3,004,941 $ 2,283,582 $ 1,880,450 $ 3,366,370 

BUSINESS CLEANUP DEPOSITS 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 14 549 $ 5 050 $ 4050 $ 16 599 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others $ 14 549 $ 2 700 $ 1700 $ 16 599 

SPECIAL TRUST REWARD 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 15 000 $ $ $ 15 000 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others $ 15 000 $ $ $ 15 000 

EMPLOYEE INSURANCE DEPOSITS 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 104,846 $ 33,158,232 $ 33,145,047 $ 9,613 
Accounts receivable, net 423 424 395 

Total assets $ 105 269 $ 33,158,656 $ 33,145,442 $ 9 613 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others $ 99 017 $ 33,804,808 $ 33,791,594 $ 9 613 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION RETENTION 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 258 $ $ $ 258 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others $ 258 $ $ $ 258 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

AGENCY FuNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Balance Balance 
July I. 2015 Additions Deductions June 30. 2016 

CONTRACTOR RETENTION ACCOUNTS 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 2,378,657 $ 2,418,055 $ 781 046 $ 2,852,631 

LIABILITIES 

Due to developers $ 2,378,595 $ 6,045,274 $ 4,408,265 $ 2,852,568 

NEW CONSTRUCTION PRIVILEGE TAX 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 70 146 $ 1,665,988 $ 1,664,460 $ 68 306 

LIABILITIES 

Due to other governments $ 70 146 $ 3,418,780 $ 3,417,252 $ 68 306 

CONVENTION AUTHORITY TAX 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 205,822 $ 2,379,180 $ 2,346,174 $ 195,686 
Accounts receivable, net 243 93 321 94030 10 506 

Total assets $ 206,065 $ 2,472,501 $ 2,440,204 $ 206,192 

LIABILITIES 

Due to other governments $ 207,398 $ 5,224,297 $ 5,192,000 $ 206,942 

GARBAGE COMPANY COLLECTION 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 1,715,154 $ 23,217,677 $ 23,159,578 $ 1,706,716 
Accounts receivable, net 2,600,753 21,616,576 21,896,304 2,720,361 

Total assets $ 4315907 $ 44,834,253 $ 45,055,882 $ 4 427 077 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others $ 4315907 $ 42,985,485 $ 43,207,ll4 $ 4 427 077 

INMATE DEPOSITS 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 5 070 $ 55 $ $ 5 070 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others $ 5 070 $ 55 $ $ 5 070 

SIAD NO. 54 (CIVIC CENTER DRJVE DEVELOPMENT) 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and invesbnents $ 471182 $ 61 712 $ 59 326 $ 474 626 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others $ 471182 $ 179 337 $ 176 951 $ 474 626 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

AGENCY FuNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

SIAD NO. 60 (ALIANTE DEVELOPMENT) 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments 
Interest receivable 
Special assessments receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Due to others 

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS 
ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments 
Accounts receivable, net 
Interest receivable 
Special assessments receivable 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Due to other governments 
Due to developers 
Due to others 

Total liabilities 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
July I. 2015 

4,666,358 $ 
4,118 

51632 

4,722,108 $ 

4,722,108 $ 

13,207,961 $ 
2,601,419 

4,118 
51632 

15,865,130 $ 

283,796 $ 
2,418,535 

13,162,799 

15,865,130 $ 

Additions Deductions 

3,708,326 $ 3,529,394 $ 
4,208 

3,708,326 $ 3,533,602 $ 

8,715,230 $ 8,540,506 $ 

68,948,269 $ 66,709,881 $ 
21,710,321 21,990,729 

4,208 

90,658.590 $ 88.704.818 $ 

8,643,077 $ 8,609,252 $ 
6,045,274 4,408,265 

89,469,277 89,186,339 

104,157,628 $ 102,203,856 $ 

Balance 
June 30. 2016 

3,478,274 
625 

4499 

3.483,398 

3,483,398 

13,050,357 
2,736,204 

625 
4499 

15.791.685 

275,248 
2,868,125 

12,648,312 

15,791,685 
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PBTK 
PIERCY BOWLER 
TAYLOR & KERN 
Certified Public Accountants 

Business Advisors 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Members of the City Council 
City of North Las Vegas, Nevada 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of North Las Vegas 
(the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents, and have issued our 
report thereon dated December 13, 2016. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting. In planning and performing our audit of the basic fmancial 
statements, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies; and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been 
identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified 
certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's basic 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the 
deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2016 - 001, to be a 
material weakness. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We 
consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2016 -
002 to be a significant deficiency. 

Compliance and Other Matters. As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's basic 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of basic financial statement amounts, including whether the funds 
established by the City, as listed in Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 354.624 (5)(a)(l through 5), complied with 
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the express purposes required by NRS 354.6241. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported uoder 
Government Auditing Standards. 

The City's Responses to Findings. The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City's responses were not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fmancial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on them. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to the City in a separate letter dated December 13, 2016. 

Purpose of this Report. The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Las Vegas, Nevada 
December 13, 2016 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

STATISTICAL INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Financial Trends 
The following tables contain financial trend information to enable the reader to understand how financial performance has changed over time. 

Net Position by Component 
Changes in Net Position 
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 

Revenue Capacity 
The following tables contain revenue capacity information to enable the reader to assess the most significant local revenue somce. 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments 
Principal Property TW!jlayers 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Debt Capacity 
The following tables contain debt capacity information to enable the reader to assess the afforability of the current level of outstanding debt and the 

ability to issue additional debt in the future. 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Ratios of General Hooded Debt Outstandlllg 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 
Legal Debt Margin Iofonnation 

Demographic and Economic Information 
The following tables contain demographic and economic information to enable the reader to understand the environment within which financial 

activities take place. 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 
Principal Employers 

Operating Information 
The following tables contain operating information to enable the reader to understand how the information contained in the comprehensive annual 

financial report relates to services provided and activities performed. 
Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NET POSITTON BY COMPONENT 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS(l) 

(UNAUDITED) 

June30, June30, June30, IIDle 30, June 30, June30, June30, June30, June30, June 30, 
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 201' 2016 

Govemmental activities 
Net investment in capital assets $ 686,823,759 $ 647,951,709 $ 931,368,784 $ 1,015,611,134 $ 1,008,326,661 I $ 1,035,550,177 $ 1,109,705,374 $ 1,106,799,902 $ 1,147,394,961 $ 1,156,185,282 

"""""" 170,062,533 175,099,469 822,415 25,463,718 74,650,721 70,286,644 73,249,575 79,291,604 91,020.657 

u""""""' !17,102,203) 134,661,363 126,254.419 65,197,112 49,244,494 !S,838,643) !14,533,877) 9,551,124 ~.744,932) !181,662,381) 

Total governmental activities 839,784,089 957' 712,541 1,058,445,618 1,080,808,246 1,083,034,873 1,104,362,255 1,165,458,141 1,189,600,601 1,023,941,633 1,065,543,558 

Bwliness-type activities 
Net investment in capital assets 143,131,044 38,022,471 198,618,584 213,075,462 181,912,347 226,097 ,835 229,033,516 214,759,669 214,812,299 197,7SS,281 

"""""" 13S,082,528 159,367,463 10,945,118 13,317,115 47,537,496 7,132,932 4,514,658 75,134 7,113,754 

u""""""' {9,672,204) 81,888,662 84,546,345 66,022,121 S7,830,202 71,322,255 73,718,676 87,031,572 69,094.7S2 75,156,670 

Total business-type activities 268,541,368 279.278,596 294,110.047 292.414.698 287,280.045 304.553,022 307,266,850 301,866,375 283,907.051 280.025.705 

Primary government 
Net investment in capital assets 829,9S4,803 685,974,180 1,129,987,368 1,228,686,S96 1,190,239,008 1,261,648,012 1,338, 738,890 1,321,SS9,S71 1,362,207,260 1,3S3,940,S63 

"""""" 305,145,061 334,466,932 11,767,533 13,317,115 73,001,214 81,783,653 74,801,302 73,324,709 79,291,604 98,134,411 
Unrestricted ~1n4~) 21615501025 21018001764 131a19a33 10710741696 6514831612 59184 799 9615821696 !13316501180) !106~1711) 

Total primary government $ 1,108,325,457 $ 1,236,991,137 $ 1,352,555,665 $ 1,373,222,944 $ 1,37D,314,918 $ 1,408,915,lTI $ 1,472,724,991 $ 1,491,466,976 $ 1,307 ,848.684 $ 1,345.569,263 

I. Fiscal year 2012 amounts were retoract:ively :restated in fiscal year 2013. 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

CHANGES IN NET POSITTON 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS(l) 

(UNAUDITED) 

June30, June30, June30, IIDle 30, June 30, June30, June30, June30, June30, June 30, 
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 ' 2013 2014 201' 2016 .,.,_ 

GovmmmmtaJ activities """""- $ 44,525,088 $ 77,831,201 $ 79,790,759 $ 81,.909,186 $ 81,162,689 $ 49,229,276 $ 51,855,800 $ 56,381,592 $ 56,167,676 $ 61,473,941 
Judicial 11,798,220 13,226,034 14,153,887 10,780,531 I0,12S,028 10,521,037 9,496,348 9,896,150 9,060,508 5,378,903 
Public safety 141,118,701 149,836,872 160,483,422 172,629,424 149,867,948 160,705,260 147,724,400 154,787,847 141,351,681 141,730,894 
Publicwolks 36,982,106 30,407,379 26,999,830 16,794,794 13,694,463 10,164,862 11,197,298 8,416,102 14,152,084 14,894,436 
Culture and IeCI11ation 18,112,226 17,040,617 19,585,869 18,044,295 14,177,795 15,245,421 13,295,753 16,347,681 17,323,716 17,811,729 
Community support 5,230,808 S,521,004 1,891,550 15,363,130 8,239,825 7,807,086 5,168,774 5,722,271 7,142,087 6,855,958 
Interest on long-term debt 10,021,271 9,751,729 9,417,258 8,846,315 8,775,931 3,106,240 4,388,732 4,111,816 6,640,779 7,769,871 

Total governmental activities 267' 788,420 303,620,836 318,328,575 324,367,675 286,043,679 256,779,182 243,127,105 255,663,459 251,838,531 255,915,732 

Business-type activities 
w- 24,549,809 27,885,130 29,181,700 31,443,978 36,986,026 26,615,574 38,806,095 46,654,631 45,235,686 52,437,713 
w- 36,406,905 38,491,805 34,652,481 33,198,374 32,402,016 33,863,783 33,417,139 37,368,080 36,065,019 36,490,347 

Mnnicipal golf courses 1,696,700 1,865,239 1,806,068 1,198,958 1,116,228 2,422,211 2,321,525 3,253,407 2,407,.902 2,555,597 
Total busi:n11&11-type activiti1111 6216531414 68~21174 651640~ 65,841~10 70~042:70 6=9011568 74 544 759 872:761118 831708,607 91,4831657 

Total primary government expenses $ 330,441,834 $ 371,863,010 $ 383,968,824 $ 390,208,985 $ 356.547,949 $ 319,680,750 $ 317,671,864 $ 342,939,577 $ 335,547,138 $ 347,399,389 

-~ Govemmental. activities 
Charges for services """""- $ 7,624,085 $ 7,808,363 $ 8,557,114 $ 10,911,870 $ 8,635,975 $ 11,467,970 $ 12,001,422 $ 13,813,102 $ 14,222,091 $ 20,458,488 

Judicial 11,631,052 2,208,306 2,515,779 3,098,548 12,222,293 10,412,316 10,446,582 10,950,414 10,164,809 7,917,230 
Public safety 23,849,055 30,131,176 28,995,220 29,888,956 10,631,966 20,574,051 21,124,279 24,235,187 23,225,991 28,359,209 
Publicwmks 5,622,943 2,548,356 1,297,430 1,883,015 2,702,747 4,876,338 4,751,577 5,375,946 9,006,208 10,860,642 
Culture and recreation 2,382,876 2,568,030 2,354,508 1,866,740 1,945,886 2,787,964 2,874,363 3,707,230 5,730,717 5,633,416 
Community support 261,485 530,174 547,459 623,259 1,147,504 1,527,769 

Operating grants and colllributions 4,877,620 5,423,876 6,591,191 11,811,707 9,654,245 23,609,657 19,871,431 23,491,365 27,229,507 24,516,475 
Capital grants and contributions 791897~ 9810791100 1271600~70 79156147 5610491152 6515381503 9115441553 3213661318 70119~112 43 854 707 

Total governmental activities 135,885,100 148, 767 ,207 177,911,612 138,616,983 102,103,749 139,796,973 163,161,666 114,562,821 160,922,939 143,127,936 

Business-type activities 
Chargllll for services 

w- 39,620,242 39,129,724 36,035,962 34,444,912 37,163,386 39,614,919 40,239,867 41,243,489 42,237,133 44,544,99' 
w- 52,539,912 51,576,234 45,697,439 47,074,546 48,561,691 48,563,211 51,188,315 53,292,819 54,747,339 58,417,333 
MnDicipal golf courses 2,019,026 1,719,315 1,425,561 335,745 257,839 1,993,004 1,791,935 2,017,409 1,918,441 1,844,835 

Operating grants and oon1ributi.ons 50,511 6,127,457 3,116,042 3,023,196 6,376,618 3,034,877 

Capital grants and contributions 12 601983 8504641 19100~02 19871 057 91420~5 7460413 5 857 325 5 963141 987 403 3i230i262 

Total busine&11-type activities 10618311674 10019291914 10211612:64 10117262:60 9514032:61 103?591004 1021193~ 10515401054 106126~34 11117731002 

Total primary government program revenues $ 242,716,774 $ 249,697,121 $ 280,072,876 $ 240,343,243 $ 197,507,010 $ 243,555,m $ 265,355,150 $ 220,102,875 $ 267,189.873 $ 254..90D.938 

Net (expCIISCll) ~gram ICVCIIUCll 
Govemmenta1. activities $ (131,903,320) $ (154,853,629) $ (140,416,963) $ (185,750,692) $ (183,939,930) $ (116,982,209) $ (79,965,439) $ (141,100,638) $ (90,915,592) $ (112,787,796) 
Business-type activities 441178~ 3216871740 361521,015 351884i250 2418~991 ~8571436 2716481725 18~1936 221558~27 202:89~5 

Primary government $ (87. 725,060) $ (122,165,889) $ (103,895,948) $ (149,865,742) $ (159,040,939) $ (76,124,m) $ (52,316,714) $ (122,836,702) $ (68,357.265) $ (92.498,451) 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

June30, June30, June30, IIDle 30, June 30, June30, June30, June30, June30, June 30, 
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 ' 2013 2014 201' 2016 

General revenues and olher change& in net position 
GovmmmmtaJ activities -- $ 71,404,630 $ 82,250,980 $ 87,102,142 $ 77,024,811 $ 57,540,748 $ 55,137,022 $ 48,831,490 $ 49,088,718 $ 50,350,577 $ 53,201,608 

Residential cnnstruction taxes 1,802,497 l,519,802 467,995 499,417 362,850 382,353 332,595 314,546 313,837 426,603 
Room-• 351,956 345,952 300,678 330,333 331,768 358,753 383,888 422,474 486,389 564,601 
Franchise fees, based on gro&B receip1B IS,m,376 18,989,378 17,083,699 16,717,339 16,224,681 16,142,005 15,769,356 20,788,938 21,322,332 21,307,694 
Intmgovmmmmtal COllllolidated tu.ms 52,955,145 50,199,861 39,642,953 34,179,293 36,538,629 37,565,290 39,434,352 43,976,942 41,685,565 49,903,290 
Other loeal government shared revenues 17,359,378 17,4(13,712 14,485,.904 9,.906,795 13,937,837 2,124,392 2,224,996 2,082,929 2,096,.928 2,llo,967 
Unrestricted invcstmart income 22,604,399 28,054,514 18,224.615 7,727,611 2,610,156 1,378,592 679,281 1,035,183 1,321,011 1,796,240 
Gain on disposal of capital assets 316,407 204,150 2,102,479 2,932,638 183,390 .. , ...... """ 21,618,036 42,097,298 28,479,414 23,144,183 28,064,262 2,199,961 1,767,227 2,281,880 1,909,778 1,984,280 

rnm.r~ 3116821943 3119661320 301914~15 41~651458 31~1!!z875 3119581855 3114331990 2410461761 221548~97 ~111048 
Total governmental activities 235,558,960 272,827,817 236,702,315 210,895,240 186,929,806 147,563,630 141,061,325 146,140,850 150,967,652 154,389,721 

Business-type activities 
Other local govcrmncnt shared ICVCIIUCll 3,189,017 538,471 
Unrestricted investmart income 90 7,060,164 5,671,124 1,455,994 356,115 72,721 136,985 13,586 15,803 7,702 
Gain on disposal of capital assets 23,860 12,668 21,612 6,517 
..,........,~ 4,641,476 2,417,173 3,554,227 2,329,165 3,055,358 36,782 6,362,108 356,096 216,234 211,753 

T:nmafen !31,682,943) Ql,966,320) Q0,914,915) !41,365,458) !Jl,318,87~ !31,958,85~ Ql,433,990) ~.046,761) ~.548.S9:V !22.911,048) 

Total busi:n11&11-typ11 activiti1111 ~18521360) Q;119501512) !211689~64) Q7~80~99) !2719071402) Q1182.51492) ~19341897) ~16641411) !221294~ ez685107~ 

Total primary governme:nt general revenues awl 
$ 211,706,600 $ 250,877 ,305 $ 215,012,751 $ 173,314,941 $ 159,022,404 $ 115,738,138 $ 116,126,428 $ 122,476,439 $ 128,672,704 $ 131.704.645 other changes in net position 

Change in lllll position 
Oovemmental activities $ 103,655,640 $ 117,974,188 $ 96,285,352 $ 25,144,548 $ 2,989,876 $ 30,581,421 $ 61,095,886 $ 5,040,212 $ 60,052,060 $ 41,601,925 

Business-type activities 2013251900 1017371228 1~8311451 !1,695~9) Q10081411) 9031944 217131828 ~5~475) 263~79 ~951731) 

~-
$ 123,981,540 $ 128,711,416 $ 111,116,803 $ 23,449,199 $ (18,535) $ 39,613,365 $ 63,809,714 $ (360,263) $ 60,315.439 $ 39.206.,194 

I. Information was not available for ten years' reporting, but will be aecumulatcd over time as it becomes available. 
2. FY 2012 amountlll were retoracti.vcly restated in FY 2013. 

143 



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

FuND BALANCE, GoVERNMENTAL FuNDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

June30, June30, June30, IIDle 30, June 30, June30, June30, June30, June30, June 30, 
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 ' 2013 2014 201' 2016 

°""""' furul ........ $ 542,193 $ 758,891 $ $ $ $ $ $ 

u-"""' 36,567,167 45,336,045 39,361,193 22,.953,382 
N-lo 384,375 287,203 231,430 238,432 2,743,971 127,919 
Restricted for 101,642 26,257 170,576 
Committed for 274,200 596,200 207,179 166,202 27,369 

u-- 72;381181 11~021907 8 340 738 7 633 089 9 585163 13?40i286 13 

Total general fund $ 37,109,960 $ 46,094,936 $ 39,361.193 $ 22.953,382 $ 7724198 I $ 11,890,567 $ 9,338,944 $ 8,078,700 $ 12,495,336 $ 13,896,274 

Other govemmental funds ........ $ 904,655 $ 1,256,971 $ $ $ $ $ $ 

u-"""' Special teVCllUC funds 54,625,345 51,249,895 54,590,129 48,388,767 
Debt service funds 6,926,512 7,316,194 4,684,177 3,278,094 
Capital projects funds 208,120,685 189,433,342 155,724,644 111,345,725 

N-lo 87,162 224,923 2,655,236 6,499,075 6,494,034 13,121 
Restricted for 84.681,535 74,624,464 70,116,032 70,396,589 79,486,892 95,047,192 
Committodfir 1,3n,821 1,327,188 1,250,166 292,564 378,342 797,444 
Assigned to 1430753 118591516 2 354 991 413621189 211~074 ~7~97 

Total other govemmental funds $ 270,577,197 $ 255,256,402 $ 214,999,550 $ 163,012,586 $ 87,583;1.77 $ 78,036,091 $ 76,376,425 $ 81,550,417 $ 88,481,342 $ 98,59().354 

I. Due to 1he reporting change as required by GASB No. 54, effective FY2010-11. 
2. FY 2012 am.mm.ts were retoractivelyrestated in FY 2013. 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE, GoVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

June30, June30, June30, J\Dle 30, J\Dle 30, June30, June30, June30, JllDC30, J\Dle 30, 
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 201' 2016 

REVENUES -- $ 71,404,630 $ 82,250,980 $ 87,102,142 $ 77,024,811 $ 57,540,748 $ 55,137,022 $ 49,160,817 $ 49,097,031 $ 50,574,008 $ 53,187,944 
Residential oonstruction taxes 1,802,497 1,519,802 467,.995 499,417 362,850 382,353 332,595 314,546 313,837 426,603 

Room""• 357,956 345,952 300,678 330,333 331,768 358,753 383,888 422,474 486,389 564,601 
Fmnchise fees 16,142,005 15,769,356 20,788,938 21,322,332 21,307,694 
Licenses and permits 33,416,360 32,347,464 28,734,711 26,062,330 26,271,308 10,132,978 10,722,526 10,748,799 13,860,541 15,470,650 _.._ 

2,202,145 2,202,185 2,170,942 2,170,946 2,167,784 
Charges for services 20,397,993 21,033,088 22,240,756 23,296,938 14):80,489 6,023,699 5,369,223 7,573,999 8,993,819 8,728,212 
Intergovemmcnta CODllolidatcd taxes 37,565,290 39,434,352 43,976,942 47,685,565 49,903,290 - 113,541,467 140,003,233 142,978,208 116,132,627 102,027,017 67,518,671 106,630,804 49,201,824 92,958,280 65,220,898 
Fines and forfeitures 6,816,569 9,358,465 10,173,893 9,905,464 10,197,087 7,195,757 7,535,551 7,236,044 6,146,529 5,401,306 
Contributions 219,350 106,332 571,956 236,069 22,330 
Rents and royaltie& 513,578 557,856 582,762 840,310 665,094 
Investment inemnc 806,229 195,524 642,581 1,018,891 1,579,791 

'"""ll""°m 34~22~ 4318521373 2910351648 151050e!13 9e!071120 ai8111651 1760617 210981694 214601664 3194636 

T""1~ 282,059,738 330,711,357 321,034,031 268,302,433 220.S18,387 207,070,087 24(1,161,626 195,427,532 249,068,180 227,840,833 

EXPllNDITURES 

°"""" '°""""""' 37,255,958 55,369,189 44,551,fn? 67,149,968 64.597,945 24,346,198 20,954,097 18,696,163 21,545,649 23,046,187 
Judicial 10,422,419 13,002,378 13,857,493 10,589,039 10,415,468 8,995,929 8,501,665 8,532,342 10,830,787 5,588,564 
Public safety 145,738,363 151,348,964 166,332,695 165,279,861 151,511,917 136,959,835 153,567,436 121,831,060 178,964,728 129,031,765 
Public works 67,046,155 103,964,900 105,808,278 55,421,439 31,517,296 36,683,544 21,626,361 21,156,322 6,871,776 45,627,772 
Culture and recnation 26,652,050 29,009,898 36,289,596 45,258,925 38,247,284 23,051,356 52,141,269 23,412,874 21,369,036 16,041,308 

Comn:nmity llUppOrt 7,425,578 9,821,305 11,413,230 15,513,020 8,165,001 7,395,157 6,962,391 
._.., 

6,877,580 6,811,841 

29415401523 36215161634 37812S9i:69 359i:l~52 30414541911 23714321019 2631753i:19 19810731223 2461459C!56 226,1471437 

Debt scrviec 
Principal payments 10,613,800 11,145,300 11,374,500 11,547,700 6,307,800 5,277,600 5,928,600 4,990,000 5,757,700 4,534,700 
Interest and fiscal charges 9,184,281 9,774,489 9,601,384 9,095,696 7,526,085 3,076,503 3,246,669 3,035,503 7,642,269 7,397,302 
Payment to CllIRlllt bond refunding agmt 20,000,000 

Debt il11U11DCe costs 154,338 2S4,S04 143,438 200,2'6 

Total dcibt smvia1 19952419 21~293 201975,884 20,643~96 33~77~23 !!5541389 91175~ 810251503 131399&!!9 11~3aio02 

Total expenditures 31414921942 38317201927 39912351153 37918551648 338143~34 245198614()8 2721928d;!8 20610981726 2591859e!25 23810791439 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER 
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (32,433,204) (53,009,570) (78,201,122) (111,553,215) (117,913,847) (38,916,321) (32, 766,862) (10,671,194) (10,791,345) (10,238,606) 

(Continued) 
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June30, 
2007 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Contingtmcims 
Debt issuance proceeds 4,500,000 
Debt issuanee premiums 9,160,000 
Payment to advance refunding band agent (9,116,037) 
Debt itllll8DCe disoounta (15,000) 
Proemds :limn capital asset disposal 
Tnmllfeni in 73,826,205 
Tnmllfen out (46,059,162) 

°""" 25000 

Total other financing sources (uses) 32.321,006 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (112,198) $ 

Capital expenditmes included in expenditures above $ 78,408,888 $ 

Debt sevil::e as a percentage ofnoru::apital 
8.40% 

expenditmes 

I. FY 2012 amounts~ retoraetivdy~stated in FY 2013. 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

CHANGES IN FuND BALANCE, GoVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

June30, June30, J\Dle 30, J\Dle 30, June30, June30, 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

(49,395) 
12,680,000 3,145,000 17,090,000 27,070,000 

160,380 
(3,071,110) (16,922,300) (26,573,920) 

(15,750) (52,183) (257,999) 

75,287,726 79,675,504 88,126,189 52,280,115 43,764,721 46,423,036 
(41,438,606) (48,415,589) (42,207,531) (25,192,464) (10,809,831) (18,049,079) 

342 533 181316 

46,673,750 31,210,520 45,940,365 21,255,351 33,535,504 28,SSS,213 

(6,33S,820) $ {46,990,602) $ (6S,612,8SO) $ (90,6S8,496) $ {S,380,817) $ (4,211,S89) 

121,827,730 $ 118,033,178 $ 112,947,llS $ 94,972,764 $ Sl,4S7,061 $ 87,382,782 

8.00% 7.SO% 7.70% S.70% 4.20% 5.20% 

June30, JllDC30, J\Dle 30, 
2014 201' 2016 

(400,000) (500,0IJO) 

267,109 
46,358,276 41,456,655 41,569,282 

(33,871,483) (21,923,292) (19,258,234) 
2 098 449 2 913171 

14,585,242 22,046,534 22.078,157 

$ 3,914,048 $ 11,25S.189 $ 11,839.SSl 

$ 26,921,150 $ 72,740.101 $ 44,372.,831 

4.40% 7.16% 6.16% 

146 



For the Y car Ended 

June30 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

I. Source - Clad!: County Assessor's Office 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

AsSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY1 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

Residential "-"""" Undeveloped Less Tax Exempt Total Taxable - Proe!!!:: Industrial Plooatv Pl:OPCilV P.iOPCILV Asae&sed Value 

$ 4,4Sl,125,000 $ 831,875,000 $ 442,427,000 $ 2,609,030,000 $ (1.S6S,997,000) $ 6,768,460,000 
S,479,828,000 1,041,647,000 580,796,000 3,401,267,000 (2.298,842,000) 8,204,696,000 
S,572,985,000 1,281,806,000 669,317,000 3,239,635,000 (2,475,324,000) 8,288,419,000 
3,709,241,000 1,360,037,000 691,913,000 2,509,269,000 (2,144,624,000) 6,125,836,000 
2,646,355,000 1,022,464,000 525,474,000 1,059,048,000 (1,108,378,000) 4,144,963,000 
2,674,nO,OOO 995, 708,000 423,800.000 647,713,000 (869,661,000) 3,872,330,000 
2,416,735,000 941,804.000 382.696,000 492,391,000 (779,884,000) 3,453,742,000 
2,487,233,874 997,032,941 384,695,090 417,300,826 (784,220, 790) 3,502,041,941 
3,073, 765,289 1,039,727,647 432,296,748 432,308,397 (816,397,511) 4,161,700,570 
3,741,983,035 1,155,035,683 429,444,964 528,219,810 (880,290,276) 4,974,393,216 

2. Pursuant to State statute, all property is assessed at 35% of its estimated vahw. 

Ratio of Total 

Taxabk Assessed 

-~ to Total EstimaR:d 
Direct Ta: Rate v""' Actual Value 

1.1637 $ 19,338,454,000 35.00 % 
1.1587 23,441,991,000 35.00 % 
1.1587 23,681,197,000 35.00 % 
1.1587 17,502,381,000 35.00 % 
1.1587 11,842,751,000 35.00 % 
1.1587 11,063,797,000 35.00 % 
1.1587 9,867,835,000 35.00 % 
1.1587 10,005,834,117 35.00 % 
1.1587 11,890,573,057 35.00 % 
1.1587 14,212,551,046 35.00 % 
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For the Year Ended June 30, 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

For the Year Ended June 30, 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

1. Soun:e - Clark County TreasorWs Offioe 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PROPERTY TAX RATES1 - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GoVERNMENTS 

(PER $100 OF ASSESS V ALUE2) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

City ofNorthLas Vegas. Direct Rates 

Public Safety Total Direct Tax 

City 2e!!!tiom Debt Service ~Overridel .. ,, State of Nevada CWkCmmtv 

0.1937 0.0300 0.9400 1.1637 0.1700 0.6566 
0.1901 0.0250 0.9436 1.1587 0.1700 0.6541 
0.1901 0.0250 0.9436 1.1587 0.1700 0.6541 
0.1937 0.0100 0.9550 1.1587 0.1700 0.6541 
0.1937 0.0370 0.9280 1.1587 0.1700 0.6541 
0.1937 0.0250 0.9400 1.1587 0.1700 0.6541 
0.1937 0.0250 0.9400 1.1587 0.1700 0.6541 
0.1937 0.0250 0.9400 1.1587 0.1700 0.6541 
0.1937 0.9650 1.1587 0.1700 0.6541 
0.1937 0.9650 1.1587 0.1700 0.6541 

Las Vegas- Clark 

County Libmry 
District 

0.0123 
0.0123 
0.0086 
0.0100 
0.0070 

2. The State ofNcvada Constitution has a maximum rate limit of$5 per $100 usessed value and Ncvade.kvised Statotes further Wwcr'lhe limit to a total combined tax rate of3.64. 

Overlapping Rates 

ClmkComrty Las Vmgas.Amsian 

School District Emmenav911 Buin 

1.3034 0.0050 0.0009 
1.3034 0.0050 0.0008 
1.3034 0.0050 0.0008 
1.3034 0.0050 0.0011 
1.3034 0.0050 0.0015 
1.3034 0.0050 
1.3034 0.0050 
1.3034 0.0050 
1.3034 0.0050 
1.3034 0.0050 

Overhwttina: Rates 
City ofNorth Las 

Vegu Library Total Overlapping Total Direct and 
District -· Overlapping Rates 

0.0632 2.2114 3.3751 
0.0632 2.2088 3.3675 
0.0632 2.2051 3.3638 
0.0632 2.2068 3.3655 
0.0632 2.200 3.3629 
0.0632 2.1957 3.3544 
0.0632 2.1957 3.3544 
0.0632 2.1957 3.3544 
0.0632 2.1957 3.3544 
0.0632 2.1957 3.3544 
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T!!;!.e!f!!: 

Aliante Gaming LLC 
Golden Triangle Jndustrial PW: 
Piceme Real Estate Group 
Cannery Casino Resorts 
Alliance Residential Company 
Station Casino3 huxnpoqted 
Prologis 
Colonial Realty Limited Partnenhip 
Wal-Mart Stores lncolporated 
Collin AL-NV 
Olympia Group LLC 

""""'""""' Pardee Homes Nevada IncOip011ded 
D.R. Horton Incorporated 
Operating Engineers Peruiion Trust 

""""" _... 
Black Hills Corporation 

Greenspun Corporation 

I. Loeatedin Clark County, Nevada 
2. Source - Clark County Assesllor's Office 
3. Taxable 8118C&sed value is 35% of appraised value. 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

l'RINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS1.2 
CURRENT AND NINE YEARS AGO 

(UNAUDITED) 

2016 

Percentage of 
Taxable Assessed Taxable Assess 

v.i~ .... v""" 

$ 77,577,372 I 1.56% 
52,727,901 2 1.06% 
37,967,792 ' 0.76% 
37,270,735 4 0.75% 
36,103,263 5 0.73 % 
35,480,496 6 0.71 % 
27~1,559 7 0.55% 
25,448,669 8 0.51 % 
24,312,552 9 OA9% 
23,585,612 10 0.47% 

' 37717251951 ?.59% 

4. See the ''Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" table for assessed property value data. 

Taxable Assessed 

v""" 

$ 

37,532,880 

87~57,952 

258,415,491 
100,201,264 
93,610,996 
53,846,208 
51,628,111 
46,371,848 
4S,879,662 
42,191,607 

$ 817163~019 

2007 

"""'-'' Taxable Assess 

Rank v"'°' 
% 
% 
% 

10 0.55 % 
% 

4 1.30 % 
% 
% 
% 
% 

I 3.82% 
2 1.48 % 
3 1.38 % 
5 0.80 % 
6 0.76 % 
7 0.69 % 
8 0.68 % 
9 0.62 % 

12.08 % 
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For the Year Ended June 30, 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

I. Source - Clark County Comptroller'1 Office. 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS1 

LAsT TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITEO) 

Current Tax Levy Percent of Tax Delinque:nt Tax 

Tax !:!!1: Co""""" ~Collected ~Collectiom 

$ 65,307,155 64,545,683 98.834() % $ 761,287 
75,518,219 74,309,000 98.3988 % 1,204,478 
80,728,503 78,928,443 97.7700. % 1,782,248 
71,204,380 68,995,~ 96.8980 % 2,164,910 
51,409,059 49,881,300 97.0282 % 1,430,459 
47,624,187 46,781,680 98.2309 % 600,963 
42,824,473 42,336,988 98.8617 % 182,336 
42,179,362 41,711,002 98.8896 % 207,124 2 

44,062,241 43,664,539 99.0974 % 299,360 
45,924,264 45,608,849 99.3132 % 

2. Collections July I through September 30 of the subsequent year. 
3. Not available at time of report completion 

Percent of Total 

Tnl.ozy 
Total Tax Levy Collected to Tax 

Collodod !::!I 
$ 65,306,970 99.9997 % 

75,513,478 99.9937 % 
80,710,691 99.9779 % 
71,160,558 99.9385 % 
51,311,759 99.8107 % 
47,382,643 99.4928 % 
42,519,324 99.2874 % 
41,918,126 99.3807 % 
43,963,899 99.7768 % 
45,608,849 99.3132 % 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

RATIOS OF 0USTANDING DEBT1 BY TYPE 
LAST TEN FrsCAL YEARS2 

(UNAUDITED) 

GovemmcntaJ. Activities Business-type Activities 

General Obligation Special 
For the Year Ended June 30, Bonds Asaeasmemt Bonds Capital Lease1 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

198,940,000 
189,600,000 
180,330,000 
170,395,641 
147,435,033 
160,223,349 
156,632,000 
153,712,000 
150,080,000 
147' 770,000 

I. Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial starement& 
2. Information was not available for ten years' reporting, but will be accumulated over time as it becomes available. 
3. Excludes debt issued by the City's blended component units. 

$ 

4. See 1he "Demographic and Economic Statisticll" table for Clark County personal income and the City's population dlrtB. 
5. Information not available at time of printing. 
6. Using 2014 population for City ofNorth Las Vegas Per Capita calculation 

6,753,200 $ 
17,512,900 
15,993,400 
14,273,700 46,359 
12,532,900 34,967 
10,715,300 16,651 
8,729,700 
7,009,700 
S,249,000 
3,409,300 

G-1 
Obligation/Pledged 

hvenue Bonds Other 

$ 179,634,000 $ 
176,439,000 
173,090,000 
312,033,000 
305,588,000 
299,136,000 
292,391,000 7,000,000 
285,554,000 6,000,000 
278,445,000 5,000,000 
272,000,000 2,352,219 

Pcn;cntage of 
Total Primary Clark Comrty City ofNorth Las 

Govrmment ! Penonallncome 4 VegaaPerCapita 4 

$ 385,327,200 0.53 % $ 1,954 
383,551,900 0.52% 1,862 
369,413,400 0.54% 1,735 
496,748,700 0.71 % 2,290 
465,590,900 0.66% 2,123 
470,091,300 0.63 % 5 2,103 
464, 752, 700 0.61 % 2,0SS 
452,275, 700 0.SS % 5 1,962 
438,774,000 0.54% 5 1,904 6 

425,531,519 0.52% 1,846 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT1 OUTSTANDING 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS2 

(UNAUDITED) 

""""" Percentage of 

General Obligation Obliption/Pledged Toto!G-1 ........ A""1 City ofNorth Lu 
For the Year EndedJllDC 30, 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

s 
""""' 
198,94(),000 s 
189,600,000 
180,330,000 
170,395,641 
147,435,033 
160,223,349 
156,632,000 
1S3,712,000 
150,080,000 
147,770,000 

"""""'""""' """""'°"" 
179,634,000 378,574,000 
176,439,000 366,039,000 
173,090,000 353,420,000 
312,033,000 482,428,641 
305,588,000 453,023,033 
299,136,000 459,359,349 
292,391,000 449,023,000 
285,554,000 439,266,000 
278,445,000 428,525,000 
272,000,000 419,770,000 

I. Dotails ~the City's outstanding dd:rt llllll be fuund in the notai to 1he bwrill financial statemenU. 
2. Infimnation was not available for ten years' reporting, but will be accumulated over time as it becomes available. 
3. ExchJdell debt iuoed by the City's blended component uuitll. 

ProDetv Value 

l.96% 
1.56% 
1.49% 
2.76% 
3.83 % 
4.15% 
4.55% 
4.39% 
3.60% 
2.95% 

4. See the "Assesaed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" table for estimated 8CIJtal. property value data. 
5. See the "Demographic and Economic Statistics~ table for the City's population data. 
6. Information not available at time of printing. 
7. Using 2014 population for City ofNorth Las Vega11 Per Capita cakulatiOII 

v2 Per CaDita 5 

' 1,919 
1,777 
1,660 
2,224 
~066 
2,055 
1,985 
1,906 6 

1,859 6 
1,821 

Amolmts Available 

to IU:pay General N~ """"1 
Bonded.Debt """""'°"" 

s 4,276,162 • 374,297,838 
5,095,859 360,943,141 
4,892,967 348,527,033 
1,960,788 480,467 ,853 

432,004 452,591,029 
25,062 459,334,287 

243,501 448,779,499 
389,316 438,876,684 

1,176,607 427 ,348,393 
4,146,706 415,623,294 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GoVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT1• 2 

JUNE 30, 2016 
IN THOUSANDS 
{UNAUDITED) 

General Obligation 

Dobt 

City ofNorth Lall Vegas ' 14,948 4 

Overlapping governments 
ClmkComrty 19,128 
Clark County Sdiool District 1,881,385 
Les Vegas· Clark County Library Distrid 20,775 
State ofNevada I 139760 

Total overlapping governments 3,061,048 

Total direct and overlapping debt 3 075 996 

I. Source - ZiODll Bank Public F:inance. 
2. Details :regarding 1hil City's Olltsta:nding dcibt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statmmmfll. 
3. Exeludea debt issued by the City's blended l.lOillponent unitll. 

Applicable General 
PereeIIt Applicable Obli2ation Debt 

100.00 % $ 14,948 

1.52% 1,438 
1.52% 141,480 
9.88% 2,053 
5.20% 59 268 

204,239 

$ 219187 

4. Overlapping governments are those that cohlcide, at least in part, with 1he geographic bolllldarics of the City. This schedule estiIIurtes the portion of the outstanding debt of those~ 
govermnent111hat is borne by the ?e&identll and businesses of the City. This proce11s recognizes 1hat, when considering 1he government's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, 1he entire deb 
burden borne by 1he residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident; and therefore, responsible for repaying the debt, of eacl 
ovs1apping govsmmmt. Debt amomrts for ovmfawing lliliitil!s in the variaus gov111ImH111tll W«e provided by Ziomi Bank Public Fimmee. The peromrtage applicablll was calculated by taking tht 
City's U111:BSed valuation divided by eaeh n:spl:(ltive govemmenu' asse1111ed valuation 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 
LAST TEN FrsCAL YEARS1 

(UNAUDITED) 

June30, June30, June30, IIDle 30, June 30, June30, June30, June30, June30, June 30, 
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 201' 2016 

Total tuable asaessedpropertyvalue ' s 6,768,460,000 s 8.204,696,000 I 8,288,419,000 I 6,125,836,000 ' 4,144,963,000 s 3,872.330,000 s 3,453,742,000 s 3,502,041,941 I 4,161,700,570 I 4,974,393,216 

Legal debt Margin 
Legal dl!bt limit (20% of1axable ll!lllellsed 

proporty..W.) s 1,353,692,000 s 1,640,939,200 I 1,657 ,683,800 I 1,225,167,200 ' 828,992,600 s 774,466,000 s 690,748,400 s 700,4(18,388 I 832,340,114 I 994,878,643 

Debt applicable to debt limit 
Net general bonded debt ' 374i!971838 36019431141 34815271033 48014671853 45~911029 459~34i!!!;7 448 779499 43818761684 4271348~93 41516232;94 

Legal debt margill s 979,394,162 s 1,279,996,059 I 1,309,156.767 I 744.699,347 ' 376,401,571 s 315,131,713 s 241,968,901 s 261,531,704 I 404,991,721 I 519,255,349 

Total debt applicable to debt limit as a percentage of 21.65 % 22.00 % 21.02 % 39.22 % 54.60 % 59.31 % 64.97% 62.66 % 51.34 % 41.78% debt limit 

1. Information was not available for t.en years' reporting, but will be accumulated aver time as it becomes available. 
2. See 1he ~Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Propcrtyn table fur estimated. acuial. property value data 
3. 811111he "Ratios of Gmmil Bondm Dcibt Outstanding'' table for 1he calculaiion of net gmima.l bonded W!bt 
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For the Year EndedJllDC 30, 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

DEMOGRAPIIlC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS1 

LAsT TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

City ofNorth 
Las Vegas Clark County 
Pepulatiott --

197,233 73,040,160,000 ' 206,044 74,279,798,000 
212,863 68,791,192,000 
216,961 69,800,237,000 
219,275 70,289,097,000 
223,491 74,886,428,000 
226,199 75,957,334,000 
230,491 81,821,005,000 
230,491 81,821,005,000 2 

230,491 2 81,821,005,000 2 

ClmkCmmty 

'°"'"'""" 
1,867,817 
1,912,349 
1,939,407 
1,.951,269 
1,969,975 
2,000,759 
2,027,868 
2,069,450 
2,088,149 
2,107,031 

I. Sl.JllnlO - Nevada Wurkfon:e Informer, Data Analysis (http://www.ru.wadaWQikfonio.eom/cgi/~data~election.asp?tableName=notable) 
2. Jnfomiation not available at time of printing. Used last published information. 

Clark County Per Choll Coonty 

Capita Personal Unemployment - ""' 
s 39,105 4.70% 

38,842 7.00% 
35,470 11.90 % 
35,m 14.20 % 
35,680 13.50 % 
37,429 11.20 % 
37,457 9.70% 
39,538 7.80% 
39,184 2 7.10% 
38,832 2 6.90% 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

l'RINCIP AL EMPLOYERS(!) 

CURRENT AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(UNAUDITED) 

2016 

Percentage of 
To1'1Cim'k 

Cowdy 

ClarkC~Em~ Fmoiov<m .... ~ovnnmt 

30000 to 39999 
Clark County School District "'"''°"" 3.57% 

30000 to 39999 
Cbal<Cowzy - 2 .84% 

8000to 8499 
Bellagio LLC "'"''°""' .84% 

8000to 8499 
Wynn Las Vegas """'°"" 4 .84% 

sooow 8499 
MGM Grand Hotel/Cuin - .84% 

7500to 7999 
Aria Resort & Casino LLC "'"''°"" 6 .79% 

7000to 7499 
Mandalay Bay Resort & Casino - 7 .74% 

5000to 5499 
University ofNevada Las Vega -- .54% 

5000to 5499 
Caesars Palace "'"''°"" • .54% 

4500to4999 
Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Dept - 10 .48% 

Mirage Caaino Hotel 

I. Source - www.nevadaworkforce.com. Nevada's Largest Employers (Clall County). ht Qtr 2015, 4th Qtr 200E 
2. Source - www.nevadaworkforoe.com, Data.Analysis, Labor Force and Unemployment Tool, Clark County, Mar 201~ 
3. Source - www.nevadaworkforoe.com, Data.Analysis, Labor Force and Unemployment Tool, Clark County, Dec 2004! 
4. Total Employmmit balled on mid-point ofEmploy41e R.imge. 

Eml!l~ 

30000 to 39999 

-'°"" 9500to 9999 

""''°"" 9000to 9499 

-'°"" 8500to 8999 

-'°"" 8500-8999 
-Joy= 

6500to 6999 

""''°"" 6000to 6499 

-'°"" 5500to 5999 

-'°"" 5500to 5999 

-Joy= 
5000to 5499 

-'°"" 

2007 

Percentage ofTolBI 
ChllCowzy 

Rank F:mploymmt 

3.81 % 

2 1.06% 

3 l.01% 

4 .95% 

' .95% 

.95% 

6 .74% 

7 .68% 

.63% 

• .63% 

10 .57% 
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Fwroti""1>rogmm 
GovmmmmtaJ activities """""-Judicial 

Public safety 
Publicwolks 
Culture and IeCI11ation 

Comn:nmi:ty support 

Total govmmru:mtal aclivities 

Bllllincss-typc aetiviticll 
w-
w-
Mnniclpal golf CO\ll'llCS 

Total business-type activities 

Total full-time equivalent employees 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GoVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FIJNCTION/PROGRAM1 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

June30, June30, June30, IIDle 30, June 30, June30, June30, 
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

204 259 272 277 258 193 163 
82 87 91 98 " 98 " 977 1,133 1,232 1,269 1~64 1,226 1,141 

156 167 167 108 143 100 80 
20S 220 234 2SI 23' 166 IS2 

29 40 42 44 40 33 29 
1,648 1,906 2.038 2.107 2,039 1,816 1,650 

36 44 46 .. 63 52 " 73 91 96 .., 84 96 " 14 13 14 9 8 7 8 

123 148 1'6 154 155 155 158 

1.n1 2.054 2.194 2.261 2.194 1.971 1.808 

1. Source - City ofNorth Las Vegaa, Finance Department, Budget Division. 

June30, June30, June 30, 
2014 2015 2016 

127 129 122 
72 72 63 

915 912 688 
SI " 50 

129 136 130 
2S 24 19 

1,319 1,328 1,072 

" S4 81 
93 92 " 7 7 7 

155 1'3 141 

1.474 1.481 1.213 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FuNCTION/PROGRAM1 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS2 

(UNAUDITED) 

June30, June30, June30, IIDle 30, June 30, June30, June30, June30, June30, June 30, 
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 201' 2016 

Fwroti""1>rogmm 
porn. 

Calls for service 
Oflieer initiated 166,364 194,527 190,668 211,130 207,019 113,946 106,247 95,699 72.582 64,286 
Community generated 139,132 136,089 96,897 108,908 92,588 106,385 98,452 98,596 114.894 122,794 

Neighborhood watcli meeting& 80 113 72 102 37 47 31 39 .. 43 
Dobmtion ·- 14,500 17,726 19,842 20.662 20,662 10,058 9,037 9,003 8,857 8,147 

Avenge daily population 807 885 906 ,,. 523 237 220 147 132 161 
Daily meals service 850,000 1,045,686 900,000 1,171,704 532,888 276,122 276,122 

Fire 
Number of calls 24,500 25,986 26,351 27,016 27,828 28,540 30,187 28,909 30,272 32,419 

EMS- 12,400 17,895 15,588 18,983 24~09 24,766 24,831 23,692 22,9'2 24,486 
Non-fire Incidents 11,150 S,150 6,040 3,673 1,170 509 2A48 2,301 2,211 2,194 
Fire Incidents ''° 2,142 1,839 4,346 2,230 1,954 2,191 2,274 1~84 I~ 

'""""""""' 89 667 '43 673 643 516 717 642 684 696 
Llbmry fucilities 

CirmJlation 416,494 465,304 613,658 793,000 125,905 710,415 649,445 604,614 502,249 478,159 
Holdmg• 152,139 153,436 212.074 225,404 234,725 243,629 251,543 202,163 200,166 201,185 
Llbnuy ttaflic 417,431 446,336 557,694 754,000 536,085 490,128 442,688 4()8,672 388,937 367,794 

Culture and recreation 

GoU "°""" 
Numb11r of rounds of golf 94,738 86,670 74,474 68,000 63,S65 64,297 61,102 66,647 6S,407 SS,389 
Cost of opention. per round 

(M..mcipo!c:.m.,) s 12 • 12 I 12 I 8 ' II s II s 12 • II I II I " Cost of operation per round (Craig 
Ranch Course) • 21 • 26 I I I s • • Cost of opmation per round 
(Aliante Course) s • I 54 I 15 ' 54 s 47 s 49 • 61 I 50 I 59 
~ 

Program participation visits l,618,4SI 194,443 1,271,769 1,300,000 1,43S,852 1,154,162 1,197,216 1,401,118 l,4S0,151 1,551,452 
Annual cost per acre to maintain • 20,513 • 19,971 I 22,776 I 18,000 I 9,906 s 7,300 • 7,001 • 6,174 I I 
Numb11r of stage nmtalll 18 II 13 10 21 17 12 10 17 " Publieworb 

Building safety-permits ismed 11,470 9,616 6,693 ~044 6,480 6,285 5,586 5,812 7~25 

""""" Technical reviews completed 
(maps, docurnmts) 279 279 118 60 31 25 24 77 79 116 

OPS felltUra coI1eeted 66,370 66,371 75,327 55,000 5,851 9,543 1,253 10,916 ~ .. 5M1 
Engineering services-active capital 

projects 64 " 64 72 65 47 50 " 49 61 
Construction services-number of 

inspections 14,179 12.072 S,020 8,090 4,142 2,423 2,423 
Devekipment and Flood Control-permits 

'"""' l,OS5 1,100 699 500 309 322 "' 41' 460 
Real property services 

Maps reviewed. and processed " 49 181 23 19 13 " 24 26 " Planning Commission items 

"""'"' 491 47 94 ISO 149 Ill 138 203 227 202 
AddreSSCB usigned 3,014 806 758 500 356 151 303 378 420 "' 

(Continued) 
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June30, 
2007 

w-
Valws exmciaed 2,760 
wawr~ 290 
Service :requests 2,344 
Number ofbills 974,142 
Number of meters read 956,892 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM1 (CONTINUED) 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS2 

(UNAUDITED) 

June30, June30, IIDle 30, June 30, June30, June30, 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

1,933 3,104 1,970 2,588 1,m 1,486 
226 250 233 276 250 218 

90,717 82,644 76,462 69,700 76,731 70,423 
994,641 970,590 974,406 980,797 1,079,258 1,006,250 
993,013 l,O!ll,336 1,007,205 1,017,682 1,025,417 1,030,452 

June30, June30, June 30, 
2014 201' 2016 

1,140 1,749 1,031 
187 172 "' 71,097 72,564 63,375 

1,017,587 1,011,433 1,043,859 
1,035,334 1,038,405 1,055,488 
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Fwroti""1>rogmm 
Police statiODH 
fu statiODll 
Lllmuy faeilitics 
Cu1twe md recreation 

Community centms 

"""' ""'""""" Golf-~ --Tennis courts 
Puhlicwotks 

Lane miles of paved street 
Lane miles of unpaved street 
Tmflic signal inter&ectiOllS 
Street lights 

w-
Miles of water main 
Residential service CODDcctions 
Commercial service connectiODll 
Average daily conmmption in million ...... 
Peak demand day in million gallons 

w-
Miles of sewer wastewater main 
Miles of storm wastewater main 

June30, 
2007 

2 
7 
2 

2 
31 

493 
2 
4 

12 

1,925 

105 
32,000 

1,072 
76,473 
S,001 

50 
75 

609 
147 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM1 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS2 

(UNAUDITED) 

June30, June30, IIDle 30, June 30, June30, 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

2 2 3 2 2 
7 7 8 8 8 
2 3 3 3 3 

2 2 2 2 3 
31 31 34 34 34 

493 493 474 474 474 
2 2 2 2 2 
4 4 4 4 4 

12 12 12 12 12 

1,971 2,ISO 2,150 ~167 2,171 
630 700 698 698 

120 138 141 143 152 
35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,104 

1,096 1,110 1,127 1,130 1,117 
75,375 73,048 73,642 74,191 76,367 

S,350 5,256 5,258 5,305 5,403 

49 47 46 46 45 
74 76 75 74 66 

625 625 625 625 625 
175 180 183 193 263 

June30, June30, June30, June 30, 
2013 2014 2015 2016 

2 2 2 2 
8 8 8 8 
3 3 3 3 

3 3 3 3 
34 " " " 474 627 633 633 
2 2 2 2 
4 4 4 4 

12 18 18 18 

2,489 2,489 2,489 2,489 
698 698 698 698 

"' 155 155 155 
35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 

1,119 1,060 1,064 1,100 
76,988 78,228 79.572 80,378 
S,439 S,517 5,638 S,760 

44 45 45 47 
69 69 69 68 

638 651 667 670 
266 153 157 178 

160 



BUSINESS LICENSE FEES 





CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF BUSINESS LICENSE FEES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

As n:quired by Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) 354.624, Section 4(a), all fees imposed by a local govemmeot are subject to the provisiona of NRS 
354.5989. A local goverment may adopt new business license fees only if the revenue from the fees is less than the prescribed calculated maximum. 

FEES CALCULATED AS A PERCENTAGE OF GROSS REVENUE 

Business license revenue for the year ended June 30, 2016 

Business license revenue for the year ended June 30, 2015 (base year) 
Adjustment to base year 

Percentage change in Consumer Price Index 
Total adjustment to base year 

Adjusted business license revenue base for the year ended June 30, 2016 

Amount over allowable maximum 

FEES CALCULATED ON A FLAT OR FIXED RATE 

Business license revenue for the year ended June 30, 2016 

Business license revenue for the year ended June 30, 2015 (base year) 
Adjustment to base year 

Percentage change in local government population 
Percentage change in Consumer Price Index 

Total adjustment to base year 
Adjusted business license revenue base for the year ended June 30, 2016 

Amount under allowable maximum 

$ 

$ 

0.00% 
1.00 % 

$ 3,294,955 

2,988,195 

1.00 % 
29 882 

3,018,077 

$ 276 878 

$ 1,938,568 

2,147,270 

1.00 % 
21473 

2,168,743 

$ (230,175) 
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SINGLE AUDIT INFORMATION 





PBTK 
PIERCY BOWLER 
TAYLOR & KERN 
Certified Public Accountants 

Business Advisors 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 
OF FEDERAL AW ARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Members of the City Council 
City of North Las Vegas, Nevada 

We have audited the compliance of the City of North Las Vegas (the City) with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of the City's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility. The City's management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (the Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Each of the Major Federal Programs Identified in the Table Below. AB 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the City did not comply with 
requirements regarding the following: 

Finding 
Number 

2016- 003 

2016- 004 

Compliance Reguirement 

Procurment and Suspension and 
Debarment 

Other Requirements 

CFDA Number(s) 

14.218, 14.225 

16.710 

20.205 

14.218, 14.225 

Program Name 

CDBG - Entitlement Grants 
Cluster 
Public Safety Partnership and 
Community Policing Grants 
Highway Planning and 
Construction Cluster 

CDBG - Entitlement Grants 
Cluster 

6100 Elton Ave, Suite 1000 • Las Vegas, NV 89107 • 702-384-1120 • pbtk.com 
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Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the City to comply with the requirements
applicable to that program.

Qualified Opinion on Each of the Major Federal Programs Identified in the Table Above.  In our opinion,
except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the City complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the major federal programs identified in the table above for the year ended June 30,
2016.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance.  The City's management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies; and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified.  However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2016 - 001, to be a material
weakness.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.  We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance, as described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2016 - 003 and 2016 - 004 to be significant
deficiencies.

The City's responses to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  The City's responses were not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
responses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance. We have 
audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of and for the year ended Juoe 30, 2016, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. We issued 
our report thereon dated December 13, 2016, which contained an uomodified opinion on those basic financial 
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the uoderlying accouoting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the uoderlying accouoting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements 
as a whole. 

Las Vegas, Nevada 
December 13, 2016 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Federal CFDA Pass-1hrough Entity 
Federal Grantor/Pass-thro!!S!:!: Enti!IJCluster or Pro2r8.Ill Title Number Identifving Number 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 

CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster 
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218. 
Commonity Development Bloek Grants/Special Purpose 14.225. 

Grants/Insular Areas 

Subtotal Entitlement Grants Cluster 

Passed 1hrough Clark County, Nevada-Department of Finance 
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 M-10-DC-32-0001 

M-ll-DC-32-0001 
M-14-DC-32-0001 

HUD HOME PI Fed Grant 
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 14.264 B--08-UN-32-0001 

CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster 
Passed 1hrough Clark County, Nevada-Department of Finance 

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement 14.218. B-10-UC-32--0001 
Grants 

B-12-UC-32--0001 
B-13-UC-32--0001 
B-l 4-UC-32--0001 
B-15-UC-32--0001 

Subtotal Entitlement Grants Cluster 

Total U.S. Deparbnent of Housing and Urban Development 

U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

Assistance to Firefighters Grant 97.044 
Joint Operation 15-16 NIA 

Passed 1hrough State of Nevada, Department of Public Safety 
Emergency Management Performance Gr- 97.042 EMW-2015-EP--00002 

EMF-2016-EP-00007 

Passed 1hrough Clark County Fire Department 
National Urban Search and Rescue (US&R) Response System 97.025 EMW-2014-CA-K00152 

EMW-2015-CA-00021 

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 

U.S. Department of Transportation 

Passed 1hrough State of Nevada, Department of Public Safety 
Interagency Hazardous Materials Public Sect.or Training and 20.703 15-HMEP--03-07 

Piamring Grants 
16-HMEP--03-01 
16-HMEP--03-05 

Highway Safety Cluster 
Passed 1hrough State of Nevada-Department of Public Safety 

State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 JF-2015-NLVPD-00033 
JF-2016-NLVPD-00027 

(Continued) 

Amount Passed 
Through to Total Federal 

SubreciJ:!!ents Exoenditures 

$ 58,119 $ 58,172 
144,357 156,057 

225,385 291,839 
6,120 6,120 

231,505 297,959 

156,029 156,029 
162,582 162,582 

2,091 
93,050 93,050 
43,110 43,110 

11,022 11,022 

282,921 
48,480 246,822 

310,451 310,778 
338,373 784,343 

708,326 1,635,886 

1,597,078 2,604,936 

11 
23,845 

42,655 
59,310 

18,836 
10,538 

155 195 

21,870 

3,219 
2,021 

54,189 
91,667 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Amount Passed 
Federal CFDA Pass-1hrough Entity Through to 

Federal Grantor/Pass-thro!!S!:!: Enti!IJCluster or Pro2r8.Ill Title Number Identifving Number SubreciJ:!!ents 

National Priority Safety Programs 20.616(d) JF-2015-NLVPD-00033 
JF-2016-NLVPD-00026 

LFD-2016-NLVPD-00022 
TS-2016-NLVPD-00132 

Subtotal Highway Safety Cluster 

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 
Passed 1hrough State ofNevada-~ent of Public Safety 

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205. TS-2015-NLVPD-0097 
TS-2016-NLVPD-00059 

Subtotal 

Passed 1hrough State of Nevada, Department of Transportation 

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 
Passed 1hrough State ofNevada-~ent of 

Transportation 
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205. PR411-l 4-063 

PRll 0-14-063 
PR395-ll-063 
P437-12--063 

PR573-13-063 
PR481-14-063 
P040-12--063 
P042-12--063 

Subtotal 

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 

U.S. Department of Justice 

State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 16.606 

Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grant8 16.710. 

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 

Nevada Joint Terrorist Task Force (JTTF) - 14 NIA 
Child Exploitation Task Force (CETF) NIA 
Tactical Diversion Task Force - 14 NIA 
Tactical Diversion Task Force - 15 NIA 
Equitable Sharing Program 16.922 

Passed 1hrough State of Nevada, Department ofHealth and 
Human Services: 

Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 2015-VA-GX-0024 

Passed 1hrough State of Nevada, Office of the Attorney Gem:ral 
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 2015-STOP-15 

Passed 1hrough Las Vegas Metropolitan Police ~ent 
Missing Children's Assistance 16.543 2014-MC-FX-K045 

Total U.S. Department of Justice 

(Continued) 

Total Federal 
Exoenditures 

15,737 
28,756 

5,000 
9,975 

205,325 

42,487 
27,302 

69,789 

994 
124,326 

7,885,647 
24,577 

110,445 
114,357 
54,462 

5,644 

8,320,452 

8,622,675 

12,542 
25,774 

214,460 
637,836 
45,706 

920 
22,748 
14,743 
14,564 
4,532 

11,965 
37,131 

127,843 

17,309 

12,682 

J,200,755 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Amount Passed 
Federal CFDA Pass-1hrough Entity Through to 

Federal Grantor/Pass-thro!!S!:!: Enti!IJCluster or Pro2r8.Ill Title Number Identifving Number SubreciJ:!!ents 

Executive Office of the President 

High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas Program 95.001 

Total Executive Office of the President 

U.S. Department of the Interior 

Passed through State of Nevada, Bureau of Land Management 
Soothern Nevada Poblic Land Management 15.235 L11AC20228 

L12AC20493 
L14AC00132 

Total U.S. Deparbnent of the Interior 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 

Passed through National Recreation and Park Association 
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 NIA 

ChiW Nutrition Cluster 
Passed 1hrough State of Nevada, Depamnent ofEducatioo 

Special Milk Program for Children 10.556 M-102400-10 

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Passed 1hrough Soothern Nevada Health District 
Highway Tralliing and Educatioo 20.215 2015-12 
PaI1nerships to Improve Community Health 93.331 SNHD-6-PICH-INT-15--028 

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

U.S. Department of Energy 

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program 81.128 
(EECBG) 

Total U.S. Department of Energy 

Total federal expenditures $ 1,597.078 

* A major program 

Total Federal 
Exoenditures 

118,534 
1,623 

34,615 
2,582 

157 354 

933,851 
54,186 
71,485 

1,059,522 

21,233 

16,347 

37 580 

2,628 
72,638 

75J.66 

1,653 

1653 

$ 13,914,936 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF Exl'ENDITURES OF FEOERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Note 1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award activity of 
the City of North Las Vegas (the City) under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (the Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City, it 
is not intended to, and does not, present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the City. 

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported oo the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are 
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement Negative amounts, if any, shown on the Schedule represent 
adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. 

Note 3. Indirect Cost Rate 

The City has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Note 4. Outstanding Loan Balances 

The federal loan programs listed below are administered directly by the City, and balances and transactions relating to 
these programs are included in the City's basic financial statements. Loans outstanding at the beginning of the year 
and loans made during the year are included in the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule. There were no loan 
receivable at June 30, 2016. 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditors' report issued Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting

Material weaknesses identified Yes
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses Yes
Noncompliance material to financial statements No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs

Material weaknesses identified Yes
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses Yes

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs Qualified
Audit findings required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) Yes

Identification of major programs
CFDA number 14.218, 14.225
Name of federal program or cluster CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster
CFDA number 16.710
Name of federal program or cluster Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing

Grants
CFDA number 20.205
Name of federal program or cluster Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee No

(Continued)
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Section II - Findings relating to the f'mancial statements, which are required to be reported in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States and Government Auditing Sttuulards 

2016 - 001 
Criteria or specific requirement 

Condition and context 

Effect 

Cause 

Recommendation 

Management's response 

Government financial statements are required to be prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) to provide reasonable assurance that financial 
statements, free of material errors, are presented using the appropriate basis of accounting, 
transactions must be accurately recognized in accordance with GAAP and associated policies and 
procedures. This includes a timely review and reconciliation of accounts receivables 

We noted insufficient staffing to monitor compliance with policies and procedures and to prepare timely, 
and accurate, account reconciliations, for example, the Neighborhood and Leisure Services 
Department does not have the resources to afford :reasonable assurance of the appropriate application 
of GAAP in recording transactions and preparing :financial statements as of year end. Specifically, 
accounts receivable balances at June 30, 2016 contained amounts received prior to year end as well as 
duplicate receivable entries. 

Reasonable assurance that transactions are accurately recognized and financial statements, free of 
material errors, are presented using the appropriate basis of accounting, as required by GAAP, cannot 
readily be attained. Specifically, accounts receivable was overstated $420,742 at year end. 

Failure to retain and/or recruit sufficient personnel who possess an appropriate level of knowledge and 
skills to effectively develop, implement and monitor compliance with policies and procedures and to 
prepare timely, and accurate, account reconciliations. 

Management should augment staffing to develop and monitor procedures designed to ensure that 
transactions are recognized accurately and in the proper period and financial statements, free of 
material errors are appropriately presented 

Management informed us that they are evaluating a process was created and all data is being entered into 
the Oracle Purchase Order and Oracle Projects and Grants systems so the reliance on separate non­
system tracking has deminished. If a second schedule is kept by a projects and grants employee, it is 
purely secondary, as any payments, accruals or other transactions are determined from the Oracle 
systems. For example, the main problem we experienced in the past was the manual preparation of 
invoices to the funding agency and the creation of the Oracle invoice after the funds were received and 
then the payment to the subreceipient entered in AP afterwards. Now, the invoice is initially created 
in AR, the AP invoice entered into AP along with a purchase order with a 30 hold and the funds only 
released via AP after the funding has been received from the granting agency. 

(Continued) 
172 



CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Section II - Findings relating to the financial statements, which are required to be reported in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States and Gtwernment Auditing Standards (continued) 

2016 -002 
Criteria or specific requirement 

Condition and context 

Effect 

Cause 

Recommendation 

Management's response 

Appropriate segregation of duties to prevent/detect errors and fraud in a timely manner by employees in 
the ordinary course performing their responsibilities. 

The two accounts payable clerks can add vendors and print checks. While they are supposed to review 
each other's work, the process is not documented. Further, listings of new vendors are not, but should 
be, reviewed at least monthly for propriety by an accounting manager. 

The risk that fraudulent disbursements can be processed is not sufficiently mitigated 

Segregation of duties in the accounts payable department is inadequate 

We recommend that management develop and implement policies and procedures that include an 
independent review of vendor list changes by an accounting manager be performed or that accounts 
payable clerk rights to modify the vendor list be terminated. 

Management informed us that it will either complete the design of a report to facilitate monitoring, and 
will routinely moniitor, vendor list changes or will terminate the rights of accounts payable clerks to 
make vendor list changes. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Section m - Findings and questioned costs for federal awards, including audit f"mdings required by 2 CFR 200.516(a) 

2016 -003 
Federal program 

Criteria or specific requirement 

Condition and context 

Questioned costs 

Effect 

Cause 

Repeat finding 

Recommendation 

Community Development Block GTanWEntitlement Grants (CFDA #14.218) 
Community Development Block Gnurts/Special Pwpose Grants/Insular Areas (CFDA #14.225) 
Public Safety PaI1nership and Community Policing Grants (CFDA #16.710) 
Highway Planning and Construction (CFDA #20.205) 

States, and governmental subrecipients of States, will use the same State policies and procedures used 
for procurements from non-Federal funds (this includes conflict of interest policies). They also must 
ensure that every purchase order or other contract includes any clauses required by Federal statutes 
and executive orders and their implementing regulations. 

Local governments and Indian tribal governments that are direct recipients of Federal awards and their 
subrecipients will use procurement procedmes that conform to applicable Federal law and regulations 
and standards identified in the A-102 Common Rule or OMB Circular A-llO (2 CFR part 215), as 
applicable. 

All non-Federal entities shall follow Federal laws and implementing regulations applicable to 
procurements, as noted in Federal agency implementation of the A-102 Common Rule and OMB 
Circular A-llO. 

The OMB guidance st.ates that, "Non-Federal entities are prohibited from contracting with or making 
subawards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred. "Covered 
transactions" include those procurement contracts for goods and services awarded under a 
nonprocurement transaction (e.g., grant or cooperative agreement) that are expected to equal or exceed 
$25,000 or meet certain other criteria as specified in 2 CFR section 180.220. All nonprocurement 
transactions entered into by a recipient (i.e., subawards to subrecipients), irrespective of award 
amount, are considered covered transactions, unless they are exempt as provided in 2 CFR section 
180.215." 

The current Purchasing Guidelines does not include policies and procedures to address standards of 
conduct in governing the performance of their employees engaged in the award and administration of 
contracts. In addition, they do not include procedures to prevent contracting with or making 
transactions with parties that are suspended or debarred or whose principals are suspended or 
debarred. We also noted that the policy to post vendor rankings on their website when there is a 
request for proposal was not followed. 

None. 

The City could enter into transactions which may create a conflict of interest and/or enter into 
transactions with debarred or suspended parties resulting in questioned costs. In addition, contracting 
decision could be questioned as a result of not posting the vendor rankings as stipulated in the 
policies. 

The City did not have policies in place to adequately address the appropriate eligibility guidelines of the 
grant awards and did not follow their policy related to requests for proposals. 

Yes 

Management should implement policies and procedures to address the conduct of those involved in 
making procurement decisions and should follow their policies. In addition, revision of the current 
procurement policy should include review of the excluded party listing at ht1ps://www.sam.gov to 
prevent contracting with or making transactions with parties that are suspended or debarred. 

(Continued) 
174 



Management's response 

CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 

Management informed us that a new policy was submitted to the City's legal department prior to the 
audit but has not yet been returned with approval. The new policies and procedures will be put into 
place to review all entries involved in the contracted services related to grants or projects to determine 
their eligJ.Dility to supply such services and or products. This will include obtaining certifications from 
suppliers stating they are not suspended or debarred and verifying their eligibility via the sam.gov 
website. Policies will include a section to address conflicts of interest. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Section III – Findings and questioned costs for federal awards, including audit findings required by 2 CFR 200.516(a) (continued)

2016 - 004
Federal program Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants (CFDA #14.218)

Criteria or specific requirement The schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) shall be complete and accurate and agree to
supporting records/documentation.

Condition and context We noted insufficient staffing to monitor compliance with policies and procedures, for example,  certain
federal and non-federal expenditures were inappropriately excluded or included from/in the SEFA,
possibly due to delays in recording and identifying the expended amounts.

Questioned costs None.

Effect Reasonable assurance that the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is complete and accurate
cannot readily be attained.

Cause Failure to retain and/or recruit sufficient personnel who possess an appropriate level of knowledge and
skills to effectively develop, implement and monitor compliance with policies and procedures.

Repeat finding Yes

Recommendation Management should adopt, implement and monitor compliance with policies and procedures designed to
provide reasonable assurance that the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is complete and
accurate. Additional resources should be made available to provide training and other resources to
those delegated with the primary responsibility for grant compliance and the terms of the grants should
be communicated to all personnel involved in administering federal grants.

Management's response Management informed us that as of the end of fiscal year 2015, the City has created a management
position titled Real Property and Housing Services Manager which will oversee the Housing and
Urban Development grants. This will include reviewing and managing the grant processes. In
addition, an accounting manager in finance has also been hired and the first goal is to ensure that
Projects and Grants are reconciled and reviewed on a monthly basis. A large part of the problem with
the findings noted is a result of being understaffed. Improved communications between Projects and
Grants and the Finance department along with training of staff on critical issues will result in accurate
reporting  of Projects and Grants.
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Section II - Findings relating to the f'mancial statements, which are required to be reported in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States and Government Auditing Sttuulards 

2015 - 001 
Criteria or specific requirement Appropriate segregation of duties to prevent/detect errors and fraud in a timely manner by employees in 

the ordinary course performing their responsibilities. 

Condition and context The two accounts payable clerks can add vendors and print checks. While they are supposed to review 
each other's work, the process is not documented. Further, check registers and listings of new vendors 
are not. but should be, reviewed at least monthly for propriety by an accounting manager. 

Current status Partially corrected. Changes to the vendor list are not monitored. See firuling 2016-002. 

Reasons for this :finding's :recurrence The vendor change report was a cumbersome process to generate an appropirate report Due to other 
higher priority issues there was not a lot of focus on the vendor change report. The report has been 
created but it is difficult to review. Lack of staffing has moved this particular review to a lower 
position. The review of AP invoice batches and copies of checks issued helps in the prevention of 
fraud by the AP process. 

Partial corrective action taken An accounting manager reviews and approves check registers and printed checks. Management has 
started to design a report to facilitate monitoring of vendor list changes. 

Planned corrective action Management will either complete the design of a report to facilitate monitoring, and will routinely 
moniitor, vendor list changes or will terminate the rights of accounts payable clerks to make vendor 
list changes. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Section II - Findings relating to the financial statements, which are required to be reported in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States and Gtwernment Auditing Standards (continued) 

2015 -002 
Criteria or specific requirement 

Condition and context 

Current status 

Proper budgeting and recording of fixed assets in the fund financial statements consistent with the 
classification used in the general fixed assets group of accounts. 

Ledgers and schedules are routinely reconciled monthly, quarterly and annually, as applicable, 
including general and subsidiary journals/ledgers and schedules to 1he general ledger and firumcial 
statements. 

Approved disbursements are not returned to the departments approving/requesting the disbursement 
for subsequent distribution. 

We noted inconsistent budgeting for, and the recording of, capital expenditures in the fund financial 
statements versus the classification used in the general fixed assets group of accounts. We also noted 
that the process for accruing certain grant receivables and the related billing process are not timely or 
adequately reviewed by an accounting manger in finance before the entries are recorded. Additionally, 
signed checks are on occasion held for vendor pickup by the department approving the expenditure. 

Corrected. 

(Continued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Section m - Findings and questioned costs for federal awards, including audit findings as defined in Circular A-133 Section .SlO(a) and/or 
findings required by 2 CFR 200.516(a) 

2015 -003 
Federal program 

Criteria or specific requirement 

Community Development Block Gnurts/Entitlemeot Gnmts (CFDA #14.218) 
Home Inveslmeot Partnerships Program (CFDA #14.239) 

The schedule of experulitores of federal awards (SEF A) shall be complete and accorate and agree to 
supporting records/documentation. 

Pre-award project costs may not exceed 25 percent of the current HOME grant without written 
approval from HUD. Participating jurisdictions may authorize subrecipients and state recipients to 
incur pre-award costs, but authoriz.ation must be in writing. 

Condition and context We noted that expenditures of $579,465 incurred during FY2015 for the CDBG grant were not included 
on the SEFA due to delays in recording the expended amounts. In addition, the HOME grant included 
non-federal expenditures of $54,560 as part of the SEFA. We were informed that these costs were 
incurred inconjunction with HOME activities; however, there was no agreement in place with Clark 
County at the time the expenses were incurred and there is no written authoriz.ation making such costs 
allowable. 

Current status Uncorrected. See fuuting 2016-004. 

Reasons for this finding's recurrence Implementation of the previously reported corrective action plan was not immediate. 

Partial corrective action taken None. 

Planned corrective action A process was created and all data is being entered into the Oracle Purchase Order and Oracle Projects 
and Grants systems so the reliance on separate non-system tracking has deminished. If a second 
schedule is kept by a projects and grants employee, it is purely secondary, as any payments, accruals 
or other transactions are determined from the Oracle systems. For example, the main problem we 
experienced in the past was the manual preparation of invoices to the funding agency and the creation 
of the Oracle invoice after the funds were received and then the payment to the subreceipient entered 
in AP afterwards. Now, the invoice is initially created in AR, the AP invoice entered into AP along 
with a purchase order with a 30 hold and the funds only released via AP after the funding has been 
received from the granting ageocy. 

(Cootioued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Section ill-Findings and questioned costs for federal awards, including audit finding1 as defined in Circular A-133 Section .510(a) and/or 
l"mdings required by 2 CFR 200.516(a) (continued) 

2015 -004 
Federal program 

Criteria or specific requirement 

Condition and context 

Current status 

Community Development Block GranWEntitlement Grants (CFDA #14.218) 
Home Invesbnent Partnerships Program (CFDA #14.239) 

Supervisory reviews performed to ensure compliance with federal mies and regulations including any 
award specific requirements. 

Reliance is placed on Clark County's (the grantor) periodic monitorings to identify any noncompliance. 
Management does not review for compliance with earmarking, matching and subrecipient monitoring 
activities. 

Corrected. 

(Coutinued) 
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CITY OF NORTH LAS VEGAS 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

Section ill-Findings and questioned costs for federal awards, including audit finding1 as defined in Circular A-133 Section .510(a) and/or 
l"mdings required by 2 CFR 200.516(a) (continued) 

2015 -005 
Federal program 

Criteria or specific requirement 

Community Development Block GranWEntitlement Grants (CFDA #14.218) 
Home Invesbnent Partnerships Program (CFDA #14.239) 
Highway Planning and Cons1ruction (CFDA #20.205) 

Local governments and Indian tribal governments that are direct recipients of Federal awards and their 
subrecipients will use procurement procedures that conform to applicable Federal law and regulations 
and standards identified in the A-102 Common Rule or OMB Circular A-llO (2 CFR part 215), as 
applicable. No employee, officer or agent of the grantee or subgrantee shall participate in selection, or 
in the award or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a conflict of interest, real or 
apparent, would be involved. 

The OMB guidance states that Non-Federal entities are prohibited from contracting with or making 
subawards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose principals are 
suspended or debarred. 

Condition and context The current Purchasing Guidelines does not include policies and procedures to address standards of 
conduct in governing the performance of their employees engaged in the award and administration of 
contracts. In addition, they do not include procedures t.o prevent contracting with or making 
transactions with parties th.at are suspended or debarred or whose principals are suspended or 
debarred. 

Current ststus Uncorrected. See finding 2016-003. 

Reasons for this finding's recurrence There was a break in communication regarding the approval of the more detailed Purchasing Guidelines, 
so the new policy was not formally put into place but the required actions are in place, specifically the 
certifications of suppliers eligibiltiy t.o be paid with governmental funding. 

Partial corrective action taken None. 

Planned corrective action A new policy was submitted to the City's legal department prior to the audit but has not yet been 
returned with approval. The new policies and procedures will be put int.o place t.o review all entries 
involved in the contracted services related to grants or projects t.o determine their eli.gl.l>ility to supply 
such services and or products. This will include obtaining certifications from suppliers stating they 
are not suspended or debarred and verifying their eligibility via the sam.gov website. Policies will 
include a section to address conflicts of interest. 
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Department Finding/Corrective Action

Finding 2016‐001:

Insufficient staffing to monitor compliance with policies and procedures and to prepare 

timely and accurate, account reconciliations, for example the Neighborhood and Leisure 

Services Department does not have resources to afford reasonable assurance of 

appropriate application of GAAP in recording transactions and preparing financial 

statements as of year end.  Specifically, accounts receivable balances at June 30, 2016 

contained amounts received prior to year end as well as duplicate receivable entries.

Corrective Action:

Management has set a procedure to only create invoices within the Oracle Accounts 

Receivable/Projects and Grants modules.  Subrecipient invoices have Purchase Orders 

created at time of service requests and invoices are to be submitted to Accounts Payable 

upon receipt with a 30 day hold.  This procedure causes all transactions to be maintained 

within the system. If the department keeps a separate tracking worksheet, it is only 

secondary and should be reconciled with the General Ledger balances.  This should 

minimize if not eliminate the possibility of duplicate or lost payable or receivable invoices.

Finding 2016‐002:

The two accounts payable clerks can add vendors and print checks.  While they are 

supposed to review each other's work, the process is not documented. Further, listings of 

new vendors are not, but should be, reviewed at least monthly for propriety by an 

accounting manager.

Corrective Action:

The review of accounts payable entries are reviewed by the payables counterpart and also 

reviewed by either a financial analyst or accounting manager.  These reviews are 

documented by initials on the invoice batch summary sheets.  Beginning in January 2017, 

new vendor input  (with the exception of Utility refunds which is uploaded by the Utility 

module as one time vendors), will be performed by a Financial Analyst employee, separate 

from Accounts Payable.  New vendor entry will be tracked by the Financial Analyst and 

then verified monthly by an updated vendor input report.
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Finding 2016‐003:

The current Purchasing Guidelines do not include policies and procedures to address 

standards of conduct in governing the performance of their employees engaged in the 

award and administration of contracts.  In addition, they do not include procedures to 

prevent contracting with or making transactions with parties that are suspended or 

debarred or whose principals are suspended or debarred.  We also noted the policy to post 

vendor rankings on their website when there is a request for proposal was not followed.

Corrective Action:

Updated purchasing policy will be put into place.  Verification of eligibility to participate in 

Federal or State funded programs will be acquired prior to awarding contracts or requests 

for goods or services.  The pending procedures are being followed, but the formal policy 

has not been implemented.

Finding 2016‐004:

Insufficient staffing to monitor compliance with policies and procedures, for example, 

certain federal and non‐federal expenditures were inappropriately excluded or included 

from/in the SEFA, possibly due to delays in recording and identifying the expended 

amounts.

Corrective Action:

The procedures described in Finding 2016‐001 will help solve this finding as well as all 

receipts and disbursements will be tracked directly in the Oracle modules.  However, 

understaffing continues to be a problem and the solution for hiring new and qualified 

personnel is dependent on the tax revenues generated by the City.

Rhonda Garlick, Accounting Manager
 garlickr@cityofnorthlasvegas.com, 702‐633‐1460 x 3630.Contact Information
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